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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement 23 June 2023
Final Dividend HKS$0.003 per share
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 27 September 2023

(before 4:30 p.m.)
28-29 September 2023
(both days inclusive)

- Book Close Dates

- Record Date 29 September 2023
- Payment Date 16 October 2023
Annual General Meeting 19 September 2023
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 13 September 2023

(before 4:30 p.m.)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholders”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends
the Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual
Report. Shareholders have the right to change their choice
of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any
time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company or
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.
tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
REBE

REEBREEERAR ([ARREFE ([E
FelHEZRZARFAREMBAR (4
BIAREE])EZE202383A31R0 FFE ([
FE|) 2REZTEFE-

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents
the audited consolidated results of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”).

For the year ended 31 March HKs?ggg HKs%gSS
z
I;E;')'[e"e”“e 1,210,682 2,329,324
- ;?ﬂf’ %tl% fcome 870,769 904,402
A 79,240 1,025,152
- Hotel and hotel related operations
B I R B #E B % 7 g 260,673 399,770
%;ES profit 590,026 813,293
Fair value (loss) on investment properties
REDEAARE (R (1,804,437) (488,877)
(Loss) attributable to the owners of the Company (2,141,983) (469,329)

RARERAEMN (BE)

Basic (loss) per share
BRER (FE)

HK$(0.58)& 7t

HK$(0.13)3% T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

RESULTS

As a result of a tough business operating environment,
the Group’s total revenue was HKS$1,210.7 million (2022:
HK$2,329.3 million) during the Year. Although the abundant
office space supply has resulted in a competitive landscape,
the Group’s rental income remained broadly stable at
HKS$870.8 million (2022: HK$904.4 million) during the Year,
representing 71.9% (2022: 38.8%) of total revenue. Revenue
from the sales of property development was HK$79.2 million
(2022: HK$1,025.2 million), accounting for 6.6% (2022: 44.0%)
of the total revenue. Revenue from the hospitality segment
decreased to HK$260.7 million (2022: HK$399.8 million), which
accounted for 21.5% (2022: 17.2%) of the total revenue.

Gross profit was HK$590.0 million (2022: HK$813.3 million).
Due to a drop in the total revenue and an increase in the
fair value loss on investment properties, a loss for the Year
attributable to the owners of the Company of HKS$2,142.0
million (2022: HK$469.3 million) was therefore recorded.
Basic loss was HK$0.58 (2022: HKS0.13) per share. The Board
recommended a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.003
(2022: HK$0.016) per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HKS$0.005 (2022: HKS$0.015) per share, the total dividends for
the Year are HK$0.008 (2022: HKS$0.031) per share.

Seaside Castle
B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

MARKET REVIEW

In 2022, the Hong Kong economy was generally weakened
as economic activities were dampened by the fifth wave of
the pandemic and, subsequently, the deteriorated external
environment and tighter financial conditions. Nonetheless,
with the removal of quarantine arrangements for inbound
visitors, resumption of normal travel between Hong Kong,
Macau and mainland China, and eased social distancing
measures in early 2023, business travel and leisure activities
have resumed, giving impetus to the rebound of the economy.

During the Year, although more employees returned to
workplaces, the increase in office space supply and yet-to-
return overseas corporations led to an increase in vacancies,
and together with the low IPO volumes and business
activities which have impacted demand, this resulted in the
office leasing market facing continuing pressure. However,
supported by improved consumption sentiment and gradual
return of tourists in the last quarter of the Year, the retail
leasing market has picked up modestly.

Regarding the property sales market, factors including the
macroeconomic environment, geopolitical tensions, stock
market turbulence, and interest rate hikes remained the key
concerns affecting buyers’ purchase decisions. Potential
buyers have accordingly diversified their investment
portfolios, and the property market has inevitably been
impacted. Nonetheless, investment sentiment improved with
the full border reopening, and property developers have
accelerated the launch of new properties accordingly.

T 45 [0] B

R2022F R BEESHZEFEARRBENF
EUNBROIBERRTBEREBARTKE
BERBEERN AN BEAREERRER
BERVBUR - &8 - RPTE A Bl i 2 ) IE & R i
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7 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Based in Hong Kong, the Group principally engages in
property investment, property development and hospitality
businesses. The Group’s property portfolio covers a total area
of approximately 5,300,000 square feet in Greater China and
the United Kingdom.

Rental Income

The Group’s investment properties portfolio primarily focuses
on commercial buildings and quality street-level retail spaces
in prominent locations, with an aggregate gross floor area
of approximately 2,600,000 square feet. In the past decade,
the Group has strived to further develop beyond its origins,
notably by expanding its coverage from Greater China to
the United Kingdom, enabling it to possess a geographically
balanced property portfolio. By doing so, the Group can
diversify its rental income streams and minimise impacts due
to market volatility.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong accounted for approximately 50% of the Group’s
total gross floor area of investment properties currently for
lease. As at 31 March 2023, the occupancy rate of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong was approximately 90%.

The Group owns many premium offices, commercial and
industrial complexes which mainly include Emperor Group
Centre and China Huarong Tower in Wan Chai; Emperor
Commercial Centre in Central; and Emperor Hollywood
Centre in Sheung Wan.

The Group continually strives to enhance the value and
maximise the potential rental income of its premises by
undertaking redevelopment programme. The project at
No. 81 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, has been transformed
into a Grade-A office building with a gross floor area of
approximately 126,600 square feet. The redevelopment
creates a vibrant building in the heart of Wan Chai - one of the
core commercial districts on Hong Kong Island - and presents
significant value-creation opportunities to the Group.

Regarding the redevelopment project for Bhotai Industrial
Building & Shan Ling Industrial Building in Tuen Mun, the
two adjacent buildings are expected to be demolished and
redeveloped into a building for use by data centres. Requests
for relaxation of the plot ratio and the building height
restriction have been submitted to the Town Planning Board.
The project is in line with the government’s policy to promote
the development of innovation and technology, revitalise
industrial buildings and optimise the use of valuable land
resources.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group also generated rental income from numerous retail
spaces in popular residential and shopping districts. Key
investment properties include the pulse in Repulse Bay; retail
shops of Fairview Height at Mid-levels; retail shops at Level
3, New Town Commercial Arcade in Tuen Mun; Nos. 8, 20,
22-24 and 50-56 Russell Street in Causeway Bay; and Nos.
81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-37 Haiphong Road and Nos.
25-29 Hankow Road in Tsim Sha Tsui.

Conveniently located in Emperor Group Centre, Mustard
Seed, the Group’s co-working space, is designated to offer
freelancers, innovators and entrepreneurs a convenient
and affordable working space with a host of complimentary
amenities. In support of the “Space Sharing Scheme for
Youth” introduced by the government, Mustard Seed offers
a wide range of leasing options for young entrepreneurs who
are starting their own businesses, and provides a resourceful
and supportive environment for gritty entrepreneurs to thrive.

During the Year, the Group completed the disposal of Lane
Up, in Tuen Mun, New Territories, at a consideration of
approximately HKS$1,141.2 million. The property is located
beyond the central business districts, and is regarded as a
non-core investment property with limited chances of further
enhancement of rental yield or substantial value appreciation.
The Group viewed the sale as a good opportunity to crystallise
the asset’s appreciated value of approximately HK$882.6
million against its total investment cost of approximately
HK$277.4 million (including the acquisition cost and the
cost of the revitalisation exercise). The net proceeds of
approximately HK$1,140.7 million will strengthen the Group’s
financial position for future investment opportunities and
enhance its investment portfolio for higher returns.

Mainland China

Located in Chang’an Avenue East, Beijing, Emperor Group
Centre Beijjing is a 28-storey (excluding three-storey
basement with parking facilities) Grade-A office tower and
premier shopping mall with premium cinema, encompassing
a gross floor area of approximately 1,062,000 square feet.
It becomes an important part of Yong’anli CBD and marked
a major milestone for the Group in developing upscale
commercial projects in mainland China. It has therefore
attracted reputable office tenants, multiple international
superior jewellery, watch, and high-quality lifestyle product
brands, as well as special trendy food and beverage tenants
from different countries. Emperor Group Centre Beijing
gives full play to advanced structural systems, intelligent
technology, and energy saving technology to create a new
commercial image with a balance between environment and
urban economic development.
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Macau

With a gross floor area of approximately 29,600 square feet,
Emperor Nam Van Centre is a multi-storey premium retail
complex located at the centre of Macau Peninsula. It has
become a prime shopping location with a blend of shopping
and lifestyle offerings, featuring a fitness centre, sportswear,
cosmetic and jewellery stores.

London

The Group owns a 7-storey (including basement) retail
and office complex at Nos. 181-183 as well as Ampersand
Building at Nos. 111-125 on Oxford Street, London.
Ampersand Building is an 8-storey (including basement)
composite building comprising retail spaces, office premises
and apartments under lease with a gross floor area of
approximately 112,500 square feet (for retail and office
portions only). Located in the prime retail and vibrant SOHO
office area of London’s West End, it is also in close proximity
to the Tottenham Court Road Crossrail development,
thereby enjoying significant pedestrian traffic and excellent
accessibility.

The redevelopment project of a 9-storey retail and office
building with a gross floor area of approximately 19,300
square feet at Nos. 25-27 Oxford Street has been completed.
It occupies a prominent commercial and shopping location in
London that is popular with international visitors. During the
Year, some of the floors have been leased out.

Property Sales

The Group pursues a strategy of providing quality residential
properties including luxury composite buildings in popular
urban areas, and low-rise detached houses in unique spots,
with convenient access to transportation networks. A steady
development pipeline has been established, which will
provide medium-term contributions to the sale of residential
units, for earnings visibility.

Projects completed and launched for sale

Located at No. 8 Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, Central 8 is a
29-storey (including lower ground floor) boutique residential
tower, offering 99 units with studio to 2-bedroom layouts.
Adjacent to SOHO area and Lan Kwai Fong, it is in close
proximity to the Central-Mid-Levels Escalator, with convenient
access to the central business district. As at 31 March 2023, 62
units were sold with an average selling price of over HK$30,000
per square feet, and the 37 remaining units were available for
sale.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Seaside Castle is a prime residential project located at No.
9 Ching Lai Road, Tai Lam, Tuen Mun which comprises 8
luxurious detached houses with sea views, encompassing a
gross floor area of approximately 29,000 square feet. With
close proximity to new transportation infrastructure such as
Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor and the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, the project has convenient access
to the cities in the Greater Bay Area. It is also close to the
prestigious Harrow International School. As at 31 March 2023,
2 houses were sold. Subsequent to the Year, another house
was also sold with contracted sales amount of approximately
HK$126.4 million. The relevant sales income will be recorded
in subsequent financial year.

No. 15 Shouson, located in Southern District, Hong Kong
Island, is a signature luxury residential project boasting
a gross floor area of approximately 87,200 square feet. In
proximity to Aberdeen Tunnel and a network of prestigious
schools, the site has been developed into 15 low-density
luxury villas, complemented by comprehensive auxiliary
facilities. The project was launched to the market in May 2022.
During the Year, 1 house was sold and 1 house was contracted.
Besides, the Group has completed the acquisition of an
additional 10% stake in this project during the Year, such that
the Group’s shareholding in this project increased from 40% to
50%, enabling the Group to generate more income in future.
The details of the acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 September 2022.

No. 15 Shouson
ZEU15%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other projects under development

The existing buildings at Nos. 72-80 Old Main Street
Aberdeen, Aberdeen, have been demolished and will be
redeveloped into a 23-storey residential and retail building
with a gross floor area of approximately 50,300 square feet.
Located in Aberdeen town centre, it is conveniently accessed
by a variety of public transport. Pre-sale is expected to be
launched in the second half of 2023, while the project is
scheduled for completion in 2024.

The site at Nos. 20-26 Old Bailey Street & No.11 Chancery
Lane, Central, is planned for redevelopment into a 26-storey
boutique luxury residential tower. Adjacent to SOHO area and
Lan Kwai Fong, it is in close proximity to Central-Mid-Levels
Escalator, with convenient access to the central business
district. The redevelopment is planned to be completed in
2024.

No. 1 Wang Tak Street, Happy Valley, a site previously
occupied by Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, will be
redeveloped into a 27-storey residential tower with a gross
floor area of approximately 58,100 square feet. Happy Valley is
a traditional luxury residential location on Hong Kong Island,
with easy access to major shopping and business districts
such as Causeway Bay and Wan Chai, and in close proximity
to major facilities such as the Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital and Hong Kong Stadium.
Foundation works have been completed and superstructure
works are in progress. The project is scheduled for completion
in 2024 or after.

The existing buildings at Nos. 24-30 Bonham Road, Mid-
levels, have been demolished and will be redeveloped into
a 27-storey residential complex with a gross floor area of
approximately 105,400 square feet. It is just 5 minutes walk
away from the Sai Ying Pun MTR station. The redevelopment is
scheduled for completion in 2024 or after.

The existing building at No. 127 Caine Road, Mid-levels, is
planned to be redeveloped into a 23-storey residential and
retail tower with a gross floor area of approximately 24,700
square feet. It is around 3 minutes and 5 minutes walk from
PMQ and SOHO areas, respectively, and has convenient access
to several leisure spots and multinational restaurants in Mid-
levels. The redevelopment is scheduled for completion in 2025
or after.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

12 ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &%k

HEFRERBRAR

HitbBBEFHIEE

BURB B EEFEAHT2-80% 2 K1ED
WIFR AR BEEZR - BESBENEELT
EAE BRREEEL50,300F 7R KR EH
BHEFPLOHE RETBARZBY T ERE-
BET R R2023F THFETRE  ZEB T E
F20245 58 Lo

LA IR E F#720-265 R B & E11% 2 i
HASBERERBESHENERREETEX
B HEDHFSREEEY BPREFILE
PRFER FEREPLOBER -ZERZER
FHEIR20245 T T -

RS EEHISE 2R I AREEH®S
B BEEK —BESIEMNEERE  Rig
HAEE458,100F A R- | Fi AEESER
SEME AERERBEMEFTFEETEZEDY
MEER UBOIEEESS BEENERK
EARBBEEFER B - ZHEMETREE R
B FEEETRIEMA#EIT 5T81R2024F sk 2
BxET e

BAL R A L AR B B 24-30%5 2 RIEE W AR
THERR—EERIENETKRE HEH
EFE 47105400 5 R - H1T = B H T2 RULE
ST BRIE - X ERIA B FTEIN2024F s 2 & 7
To

BN FINEEI2TH 2 KBTI ERZ S &
BRBENEEMTEXRNE AEEEEY
24,700 73R - ZITETTRI T K& F R 2 5493
738 M5 EREAE - 077 8 AT = LU 2 fE IR ) R
NZBER - ZEEE AT EMN20255 3 2 &

e~
7‘510




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Hotel and Hotel Related Operations

As at 31 March 2023, Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(“Emperor E Hotel”; Hong Kong stock code: 296), a subsidiary
of the Company which engages in provision of hospitality
and entertainment services, owned six hotels and serviced
apartments in Hong Kong and Macau, as follows:

- The Emperor Hotel and three blocks of The Unit
Serviced Apartments - namely The Unit Morrison Hill
(formerly known as MORI MORI), The Unit Happy Valley
(formerly known as The Unit) and The Unit Davis - in
Hong Kong;

- Grand Emperor Hotel and Inn Hotel in Macau.

During the Year, the Group completed the disposal of a
22-storey serviced apartments located on Davis Street, Hong
Kong - namely The Unit Davis, at a consideration of HK$490.0
million, to Emperor E Hotel. The recurrent income from The
Unit Davis has continued to be consolidated to the Group.
The net proceeds from this disposal will improve the liquidity
of the Group and save an additional reserve for supporting its
business development in future. The details of this disposal
were set out in the joint announcement of the Company and
Emperor E Hotel dated 15 July 2022.

The Unit Morrison Hill

The Unit Davis

The Unit Happy Valley

BIE MBS R RS

202343 A31F « AR A A FREUEIE RIRL
BBz MBARRSREEEFRAR ([HEe
BREE K ] BB R R IR 296) BB KRS
BAENFBERBBALE WT:

- URBBENEEEEFEE X —EThe Unit
BR #% = 22 & —B1The Unit Morrison Hill
(A% AMORI MORI) * The Unit Happy
Valley (51 % AThe Unit) & The Unit
Davis :

- [IRRPIN R E R EEE N 2 B -

RAFE - A& E AR {E490,000,0007% T 78 5K
PEMREBSERTH - BEERINENREN
A& (BIThe Unit Davis) T 5 2 1R 44 5F | - 3k
B The Unit Davist#& & E WA B B E HF AR
EERB -RAHENMBREFEHREAN
EBCRBES UARKRNEBLERHAER
NEZ - BERALEZHBHERARA RE
SIRLHEEHHA2022ETAISENBA RS -
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During the period between 27 June 2022 and 31 December
2022 (the “Period”), the gaming operation in Grand Emperor
Hotel was run by SJM Resorts, S.A. (“SJM”). Emperor E Hotel
entered into a service agreement with SJM for the provision of
the hotel rooms, catering and other ancillary services for the
gaming operation run by SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel during
the Period. The recurrent income from the provision of the
hotel rooms, catering and other ancillary services to SJM has
continued to be consolidated to the Group.

Following the Macau Government’s announcement of the
awarding of 10-year gaming concessions to six casino operators
including SJM, the Group entered into an agreement with SIM
on 30 December 2022 for the provision of services including but
not limited to selling, promotion, publicity, management and
customer development to SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel for
a term of 3 years commencing 1 January 2023. The recurrent
income from the provision of these services to SIM has continued
to be consolidated to the Group.

OUTLOOK

The fully reopened borders between Hong Kong, Macau
and mainland China, and the lifting of inbound quarantine
measures for all travellers, have undoubtedly contributed
to the revival of consumption and investment sentiment
thanks to the return of tourists and business travellers.
In the meantime, a number of issues such as interest rate
hikes, tightened monetary policies, and geopolitical tensions
remained unresolved. The local economy is facing both
opportunities and challenges on the road to full recovery.

An increase in office leasing inquiries was seen recently, as
business activities resumed to a certain extent. Nevertheless,
it will take time for the market to absorb the abundant supply;
hence the office leasing market will continue facing intense
competition. With the retail market regaining momentum, the
Group’s retail leasing - especially in tourist areas - is poised to
benefit.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEZEERE@MARAT
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Investment sentiments of home buyers and investors have
become more positive, given clearer visibility. The reopening
of borders has also had a positive effect on the luxury property
market. Property developers have been proactively pushing
ahead with sales launches since the beginning of 2023, and
these have received positive feedback from the market. With
the Group’s solid development properties pipeline, it will
strive to seize the opportunities given the huge demand for yet
limited supply of housing. The Group will continue promptly
adjusting its strategies in response to changes in the market,
and maintain a balanced property portfolio to diversify
business risk and achieve steady development.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s net asset value and net
asset value per share amounted to HK$23,887.2 million (2022:
HKS$26,765.8 million) and HKS$6.50 (2022: HKS7.28) per share,
respectively.

The Group had cash, bank balances and bank deposits
amounted to HK$2,367.9 million (2022: HK$1,567.2 million)
as at 31 March 2023. The total external borrowings (excluding
payables) was approximately HK$22,444.0 million (2022:
HK$22,711.0 million), and the Group’s net gearing ratio
(measured by net debts as a percentage to its total asset
value) was 39.3% (2022: 38.7%).

To finance its operations, the Group utilises cash flow
generated from business operations and maintains multiple
channels of funding sources including bank borrowings
and bond issuances. As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding
principal of the medium-term notes issued by the Group was
HK$1,247.3 million (2022: HKS$1,442.4 million), which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar at
fixed rates ranging from 4.4% to 4.9% per annum. The Board
considers that the Group has sufficient financial resources to
redeem the medium-term notes.

The Group’s bank balances and cash were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB”), Macau Pataca and
Sterling Pound (“Pound”). The Group is exposed to certain
foreign exchange risks caused by market fluctuations in RMB
and Pound as a small portion of the Group’s bank borrowings
were denominated in RMB and Pound. The Group closely
monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure and will
adopt appropriate measures to mitigate the currency risks, if
necessary.
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Assets Pledged

As at 31 March 2023, assets with carrying value of HK$37,056.8
million (2022: HK$40,516.3 million) were pledged as security
for banking facilities.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE

BOARD

During the Year, the Company appointed Mr. Yeung Ching
Loong, Alexander (“Mr. Alex Yeung”), as the Vice Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Alex Yeung will assume greater responsibility for
guiding the Group’s major long-term strategic development.
In addition, while maintaining the Group’s competitive edge,
Mr. Alex Yeung will steadily strengthen the Group’s core
businesses and management proposition, and develop new
and emerging businesses. The details of the appointment
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 May
2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total cost incurred for staff, including Directors’
emoluments, was HK$434.4 million (2022: HK$513.5 million)
during the Year. The number of staff decreased to 850 (2022:
1,208) as at 31 March 2023. Each employee’s remuneration
was determined in accordance with the individual’s
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and
other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or reward to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which is set out
in the section headed “Share Options Schemes” from pages
190 to 193 of this annual report.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Non-executive Director and Chairperson

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 67, a Non-executive Director of
the Company and the Chairperson of the Board. She joined
the Company in June 1999 and provides leadership for
the Board. Ms. Luk is also a non-executive director and the
chairperson of Emperor E Hotel, a subsidiary of the Company.
She is the mother of Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, an
Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. Ms.
Luk worked in the banking industry for almost 10 years. She
graduated from The University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce.
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Executive Director and Vice Chairman

YEUNG CHING LOONG, ALEXANDER, aged 37, joined the
Group in 2009 and has been appointed as Executive Director
of the Company and Vice Chairman of the Board in May
2018 and May 2022 respectively. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee and Nomination Committee as well as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yeung
has been involved in the management of the overall business
of the Group. Mr. Yeung is tasked to sharpen the Group’s
vision with an open approach and guide the Group’s major
long-term strategic development so as to achieve synergies
among its businesses. Further, with his young and dynamic
perspectives, Mr. Yeung has played an active role in promoting
shared corporate values within the Group, thereby bringing
together an elite team to the new heights. In the pursuit
of innovation while maintaining the Group’s competitive
edge, he has strengthened the Group’s core businesses and
management proposition and strives to explore and cater
to the needs of younger customers, and develop new and
emerging businesses. Mr. Yeung is a board member of the
Emperor Foundation, promoting voluntary work across
the Emperor Group. Mr. Yeung is also a member of the
14th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and a member of the 14th Political
Consultative Conference of Beijing City. He is particularly
concerned about youth affairs and has participated extensively
in public services in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
including Committee Member of All-China Youth Federation,
Vice Chairman of Beijing Youth Federation and Chairman
of Hong Kong United Youth Association, etc. Mr. Yeung is a
member of Culture Commission and a member of Hong Kong
Arts Development Council. Mr. Yeung is also an executive
director of Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491)
(“Emperor Culture”), a listed member of Emperor Group. He is
the son of Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon, a Non-executive Director
and the Chairperson of the Company.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Executive Directors and Managing Directors
WONG CHI FAIl, aged 67, the Managing Director of the
Company. He joined the Company in 1991 and has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development and overseeing the financial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30 years of finance
and management experience in different businesses ranging
from property investment and development, hotel and
hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, financial and
securities services, wholesaling and retailing of furniture,
cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as well as
media and publication. Mr. Wong is currently a director of
Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock
Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J”), Emperor Capital Group Limited
(Stock Code: 717) (“Emperor Capital Group”), Emperor
Culture and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code: 1711)
(“Ulferts”), all being listed members of Emperor Group. He is
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 60, the Managing Director of the Company. She joined
the Company in 1990 and has been responsible for the
Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development
as well as overseeing different functions within the Group.
Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. She has over 34 years of corporate management
experience in diversified businesses ranging from property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing
of watch and jewellery, financial and securities services,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment,
artiste management, as well as media and publication. Ms.
Fan is currently a director of Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J,
Emperor Capital Group, Emperor Culture and Ulferts, all
being listed members of Emperor Group. She is a lawyer by
profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
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Executive Director

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 67, joined the Company in 2005
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
February 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Cheung is currently responsible for overseeing the Group’s
property investment, development and management
businesses. During the period from 1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung
was an executive director of Henderson Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 97). He has over 40 years of experience in
professional general practice surveying as well as property
development and marketing in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
China and Canada. He graduated from University of London
with a Bachelor’s Degree (Hons) in Arts. He is a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAN HON PIU, aged 63, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1991 and is now a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences.
He also obtained the Certificate of Education and a Master’s
Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.

CHU KAR WING, aged 66, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2021. He is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He was an independent non-executive director of
Emperor Capital Group from 2010 to 2022. He has extensive
experience in the banking and finance sector for several well-
known corporations. Moreover, he is now the President of
Canada-China Culture and Education Association. Mr. Chu
holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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POON YAN WAI, aged 53, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2022. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. He is now the financial controller, company
secretary and an authorized representative of a Hong Kong
listed company and an independent non-executive director of
Dragon Mining Limited (Stock Code: 1712). Mr. Poon was an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Capital Group
from January 2014 to February 2023. He has over 20 years of
experience in auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy and a Master’s Degree in
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

BI-E 53 M202F8AEEZ T AARNA Z
BYIERTEST HALARRBERZESEREN
MR ZEgNMrEERTZEG KB -KE
AEE—MEBSLT AR ZYBEAE - Ra i
ERBEERRAREERBR AR (BRMDAE:

1712) 2 B FERTTEE )& L £ H2014F 1A
EAVF2ABEEEREEZBIIERNITES -

BHREZR S ESEEB0F &R - ELEER
EEREBEIRBGHEEST B RMERERE
TEBA-HABESHAMATEREE -

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEBMEERABRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &3k~ 21



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

N

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Adoption of New Chinese Name as Secondary

Name

Pursuant to special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2022 (2022 AGM”)
and approval by the Registrar of Companies of Bermuda on 19
August 2022, the new Chinese name of the Company “& 2
BB AR AR was adopted as the secondary name of the

Company.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 78 and 79 of this annual report. The dividends paid
during the Year and proposed to be paid for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HKS$0.005 per share for the Year
(2021/2022: HK$0.015 per share), amounting to approximately
HK$18.4 million (2021/2022: HKS55.2 million), was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the
Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.003 per share for the Year (2022: HKS$0.016 per share),
amounting to approximately HK$11.0 million (2022: HKS$58.8
million) to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 29 September 2023 (Friday) subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 19 September 2023 (Tuesday)
(“2023 AGM”).
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Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year, important events
occurred after the reporting period and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
6 to 16 of this report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 41 to 69 of this report and
notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Five-year Financial Summary on page 222. Discussion
on the Group’s environmental policy and performance,
key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022/2023 of
the Company.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at
a cost of approximately HK$33,096,000 and incurred costs of
approximately HK$814,000 on investment properties under
development.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$1,804,437,000 has been
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March
2023 is set out on pages 223 to 228 of this annual report.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of approximately HK$38,669,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on pages 82 and 83 of this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 15 August 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement were entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
amounting to HK$4,245,808,000 (2022: HKS$3,240,799,000),
of which HKS$11,033,000 has been proposed as a final
dividend for the Year. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account in the amount of HK$4,563,248,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hon Piu

Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 18 August 2022)

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (retired on 18 August 2022)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 17 to 21 of
this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”), Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”) and Mr. Chu Kar Wing
(“Mr. Chu”) shall retire by rotation at the 2023 AGM and, being
eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2023 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the
directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against the
Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment
with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity
of employment conditions across the Group and applicability
of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fee
are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Securities

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EIHL
Securities Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(the “Shares”)

EERBEITRAEBZRESER

F2023F3A31H  EERARAIHZESITHAR
RARA MEEREE (ER2R (BHEREER
i) (175 R HE BRI FEXVER) Z Bfn -
B REREE T A AR RREES &
B IRGIFEIS2EEF 2 B M Frrc sz #am M
KRB HRBARA A (EFETEFR
SR EST R ([REBRESTRI)BERTT
MEARRE LBz Ewm RBIT

(a) RARF 2B
AATEREHEOOLETZLBR (TR
#1)

Ms. Semon Luk Interest of spouse 2,747,611,223 74.71
B2z + B (B 4 2 (Note)
(K7t)
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Eligible beneficiary of 2,747,611,223 74.71
Alexander (“Mr. Alex Yeung”) a private discretionary trust (Note)
BEEELAE ([1HkE]) FLARBEIEZEEBEHEA (K7t)
Ms. Vanessa Fan Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
BRI EmREAA
Note: BaE -

These Shares were held by Emperor International Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”). AY
Holdings is held by First Trust Services AG (“First Trust Services”) in
trust for a private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”), as founder of the private discretionary
trust, had deemed interests in the said Shares held by Emperor
International Group Holdings. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr.
Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same
Shares whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also had deemed interests in the
same Shares by virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
such private discretionary trust.

ZERNBREREEEERARAR ([HE2H
BEEZERDFEE EABIREXEZERERA
AI(BZREEERZ2EAMBRA -15ZK
B SRR fFirst Trust Services AG ([First Trust
Services | )& - M First Trust Services/& 15 % i
HE(BETDRIZAABBERZZEA
BETEALARBERZAZA BRAEAR
SRR EEERAIEE LMRMD 2  EREL
TARGETZRE  BERARARRRMDEER -
MERGEERZLAMBEIEZEERT®A
2 HUBEWAR AEA BRI E -
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(b) Long position interests in the Company’s

associated corporations

(b) RANRBIEEEE 2 i B #2

N2
AN
ﬂIL

Ms. Semon Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse 851,353,645 71.63
BEdr+ HEREREE LB s
Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,298,630,000 63.41
HREEERE -RAE-
Emperor Culture - Ditto - 2,371,313,094 73.80
REXLEXE -RE-
Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00
Bt -RE-
Mr. Alex Yeung peror E Hotel Eligible beneficiary of 851,353,645 71.63
BRE * BREEE a private d|scret|onary trust
MWARBERIZAERKEA
Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,298,630,000 63.41
REHERE -RE-
Emperor Culture - Ditto - 2,371,313,094 73.80
REXLEX -RE-
Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00
Bt -RE-

Note:

Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts are
companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These
shares were ultimately owned by the respective private discretionary
trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being
the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests
in the same shares whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also had deemed interests
in the same shares by virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries
of such private discretionary trusts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Particulars
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. No option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2023, the following persons or
corporations (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests
and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

BERODIERI 2LZH

B £ 3P 2 BE AR AT BISN  IMANF R R AR SR
EAERERE ARA] BREAZERAR KB
REHFARMBARRETEEMRE BUEE
EXARFZESTHRAERBE 2 BB
TR F Z A& B U AN~ B S ] H A )% B
H A0 oK B A R T JE BRI 2 o

Hib A TR RBERD 2%

=

F2023F3A318 IR EEK AR A HRSIT
BMABFTA BRESERARRRSITHRABIN

THA L 80EB R B 3 A8 B8 AR 10 P R A s
BRAERWEERELENIERES R BE K
FI36IEBFE 2B LM ([EEEDM]) %
mMRBIAT

RIAD 2 4 B

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
15X E R REEGEES 2

First Trust Services
LARBREIEZIETEA

Dr. Albert Yeung

HiEL FLABIBEFE 2RI A
Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Semon Luk

and Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interests as those set out under
Section (a) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

Trustee of a private discretionary trust

Founder of a private discretionary trust
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
The Group is engaged principally in property investments,
property development and hospitality in Greater China and
overseas. As at 31 March 2023, the following Directors were
considered to have interests in other activities that compete
or were likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the said
core business of the Group, all within meaning of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”™):

i. Ms. Semon Luk, being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung
(founder of a private discretionary trust), is deemed to
be interested in various companies under such trust
which are also engaging in property investment and
development. As Ms. Semon Luk is not involved in the
Company’s day-to-day operations and management, the
Group is capable on its business independently of and
at arm’s length from such disclosed deemed competing
business;

ii. Mr. Alex Yeung, being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
the aforesaid trust, is deemed to be interested in various
companies under such trust which are also engaged
in property investment and development. He also
had shareholding and directorship interests in private
companies engaged in property investment. Given that
(a) he cannot control the boards of the Company and the
companies under such trust; and (b) size and dominance
of the portfolio of the Group, the Directors considered the
Group’s interests are adequately safeguarded;

iii. Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) and his associates
and Ms. Vanessa Fan had shareholding and directorship
interests in private companies engaged in property
investment business. In light of the size and dominance
of the portfolio of the Group, such disclosed deemed
competing business is considered immaterial; and

iv. Mr. Cheung Ping Keung (“Mr. Donald Cheung”) had
directorship role in several companies under the aforesaid
trust which are also engaged in property investment and
development business. Given that he cannot control the
boards of the Company and those several companies, the
Directors considered the Group’ s interests are adequately
safeguarded.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Connected

Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in certain transactions:

A. Continuing Connected Transaction - Master
Agreement on purchase of products and
consultancy services (“Master Furniture
Agreement”)

Date: 29 July 2020

Parties:
(1) The Company

(2) Ulferts
Term: From 29 July 2020 to 31 March 2023

Nature:

Ulferts and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Ulferts Group”) shall (i) sell furniture and accessories
products; (ii) sell furniture coupons; and (iii) provide
furniture procurement consultancy services and such
other types of ancillary services to members of the Group
for projects and investments or for own consumption in
the ordinary course of business of the Group.

BO HEXBEEALQF LHES

RAFER AR REEANBEARBERE -
HEHBOARB 2 LHES-

BrBER
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RAFE AEEBEARRBEAL (EER
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HHi: 202097 H29H
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Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and Ulferts were indirectly controlled
by the respective private discretionary trusts which
are both founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As such, under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Ulferts was a deemed
connected person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and
Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being respectively an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiary of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling Ulferts.

Announcement: 29 July 2020

Aggregate amounts:

During the Year, the amounts of HK$1,536,000 was
paid to Ulferts Group for the purchase of furniture and
obtaining consultancy services under the Master Furniture
Agreement.

Remark:

With the upcoming expiration of the Master Furniture
Agreement, the Company entered into new master
agreement with Ulferts on 3 March 2023. Details of the
renewal are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 3 March 2023.

B. Continuing Connected Transactions - 2020
Master Leasing Agreements

Date: 3 December 2020

Parties:
(1) Agreement 1: The Company and Emperor W&J

(2) Agreement 2: The Company and Emperor Capital
Group

(3) Agreement 3: The Company and Emperor Culture
(4) Agreement 4: The Company and Ulferts

(5) Agreement 5: Emperor E Hotel and Emperor W&J

(6) Agreement 6: The Company and (1) New Media Group
Investment Limited (struck off on 1 July 2022); (2)
Albert Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited; (3)
Albert Yeung Financial Holdings Limited; (4) Albert
Yeung Investments Holdings Limited; and (5) Albert
Yeung Management Company Limited (collectively
referred to as the “Non-Listed Group”)
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(the above counter-parties are collectively as “members
of Emperor Group” and Agreement 1 to Agreement 6 are
collectively as “2020 MLAS”)

Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

Nature:

Each of 2020 MLAs sets out the framework of the terms
governing all existing and future tenancy/licensing
transaction(s) (“Tenancy Transactions”) regarding leasing
of certain office properties or other properties (including
retail shop, warehouses, carpark spaces, signage or
signboard spaces) to the members of Emperor Group with
aggregate tenancy annual caps being set for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 March 2022, 2023 and
2024 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2020 MLAs, relevant members of the
Group and any member(s) of Emperor Group (as the
case may be) may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”). The
terms of each of Definitive Leasing Agreements shall
be on normal commercial terms or on terms which are
no less favorable available to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties. The terms and
rental shall be subject to arm’s length negotiation and
be determined based on the condition of the properties
and with reference to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area and permitted
use.

Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and the members of Emperor Group
were all indirectly controlled by private discretionary
trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As
such, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, each of
the members of the Emperor Group was a deemed
connected person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and
Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being respectively an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiary of the private
discretionary trusts controlling the members of Emperor
Group.

Announcement: 3 December 2020
Circular: 24 December 2020

Independent Shareholders’ approval: 2 February 2021
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Aggregate amounts:

During the Year, the aggregate amounts of the rental
income of the Tenancy Transactions from the relevant
members of the Emperor Group were as follows:

e
RAFEE REEXEESEHRKE AR
MzHEXZHEEBALRENT:

Emperor W&J REFBRAKE
Emperor Capital Group REBEAREH
Emperor Culture REXLESE
Ulferts Bk
Non-Listed Group FEMEE

C. Continuing Connected Transaction - Service
Agreements (“Service Agreement(s)”) in
relation to the operation of Grand Emperor
Hotel

Date:

1st Service Agreement:

19 February 2010 and 4 May 2020 (for an addendum)
(expired on 26 June 2022)

2nd Service Agreement:
30 December 2022

Parties and connected relationship:

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel which is
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

(2) SJM Resorts, S.A. (“SIM”), a company incorporated
in Macau, which is principally engaged in gaming
business in Macau and is one of the concessionaires/
sub-concessionaires licensed to carry on casino
operations in Macau. SJM has 19.99% equity interest
in Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck United”), an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
E Hotel, and is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Term:

1st Service Agreement:

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence
of certain events, including the expiration of SJM’s
gambling license under the Gaming Concession Contract
on 31 March 2020 or any earlier termination thereof or
winding up or cessation of business of either party. As
supplemented by the addendum, the term of the 1st
Service Agreement is extended from 1 April 2020 to 26
June 2022.

2nd Service Agreement:
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025

Nature:

The provision of services including management services
and promotion services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to
the operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel whereas Tin
Hou and/or the nominated junket promoter (a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned by Emperor
E Hotel) shall be entitled to a share of the gross win
and gross loss in respect of the monthly operating
performance of the gaming area of the Grand Emperor
Hotel and bear all necessary operational expenses in
relation to the operation of the gaming area.

Announcements:
13 May 2020, 1 April 2022 (Emperor E Hotel), 30 December
2022 and 21 February 2023

Receipt:

During the Year, the Group’s receipt amounts under the
1st Service Agreement and the 2nd Service Agreement
were HKS$24,382,000 and HK$63,359,000 respectively.

Continuing Connected Transaction -
Agreement in relation to hotel rooms,
catering and ancillary services (“Hotel Rooms
and Catering Agreement”) for the gaming
operation run by SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel

Date: 15 June 2022

Parties and connected relationship:
(1) Tin Hou

(2) SIM

Term: From 27 June 2022 to 31 December 2022

HARR -

— 1 BR TS W%
H2009F10A1HEZEH :F$1¢ HEIRER
Ik BRERRRBELEHESRIETZ
T@ 48 E 20203 A31H E m k% 18

R E AR SRR AR
Jt%%% RETRMET £ —DRBHE
2 BABR B2020F4 A1H & & £202256 A
26H -

E RIS
H2023F1H1H £2025%12 A31H

HE:
%%rﬂiﬁﬁﬁkm,\/;F%i%wﬁﬁi@ﬁé@%
1BRRTS (DR ERRG RE ERE) -
AER/LEEZEER EPMMJUEU%%
SZZBEEKBAR Eﬁﬁi%@#“@ﬁézé
BE)BERES B RERLBIEIEY
EH%@%iﬁzﬁ@ﬁ A YN 5
B UEAELEBYR —MEEE
FS e

A
2020%F5H13H ~2022F4 H1H (& 2R 4
BJE) 2022912 A30H 202342 H21H

W3

RAFE AEBRE—DRS B ZH
EBE-OREHEETZRKEZD A A
24,382,000/% 7T }.63,359,0007% 7T ©

FrERIER S — ﬁf’ﬂ%i@@ﬁﬁ&?ﬁ@
FIR 2R E 2 ENBERER
RAHEEZE /iﬁA& L i 1A 7
EET;EOWN 5 ((BEEERERR
=53

HE 202266 H15H

TRFRBEEREZ:
(1) X=
() ER

HARR : §2022F6 H27H £2022%12A31H

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEEBREBEBRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &% 35



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

Nature:

The provision of hotel rooms, food & beverage and other
ancillary services by Tin Hou to SJM for the gaming
operation run by SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel.

Announcement: 15 June 2022

Fees received:
During the Year, all the fees from SJM under the
Hotel Rooms and Catering Agreement amounted to
HK$13,690,000.

Discloseable Transaction - Sale and Purchase
Agreement in relation to the disposal of entire
interest in Ever Explore Holdings Limited
(“Ever Explore™)

Date: 15 July 2022

Parties:
(1) Emperor Property Development Limited (“EPDL”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

(2) Poly Keen International Limited (“Poly Keen”), an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor E
Hotel

Nature:

EPDL entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Poly Keen, pursuant to which EPDL conditionally agreed
to sell and Poly Keen conditionally agreed to acquire
(a) the entire equity interest of Ever Explore, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which indirectly
holds the tower situated at No.22 Davis Street, Hong Kong
and (b) the shareholder’s loan due by Ever Explore to
EPDL at a consideration of HK$490,000,000.

Directors’ interest:

Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest
in the transaction by virtue of being respectively an
associate of the eligible beneficiaries and an eligible
beneficiary of the private discretionary trust which
ultimately owns effective interest in Emperor E Hotel as to
approximately 53.13%.

Announcement: 15 July 2022

Completion: 27 September 2022
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F. Major and Connected Transaction - Sale

and Purchase Agreement in relation to the
disposal of entire interest in Famous Gain
Investments Limited (“Famous Gain”)

Date: 6 January 2023

Parties:
(1) Emperor Property Investment Limited (“EPIL”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

(2) New Global Developments Limited (“New
Global”), which is indirectly controlled by a private
discretionary trust as set up by Dr. Albert Yeung

Nature:

EPIL entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
New Global, pursuant to which EPIL conditionally agreed
to sell and New Global conditionally agreed to acquire
(a) the entire equity interest of Famous Gain, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which indirectly
holds a property, Lane Up, located at No.4 Kin Fat Lane,
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong and (b) the entire
amount of the loan due by Famous Gain to EPIL at a
consideration of HK$1,141,221,000.

Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and New Global were indirectly controlled
by respective private discretionary trusts which are both
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As such, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, New Global was a deemed
connected person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and
Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest in the transaction by
virtue of being respectively an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiary of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling New Global.

Announcement: 6 January 2023
Circular: 10 February 2023
Independent Shareholders’ approval: 13 March 2023

Completion: 16 March 2023
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as “Rental income from related companies” (under
the 2020 MLAs) and “Purchase of furniture from a related
company” (under the Master Furniture Agreement) in the
amount of HKS$110,628,000 and HKS$1,536,000 respectively
for the Year as shown in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements which constituted continuing connected
transactions (“CCTs”) of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, all other transactions as shown in that note
are connected transactions exempted from announcement,
reporting, annual review, and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the above non-exempt connected transactions.

Independent Auditor’s Letter on Non-Exempt

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
(“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The independent auditor has issued an unqualified
conclusions in respect of the non-exempt CCTs disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive

Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) had
reviewed the non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and
have confirmed that these transactions have been entered
into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of its business of the
Group;

(2) on normal or better commercial terms (as the case may
be); and

(3) according to the respective agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 26% of the
Group’s total revenue. The largest customer accounted for 8%
to the Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 22% of the Group’s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 7% to the
Group’s total purchases and services received.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital),
had a beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the
above major customers or suppliers of the Group.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Independent Auditor

A resolution will be submitted at the 2023 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules so as to having effective application of the
principles of good corporate governance. During the Year, the
Company had fully complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate
culture, focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity,
excellence in products and services, people first and positivity,
which is underpinned by its purpose and values that enable
employees at all levels of the Group to thrive and meet their
full potentials by acting in a lawful, ethical and responsible
manner that allows the Company to deliver sustainable long-
term performance and operate in a way that benefits society
and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they
are integrated throughout the Company’s operational
practices, workplace policies and practices and stakeholder
relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and
shaping the corporate culture of the Company, as well as
defining the purpose, values and strategic direction of the
Group, which are under review by the Board. Taking into
account the corporate culture is reflected in various contexts,
such as workforce engagement, employee retention and
training, legal and regulatory compliance, staff safety,
wellbeing and support, the culture, purpose, value and
strategy of the Group are aligned with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance
of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprised eight Directors, with one Non-
executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the Board,
four Executive Directors and three INEDs. Names and other
biographical details of the members of the Board are set
out on pages 17 to 21 of this report under the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” section. All of them
possess the skills, experience and expertise either in the same
industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group.

Ms. Semon Luk is the mother of Mr. Alex Yeung. Save as
disclosed above, there are no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other materials/relevant
relations) among Directors.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the following mechanisms were established:

e sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

* no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the chief
executives ensure that there is a balance of power and
authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent
views on various issues concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting
out the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to the business
nature of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a wide range of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time. The merits and contribution that will bring to
the Board for any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in
the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the
Board as at 31 March 2023 is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors

BEEAH
8
7
6
Male
5
NED =
FFHTES
4
3
ED
2 HITES
1
0
Designation Gender
B #1 451
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ARBTRMEEE L ITTCBR - B P IR
BEARAEBUEE 29BN RE - EREZT
BHERSTLESEN N A - EETEFINK
BHAR ARRERZETEEEEEESZ T
b BFEETRMER  Fik - UERBEER
ik BXRLR R NBMRBEFE ULE
MR SRR BRI EMRAE-
HRNEEBREENESHNEAERLRZER
EEZREACGREZTEHTRZEBERERIT
# T AR - B EERIA R R MR XK R A
BREEEE M@ KRRk E T -

BREESERRBRHEER HEMZ TF
KR EREFENZITILES - 1020235F3A31
B &#FgnsncdatidmT:

(i) EsEdEm - MB2MH- FikofhRER®E
F&

6-10
41-60
0-5
Age Group Length of Service
FER AR (No. of years)

RIBEE (F)
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

(i) ESHRERER

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience

Business Management EBER
Legal/Regulatory RS EE
Financial & Accounting g st

Strategic Planning & Risk Management

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with
two female directors out of eight (25%). During the Year,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board
approved a target of having no less than 25% female directors
on the Board. The Nomination Committee was of the view that
the current gender diversity of the Board was appropriate,
balanced and maintaining the target set. Therefore, no
timeline or plan was proposed for further enhancing the
gender diversity target of the Board for the time being.
The Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the
composition of the Board to maintain diversity.

As at 31 March 2023, our total workforce comprised of
53% female and 47% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 61% female and 39% male. The current gender
diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into account the
business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules. The INEDs
had provided their confirmation of independence to the
Company. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to
be independent with reference to the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Process EECRF

Besides regular Board meetings are held during the Year, BRTHEAFEANBHRNTHESTZSEIIN VE
additional Board meetings, or meetings of Board committees RAMBEINEZCCH AEFCRUNES
established by the Board to consider specific matters, were BZEE€€H UERFETEE-

convened, when necessary.

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the ZAFEEEHFSZ 2 BERHINT
Year is set out below:

Non-executive Director F4ES
Ms, Luk Siu Man, Semon BEphext 10/10(C) - - - - - 22
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander BHRELE 10/10 - - 11 - 28/28 22
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEEELE 10/10 - 11 - - 28/28 (C) 22
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa EEERL 10/10 - - - 1/1(C) 28/28 22
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung EOE i 10/10 - - - - 28/28 22
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Hon Piu BEERE 10/10 33 1/1(C) - 11 - 22
Mr. Chu Kar Wing RERRE 10/10 33 11 1/1(C) - - 22
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 1) ECBREE(WHL 7 22(C) - - - - 11
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Note 2) BERLE (M) 33 11(0) - 11 11 - 11
Total number of meetings held BOEEBY 10 3 1 1 1 28 2

C: Chairperson/Chairman of the Board/Committee CEEg LEBSXF

Notes: Bt

1. Mr. Poon Yan Wai (“Mr. Andy Poon”) was appointed as Director atthe 1. E{CEHRE(NELRL])ER0NFREBERS

2022 AGM TEZEHARES
2. Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary retired as Director at the 2022 AGM 2. EEBAEEERDFRIFAFAG LETES
B AL

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT ‘
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance
with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company has received confirmation from each director
that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company during the Year. Directors have also
disclosed to the Company the changes, if any, in the number
and nature of offices they hold in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitment, including
the identity of the public companies or organizations and an
indication of the time involved.

Ms. Semon Luk acts as the Chairperson of the Board
who provides leadership to the Board. The day-to-day
management of the Group is delegated by the Board to the
Managing Directors, Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan who
are responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development. The segregation of duties make the
Board and the operation of the Group function effectively.

Ms. Semon Luk sets the agenda for the Board and ensures
that members of the Board receive accurate, timely and clear
information, and that matters to be taken into consideration
are given their due weight, so that sound decisions can be
made. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairperson ensures that the Board properly exercises its
powers, holds its meetings and implements procedures in
compliance with all rules and requirements, and full and
proper records are maintained.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution and he/
she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the Board
meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for
each scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to the
services of the Company Secretary and her team, and may
take independent professional advice upon request, at the
Company’s expense.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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Induction and Training for Directors

The Company provides Directors with regular updates on
changes to and developments of the Group’s business, and
on the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to help
them make informed decisions and discharge their duties
and responsibilities as Directors. Such materials will also be
provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their
appointment as Directors.

During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company:

EEMEREMNEFF
ARRIRARBEXRGNES NER U EHE
ERBIBENER RAIMRPINEHERTE
HmEFRESHNER LIRS EL MIFR
ELBOTHEERESTNBBIBE HIEFE
REREFRR TREHANEBRHZSUNIES
JAFNE R

RAFE FEFHE2EKEEXER B8
HEBBATEIEZE®E HES BIEY
K ABRMEHRE 2 ME MR e RA
NGIbe ST ERE

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
&t

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
BHEEEE

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SER L+

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung
SRR 98 ST A

Mr. Chan Hon Piu
FRIZIR A

Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 18 August 2022)
EICREE (R2022F8H18H EZ(F)

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (retired on 18 August 2022)
ERALE (R2022F8H18H R E)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZEREESRAR

(1) corporate governance
EER

(2) finance

B %5

(3) industry specific
SE 2L

(4) regulatory

;2
EE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees
are given to the respective members of these Committees.

1. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive
Directors namely Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Alex Yeung, Ms. Vanessa Fan and
Mr. Donald Cheung. It has all powers and authorities
of the Board except the following major matters as set
out in a “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board”:

determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of announcements for
notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other
than those transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved
by the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be))
under the Listing Rules; and

approving major capital restructuring and issue of
new securities of the Company.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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2. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Andy Poon (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chan
Hon Piu (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. Chu.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and principles
adopted by the Group. When reviewing the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 (“Previous Year”) and the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2022 before submission to the Board
for consideration, the Audit Committee has focused
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting
policies and practices, but also on the compliance
with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and relevant legal requirements;

reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

performed annual review of the non-exempted
continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the Previous Year;

recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at 2022 AGM,;

reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

2.

BEREBS (KR2004F9H23H K7 )
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DRRERE(REE®XR) REFEE
(TBREAE ) MRSELE -
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NARSCR 9N B P NN SN
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o
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EeEE B2 H E202293A31H 1EH
BFEE(EFE)2FERAVBR
R NMEE202299A308 1E N E A 2
HR A B SRR o ERE M A 1R
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vi. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the independent auditor and
approved its engagement;

vii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
Company’s environmental, social, and governance
(“ESG”) performance and reporting; and

viii. reviewed and recommended to the Board on
the adoption of new anti-corruption policy and
procedures and the revised whistle-blowing policy
and reporting procedures for the Company.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005)
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr.
Chu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan Wong, being the
Managing Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/
package of the Executive Directors and senior
management and recommended the Board to
approve their specific packages; and

iii. reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the
Year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)
The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chu (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr.
Andy Poon, both being INEDs, and Mr. Alex Yeung, being
an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board
on nomination, appointment and re-appointment
of Directors, and Board succession pursuant to the
Nomination Policy adopted by the Company.

The Nomination Policy of the Group aims at assisting the
Nomination Committee in identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria
and the nomination procedures for (i) nominating new
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
proposed for election or re-election at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider
appropriate and evaluate them by considering various
factors, including their professional expertise, industry
and business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of
interest with the Group (if any) and independence (for
INEDs). The Committee will then make recommendation
for suitable candidates to the Board for consideration
of appointment. In case of reappointment of existing
Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
(“AGM”), the Committee will review retirement by rotation
of Directors and make recommendations to the Board
accordingly.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board,;

ii. reviewed the revised Board Diversity Policy,
Nomination Policy and terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee and made recommendations
to the Board for approval;

iii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iv. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

v. made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors and nomination of new Director
at the 2022 AGM; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the gender
diversity target at Board level.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on

28 March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan
(Chairperson of the Committee), being the Managing
Director, Mr. Andy Poon and Mr. Chan, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the website of the Company.
The primary duties of the CG Committee are (a)
developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and
making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to Directors and relevant employees
of the Group regarding dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said codes of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of
the Company, had duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions on no
less exacting terms than the required standards set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Having
made specific enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings as
set out in EIHL Securities Code throughout the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board
with monthly updates on internal consolidated financial
statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable and ensured the
consolidated financial statements were prepared on a “going
concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary) and showed a true view of the state of affairs
of the Group for the Year. The management had provided
sufficient explanation and information to the Board on the
consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The independent auditor of the
Company had made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies
and procedures within the Group are with the primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations
on a basic framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and
(ii) risk management functions in its principal subsidiaries for
the Year as follows:

A. Goals and Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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The key objectives of the Control Systems include:

safeguarding assets

ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports

promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws

promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations

B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set
out as follows:

The Board
e responsible for the Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

e oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of Audit Committee;

e ensure presence of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

e determine the nature and extent of significant
risk (including the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) risks) that the Group
is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

e review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, and the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function as well as those relating to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting;

e review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment;
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consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by internal or external
auditors and make recommendations to the
Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
by the auditors.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and
report to the Audit Committee for its review.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design and implement the Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

monitor the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out audit checking on sample basis and
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Control Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls;

alert the management on the audit findings
or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions
to enhance the internal controls of the Group;
and

report results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on regular basis.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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(2) Operational Controls
The management is responsible for analyzing the
control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein as
follows:

Vi.

Approach taken: The management regularly
review and update the operational policies
and workflow procedures to identify areas for
improvement and/or amendments to cope with
changes as necessary. The scope and findings of
review on the Control Systems will be reported
to the Audit Committee regularly;

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines established to safeguard the assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; ensure
consistency of operational requirements; and
ensuring proper compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations;

Management information system installed to
control the business activities and transactions
provide close tracking of various prescribed
inputs and outputs. It also provides audit
trails in the authorization system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorization
are clearly identified and adequate records can
be maintained in the system;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis. Variance reports are prepared
based on actual results and approved budgets;

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance coverage
on various assets is periodically reviewed by
the management for sufficient coverage, and
to ensure compliance with the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies. Surprise
physical count of cash chips and client deposits
held in casino and coupons for casino are
performed by Internal Audit Department to
safeguard the assets;

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming
business segments to ensure the service quality;
and questionnaires are provided in different
outlets to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our
service improvement;
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vii. Control on leasing of properties: Policies and vii.h HEYEZER BHEEREE
checklists on control of rental revenue, lease wMEmMs Sl A BEK
terms and conditions, appointment of property RERGY ZEMEERRBEER
management and leasing agent, asset security BEETE MEEENZ B
and maintenance review are in place for leasing EBRRIBEBE
of Group’s premises;

viii. Control on property sale: Checklist and viii. VIEHEZEEZE BEEMELTF
breakdown on control of property for sale and BEEFEEEGERESE KA
stock on hand are in place; and RS

ix. Control on acquisition of properties: Internal ix. WEBWEZEZ OREWEDE
procedures on the acquisition of properties are BB T
in place.

(3) Financial Controls (3) BragEEs:E

i. Policies, systems and procedures are in i BIEBE ZHERERF  AERRKR
place to ensure proper accounting records are FEZRMADE  EiE LER D
maintained which provide complete, accurate BT REBRER 2 85Ttk
and timely accounting and management
information;

ii. Financial management report are provided i. MESLKSRAEEABRHGE
to director and senior management which give BEERE URETHBYHSEER
a balanced and understandable assessment of ZRBEGBARAREREFES
various businesses performance and financial IR R 2 7T AR
position in sufficient details;

iii. Annual financial budget and quarterly i. RELRTHENFERBERAER
forecasts are prepared and reviewed regularly ZERER UARERBDE BREUE (] 45
to ensure any actions can be taken promptly to B+ R T A AR R B T 35 2 A A 2
mitigate any changes in conditions and market Eak
accordingly;

iv. Annual audit by external auditor is carried iv. HMEZBEETEEBERUR
out to ensure that the consolidated financial HERE M B HmE RER ARz
statements and individual companies’ financial BHRERBEARGTER REEH
statements are prepared in accordance with SRR MBRARRERGER
generally accepted accounting principles, the &4
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

v. 24 months cash flow rolling forecast is v. THEHN4ERREREREHE

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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(4) Compliance Controls
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and procedures on disclosure
of inside information to ensure, with the
assistance of an internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes
to the knowledge of any one or more officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention
of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination
of inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board in order to ensure the Group is in
compliance with all the applicable laws, statutes,
rules and regulations; and to keep up on any
legal developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Group and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide
reporting channels and guidance for employees
and related third parties who have business
dealings with the Group (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Company. The Audit
Committee, delegated by the Board, shall ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of any concerns
raised, appropriate follow-up actions are taken
and other recommendations are provided, if
thinks fit;
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v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline
the Group’s zero-tolerance stance against
bribery and corruption and assists employees
in recognising circumstances that may lead
to or give the appearance of being involved
in corruption or unethical business conduct,
so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly
prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance where
necessary or report any reasonably suspected
case of corruption or any attempts thereof, to the
management through an appropriate reporting
channel; and

vi. Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedure is established
to set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing
of terrorism. It provides guideline to combat
money laundering and terrorist and help the
Group’s employees identify and assess clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors/
transactions/activities of high risk of money
laundering, terrorist financing or other financial
crime and take appropriate measures and
actions.

Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.

C. Risk Management

(1) Risk Management Process
The risk management process includes risk
identification, evaluation, management and control
measures.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risk are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact
of the risk on the Group’s financial results; (ii) the
frequency and probability that the risk will occur.
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(2)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:-

- Risk elimination - the management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

- Risk mitigation - the management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood and impact of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

- Risk control and monitoring - it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not; accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly
documented as part of the effort to manage
risks.

- Risk retention - the management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and
the risk will continue to be monitored as part
of the risk management program to ensure the
level of risk does not increase to an unacceptable
level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective key strategies/control measures as set out
below:

Changes in social, economic and political

environment:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA tensions, global
economic slowdown, increase/decrease in money
supply and foreign exchange issue would have impact
on HK property market. Any more adverse change in
one of the above situations would have significant
impact to the Group’s business.

e Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China and Hong Kong or
global economy and adjust business strategic
plans to cope with these changes.

(2)
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Occurrence of disaster events:

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 pandemic or
SARS, could adversely effect on the Group’s business
and operations.

Ensure all safety measures as required by
the Hong Kong SAR Government are fully
implemented;

Contingency Management Committee is
established to take lead on all necessary
precautions and closely monitor the situations
and development;

Implement business continuity plans which
include “Work from Home”, “Flexible Working
Hours” and “Split-team Arrangements”; and

Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and a
quick reference guide for departments to use in
order to respond and recover from the disasters.

Investment strategy:

Acquisitions of land, investment and development
properties carry inherent risks related to significant
amount of money, missing targets, poor project
management, design, development and sales or
wrong investment decision would have significant
adverse impact on Group’s overall business.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR

Regularly review investment and business
strategy against overall business environment;

Investment decisions are subject to a robust
risk and return evaluation by executives and
supervision by the Finance and Investment
Committee;

Potential projects are subject to an extensive
due diligence review by in-house specialists
and external advisers. Offers are only made for
projects with reasonable return or of strategic
value;

Ensure experienced managers are in place to
manage projects; and

Completed projects are subject to continual
monitoring and internal audit, with regular
performance reports to the Management.
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Rental income sustainability:

Loss of major tenants or rental reduction either due
to changes in tenants’ own strategy, market situation
or competition among landlords would adversely
impact the revenue of the Group.

Closely monitor any adverse market conditions,
work with tenants to mitigate the impact;

Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;

Maintain high property marketability by timely
renovation;

Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our
existing or new properties from time to time.
Custom-made arrangements are offered where
appropriate to cater to their specific needs;

Propose short term lease restructure for quality
tenants in order to help sustain their businesses;
and

Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the
undesirable tenants.

Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of our Group revenues is
derived from Hong Kong. Unfavourable events in
the city could disrupt our overall business, lower our
revenues and impact the valuation of our assets.

The Group has a diversified portfolio of
investment properties across Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland cities and London, the United
Kingdom. The Group will keep sourcing quality
investment properties around the world; and

The Group has expanded its investment property
portfolio to offices sector in recent years. This
enables the Group to mitigate the undesirable
impact on retail sector.
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Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land
policies in different markets. Acquisition of land in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas markets may
be subject to various regulatory requirements and
restrictions and competition from other developers.
Future growth prospects of property development
business are therefore affected by the availability
and price levels of prime sites in Hong Kong, the PRC
and other overseas markets. Failure to manage cost
of construction labour and materials could adversely
affect the competitiveness of property development
business.

e Participate actively in the land auctions;

e Regularly update the Group’s long/medium/
short term strategic plans on property
development business;

e |Implement well established policies in our
tendering policy and system;

e Monitor project costs closely with strict adherent
to budget;

e Extract advantage from economies of scale based
on our portfolio size, if possible;

e Monitor closely the labour cost and materials
stock/price trends in the industry before
awarding building contracts; and

e Investment through JV structure to reduce the
risk.

Cyber security:

Loss of data and leakage of confidential information
are the largest costs from cyber-crime that the
Company is facing. The cost of recovering from cyber
attacks, including reputational damage, where the
trust in a company decreases and their brand loses
value, is considerable.

e |T Security Committee established to review the

Group’s IT security policies and risks assessment;

e The Company’s IT infrastructure are regularly
scanned and patched;
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Risky external IP addresses are blocked;

All servers and user computers are equipped
with antivirus or endpoint protection;

Emails are filtered for spam and malware;
Password control and user access to the systems
and network elements are regularly updated and

reviewed; and

System backup facilities provide addition layers
of protections.

Cost and availability of finance:

Failure to ensure the availability of funds to meet
our capital expenditure requirements to develop,
maintain and renovate our properties could limit our
ability to remain competitive.

Stringent cash and treasury management and
allocation of funds and resources;

Closely monitor financial market and benchmark
borrowing costs;

Maintain diversified sources of financing; and

Maintain good relation with bankers.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation from
the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee and the
Board had reviewed the Control Systems and were
not aware of any significant issues that would have an
adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas of
the Control Systems.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and
final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of factors as stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not
limited to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda
and the Bye-laws of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy
(available on the website of the Company) sets out the
strategies, practices and commitment for maintaining
ongoing and effective communication with Shareholders,
both individual and institutional, and in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large so as to
enable them to engage with the Company and exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner. To this end, the
Company strives to ensure that all Shareholders have ready
and timely access to all publicly available information of the
Group. To facilitate communication with Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company has established various
communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding of AGMs
and special general meetings (“SGMs”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii)
the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim
reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules
and press releases providing updated information of the
Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the Group
on the Company’s website at https://www.Emperorint.com;
(iv) the holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and
(v) meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis and
participating in investor road show and sector conference.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of this annual report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for such substantially separate issues, including re-election
of retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders
for AGM is sent to Shareholders at least 21 clear days before
the meeting and notices of other general meetings are sent to
Shareholders at least 14 clear days before the meetings. The
Chairperson of the Board and the chairperson/members of the
Board Committees, appropriate management executives and
the independent auditor are available to attend the general
meetings to answer questions from the Shareholders. With the
assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting explains the procedures for conducting a poll voting
during the meeting.

The Company shall review the Shareholders” Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and
effectiveness. Having considered the multiple channels
of communication and engagement in place, the Board is
satisfied that the Shareholders® Communication Policy has
been properly in place during the Year and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-
laws of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (a) must state the object(s)
of the meeting; and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the
Company Secretary, and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such
requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to
all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened
as requested.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than 2 months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the Shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less
than 100 of such Shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists
must be deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that an
AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

ENQUIRIES FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing
Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda; (ii) providing the
flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of general
meetings (including allowing the general meetings to be held
as a hybrid meeting or an electronic meeting in addition to a
physical meeting); and (iii) making other consequential and
housekeeping amendments, the Company adopted a new
bye-laws (the “New Bye-laws”) during the Year. The adoption
of the New Bye-laws was approved by the Shareholders at
2022 AGM. The New Bye-laws is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu (“Deloitte”) is
independent and had recommended the Board to propose
its re-appointment as the Company’s independent auditor
at the 2023 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte had rendered
audit services and non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:
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Audit services = RS 8,290
Non-audit services BRI 600
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of disposal of subsidiaries
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to the Group’s club loans
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 78 to 221, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going

Concern

We draw attention to note 3.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$2,779 million.
The Group's current liabilities amounted to HKS$11,157
million, out of which HK$7,804 million represented the
current portion of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2023.
These events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 3.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter
described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

BB EIE (&

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, combined with the significant assumptions
and estimations involved in determining the fair
value as set out in note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s completed investment
properties amounted to HK$36,190,753,000,
representing 71% of the Group’s total assets,
with their change in fair value included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
During the year, the decrease in fair value of
completed investment properties amounted to
HK$1,698,353,000.
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As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
are carried at fair value based on the valuations
performed by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers (the “Valuers™).
The valuations are dependent on key inputs,
together with significant assumptions, that involve
judgement. The relevant inputs and conditions
include capitalisation rates and comparable market
transactions with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions for completed investment
properties. Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to valuating the
appropriateness of the valuation of completed
investment properties included:

RITHEE R EMEZHERENLZIRFEE:

Understanding managements process for
reviewing the work of the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the

Company;
TREREEES ERRAEENBIGEREEY
EEEMBTIEZRIE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the
Company;

BE] %@T;Hﬂ’ﬂ%j BIREEMEMLEMZ
TH® e REHIL:

Understanding the valuation techniques and
key inputs applied on selected properties by
holding discussion with the management
and the independent qualified professional
property valuers engaged by the Company
with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialists; and

HEBEL BERAAEZEENBIAER 3}%%%1&
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Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation on selected properties
by (i) checking the details of rentals on a
sample basis to the respective underlying
existing tenancy agreements; (ii) comparing to
relevant market information on prices, rentals
achieved and capitalisation rates adopted in
other similar properties in the neighbourhood
with the consideration of changes in market
conditions; and (iii) benchmarking the discount
rates against historical data, market trend and
applicable market yields.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
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We identified the valuation of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant
estimations associated with the assessment of
whether the properties under development for sale
were stated at lower of cost and net realisable value
(“NRV”).
RITHEFELEZERTMEZLHEINRERER
BE DHERNEBERHGRVKRRERBNEBEN
NI EFIEFHEZERTMER DI HE 7] £
REE([AIERFE])MEPREEIRSRERG
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As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s properties
under development for sale are stated at lower
of cost and NRV. As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s
properties under development for sale amounted
to HK$4,861,331,000. During the year, write-downs
of HK$251,703,000 is recognised for properties
under development for sale respectively. The
determination of the NRV is based on estimated
selling prices less estimated costs to completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
of these properties. The selling prices are estimated
by reference to the market prices of similar
properties in prevailing market environment.
The costs to completion of the properties under
development for sale are estimated by reference to
the development budget, actual development cost
of similar completed properties with adjustments
based on current market data. Details of the
properties under development for sale is disclosed
in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of properties
under development for sale included:
ZK?E”HET%VE&%Z%EEF%%Z{ETE’I‘E\E?'I‘EZEF?
B

Assessing the management’s process in
estimating the costs to completion of the
properties under development for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing them to the
development budget, actual development
cost of similar completed properties of the
Group and comparing the adjustments made
by the management in the estimated costs to
completion to current market data;
MERFEEREERMAT TRFELREZERT Y
EI2RANER KHE SSEERTHEUME
ZHRBEE BRRAERRNETER EERE
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Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of
the properties under development for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing the NRV to the
market price less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale achieved in the same project or
comparable properties, based on the current
market development trend, government
regulations in the real estate industry and our
knowledge of the Group’s business; and
BREBEZAMSERBY  BHETENBIDER A
RARTTH BEEEEBOTH BBRMKABRFE
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the
assessment performed by the management
of the Group on the key inputs to evaluate the
magnitude of their impact of the market value
and adequacy of impairment being made.

At EEEERERTIZHABBETHNMG
WEEMN UM EmEXENREE RMELRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3 B BLAT R

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3 B BLAT R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BB BERGREMBHRERZE
(52

AIWEGEREERREAVHERAEEBREDS
PEFE P ERRE 285 AR 1 8 BUEY KR sR PR -

¥ HAHAERTE RSB SRE  ARE IR
BAFRERRDEAFRIOKER BT (ESER)
BERTHER  BRitb 2o A& EE MR
e RTAERARENARTATMEMALR
BRARENET aBRER/BKFHRE
MY NMRERIEE B ETEAETHERARE
IR P ) B K 8E R PR AL - 58 RRBROM 7T B F R
FFEkEERRMAEL - A @RIk EE A A IEBHK
TEERERBZSGRAVBRRIEHNLE
RTE AR REK-

fE AR BB BB R BIFE (TR LIE R 35
AT R A BB P B B AT - SRS
SRR - AT

ol K %%é%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁi%ﬁ
ﬁ%ﬁmikfﬁﬁ” - A% SRR

Rt RMITERER B EE&L GES
ﬁumﬁ$ﬁmﬁﬁkﬁgw =N g

BREE RE WEER R
&&EFW%WTZt,Iﬁﬁ BRI ML
SR E KA RN A B L RBEE R AR
HH e M G H A SRR R AR E =

TRREEZABENNEEE AR HERE
NNEENEZER 151#5%&5 B
BAMEENAREERRER -
AHAEFTER SRR EE  UREEAH
EHm et MR RER S A -

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEEBREBEBRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 3k~ 75



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance 7773t (KA &1E) Bz TIEM T 8% B K
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and NETEZEZHB (BEFEZBREP HF BRI
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including E#FmE AL BB T ERABBRITER-
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

Revenue WA
Contracts with customers BEPEH
Leases HE

Total revenue A

Cost of properties sales YES K-SV

Cost of hotel and hotel related B E BB JE A B 3 RS R AR
operations

Direct operating expenses HEREMEZEE
in respect of leasing of KERx
investment properties

Gross profit E7

Other income H U A

Fair value changes of investment BEMEAAREBEZE
properties

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHWB ARz K=

Other gains and losses H e ss & &8

Impairment allowance recognised WRE 5 REYKIEAZ
for trade receivables BB B

Selling and marketing expenses HELTSHEREER

Administrative expenses THEHR

Finance costs BB R

Share of result of an associate
Share of result of a joint venture

DE—EBERBZERE
DE-—HEEEEZEE

Loss before taxation BRI A& 18
Taxation credit MIEE %
Loss for the year FEBERE
Loss for the year attributable to: L FERERE:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE F N
Non-controlling interests FEIER I A
Loss per share BREE
Basic 2R

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k
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339,913
870,769

1,210,682
(64,953)

(406,808)

(148,895)

590,026
94,421

(1,804,437)
212,069
(285,117)

(1,346)
(107,471)
(287,909)
(690,389)

(12,447)

(6,628)

(2,299,228)
97,642

(2,201,586)

(2,141,983)
(59,603)

(2,201,586)

HK$(0.58)# 7T

1,424,922
904,402

2,329,324
(862,049)

(508,415)

(145,567)

813,293
97,878

(488,877)
(246,979)
(921
(203,664
(373,718

(804
(41,152

)
)
)
(386,201)
)
)
)

(831,145
91,503

(739,642)

(469,329)
(270,313)

(739,642)

HKS$(0.13)/& 7T




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEakEtEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

FEEE (2,201,586) (739,642)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income Ht2mH (BAX) W&

Items that may be reclassified HiErJpe BT IR

subsequently to profit or loss: BmHE -
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEBINRBIES

of foreign operations: ME R

- subsidiaries NG (666,372) 277,285

- an associate - —HEBERA (9,709) 5,372
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEME2E (FAX) ks

for the year (676,081) 282,657
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEZHEHBRE (2,877,667) (456,985)
Total comprehensive expense for the year EEFEREERSE

attributable to:

Owners of the Company KARHEB A (2,818,064) (186,672)

Non-controlling interests IR & (59,603) (270,313)

(2,877,667) (456,985)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A MR &

At 31 March 2023 2023434314

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k

Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties "B 14 37,944,753 41,794,471
Property, plant and equipment M B RRE 15 2,723,519 2,806,112
Deposits paid for acquisition of W EWME W
investment properties/property, s RFEANZ
plant and equipment ®e 2,182 1,681
Receivables related to a BHE—HBERIEBZ
development project J& Ws R 18 14 169,628 183,097
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 16 466,235 488,962
Interest in an associate R—EBE QR R 17 110,230 132,386
Interest in a joint venture R—EeEbEER 18 1,327,580 963,157
Goodwill EES 19 1,940 1,940
Other assets HMh&EE 20 3,997 3,997
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 25 - 64,134
42,750,064 46,439,937
Current assets REEE
Inventories 58 11,312 12,014
Properties held for sale BIENEZ W= 21 582,409 668,509
Properties under development FEHEZBRETYE
for sale 22 4,861,331 5,262,205
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AU GRIA 23 471,528 723,474
Taxation recoverable A] 3R [O] 7 I8 7,417 21,216
Deposit in designated bank HERDEFHR
account for development BERITERP ZFX
properties 24 9,885 10,569
Pledged bank deposits DR ITER 25 66,187 354
Short-term bank deposits REIRTTIE 3K 25 56,789 314,339
Bank balances and cash RITEB ERE 25 2,311,133 1,252,888
8,377,991 8,265,568




A IR &

At 31 March 2023~ ®2023%#3/31H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables g 5 N E A e 5 IA 26 801,982 889,347
Contract liabilities aHaE 27 2,735 10,491
Amount due to an associate JE A — BB & A /) 5B 28 137,079 147,964
Amount due to a related company eIt — IR E A RIFIE 29 1,404,128 1,701,327
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1~ B BB 2 B 2 FEFERR
interests of subsidiaries W % RIE 30 39,523 39,523
Taxation payable JE A B 18 97,098 149,752
Unsecured notes - due withinoneyear EEHFEE - —FAHE 31 867,963 199,358
Bank borrowings - due within one year 81718 E - —F A Z|H 32 7,803,510 3,643,614
Lease liabilities - due within one year HEARE - —FAIH 33 2,893 4,337
11,156,911 6,785,713
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BB EEFHE (2,778,920) 1,479,855
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEEBARBAEG 39,971,144 47,919,792
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Contract liabilities aEHaE 27 - 538
Unsecured notes - due after one year BEEHEE- —F&3IH 31 379,351 1,243,078
Bank borrowings - due after one year IRITIEE - —F 1255 32 11,949,488 15,884,126
Lease liabilities - due after one year HEBE - —F1& 3 H 33 33,041 37,638
Deferred taxation IR E T IR 34 1,800,942 1,986,909
14,162,822 19,152,289
Net assets EEFE 25,808,322 28,767,503
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [i% 7 35 36,775 36,775
Reserves R 23,850,421 26,729,039
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NEIE SN 3
of the Company = 23,887,196 26,765,814
Non-controlling interests IEE R 1,921,126 2,001,689
Total equity B 25,808,322 28,767,503

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 221
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chi Fai
BEEE
DIRECTOR
EFE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT

FISAEFE 1A Z 4R A BB HKRN2023F
6AERESSHERIRETE W h NIE
ERR%EEF:

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SESE
DIRECTOR
BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023~ #£2023%#3H31H IF F/E

At 1 April 2022 7202264410 36,775 4,563,248 556,042 132,497 960,213 20,517,039 26,765,814 2,001,689 28,767,503

Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (2,141,983) (2,141,983)  (59,603) (2,201,586)
Exchange differences BERINER
arising on translation FELEREZR:
of foreign operations:
- subsidiaries -WBAFE (666,372) - (666,372)
- an associate -—HBELE (9,709) = (9,709)
Total comprehensive FELHLRS
expense for the year (676,081) (2,141,983) (2,818,064)
Depreciation attributableto ZEEEEH
assets revaluation surplus ~ JE(E#7TE 1,045 125

Acquisition of additional WERBARZ
interests in subsidiaries BOMER (H7238)
(note 38) - 16,549 (20,960) (4,411)

2022 final dividend paid BIR02F RHAKRE (58,841)  (58,841) - (58,841)

2023 interim dividend paid k20235 HKE (18,387)  (18,387) - (18,387)

At 31 March 2023 #2023§3A31H 36,775 4,563,248  (120,039) 131,577 976,762 18,298,873 23,887,196 1,921,126 25,808,322

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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REEZREER

For the year ended 31 March 2023~ #£2023%#3H31H IF F/Z

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 April 2021 20214718 36,775 4,563,248 273,385 133,417 941,254 21,121,391 27,069,470 2,333,311 29,402,781
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (469,329) (469,329) (270,313) (739,642)
Exchange differences BEFINETR

arising on translation of MELELZSE:

foreign operations:

- subsidiaries -HELF - - 211,28 - - - 211285 S 1 PL

- an associate - —EBERE - - 5,372 - - - 5,372 - 5,372
Total comprehensive EEIEANE (AR

income (expense)

for the year - - 280,657 - - (469,329) (186,672) (270,313)  (456,985)
Depreciation attributableto ZEEEEH

assets revaluation surplus ~ JE(E#TE - - - (920) - 1,046 126 - 126
Acquisition of additional WERBARZ

interests in subsidiaries BOMER (H17238)

(note 38) - - - - 18959 - 18959 (33578)  (14,619)
2021 final dividend paid BIR2021F R AR 2 - - - - - (44131)  (44,131) (5,189) (49,320
2022 interim dividend paid ~ EIR2022FF HE S - - - - - (55,163)  (55,163) (5,189)  (60,352)
2022 special dividend paid ~ EIR202F5RIEE - - - - - (36,775)  (36,775)  (17,353)  (54,128)
At 31 March 2022 2022534318 36,775 4563248 556,042 132497 960213 20,517,039 26,765,814 2,001,689 28,767,503

Note:  The other reserves of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of A7t AN&E@ 2 HibfE#E D E () REEE EHE QA

additional interests in non wholly-owned subsidiaries; (ii)
dilution of interest in a subsidiary from allotment of shares
by a subsidiary; and (iii) deemed capital contributions from
owners of the Company.

ZESMES (DR E R AR SRR T2 R&
B4 2 0 2 A ¢ R (i) R 2 R A2
A T A

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEREBARAR ‘
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

Operating activities KREEY
Loss before taxation bR TR ES 1B (2,299,228) (831,145)
Adjustments for: A
Interest income FLEMA (40,733) (42,928)
Interest expenses B 658,962 363,487
Depreciation of property, plant and M B RRE
equipment ZITE 142,387 172,685
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEEZINE 21,240 23,972
Share of result of an associate Sh — & QA
ZERE 12,447 804
Share of result of a joint venture SMh—HeaERE
ZERE 6,628 41,152
Fair value changes of investment properties KREMEAAEBAE
- 1,804,437 488,877
Write-downs of properties under FEREZBRET
development for sale, net LE 251,703 16,373
Write-downs (reversal of write-downs) BIELEZ2WMEL
of properties held for sale WORL (OB E) 21,113 (464)
Impairment allowance recognised HERE H EWIE
for trade receivables OB EREE 1,346 921
(Reversal of impairment losses) impairment R R
losses recognised on property, plant and ®Ez OREEE
equipment BE)REERE (31,781) 135,184
Impairment losses recognised on EREREEE
right-of-use assets ZREEE 24,976
Impairment losses recognised on goodwill EREBZREESR 54,743
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE MR
equipment Rz W (1,258) (415)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A A
Al (212,069) -
Unrealised exchange loss REBE R EE 70,558 15,575
Operating cash flows before movements in Rt 2 BEEEHAIZ
working capital LERENRE 405,752 463,797
Decrease in inventories BEZRD 702 388
Decrease in properties held for sale FIEHE 2 WMEZRD 64,954 832,883
Increase in properties under development RIEHECERPWE
for sale 2 380 (184,636) (364,093)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWHIELZ
L 226,130 482,512
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & 5 & E#b B[ RIE 2
() 3G 0 (67,586) 24,981
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEBEZRD (8,294) (292,367)
Cash generated from operations rEgeBEzRE 437,022 1,148,101

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

Income tax refund (paid) BRE(BEH) MG
- in Hong Kong Special - REBFIITRR
Administrative Region 7,219 12,926
- in People’s Republic of China - EAREA (1,354) (1,391)
- in United Kingdom - R (5,765) (14,157)
Net cash from operating activities KERLEH NG FHE 437,122 1,145,479
Investing activities REEY
Placement of short-term bank FREBRRITER
deposits (79,153) (328,307)
Acquisition of investment WK EMERERFR
properties and costs incurred KREMEMEEZ
for investment properties under BX AR
development (33,910) (113,077)
Advance to a joint venture m—EAeEDhERR (283,998) (34,400)
Acquisition of partial interest of WE—Hedahiz
a joint venture o= (65,002) -
Acquisition of property, plant and W2 s R
equipment (26,567) (29,229)
Placement of pledged bank deposit Fe IR RITER (2,054) (1,135)
Deposits paid on acquisition of WEREWME M
investment properties/property, MERBREAZN 2
plant and equipment e (1,542) (10,850)
Placement of deposit in designated HERDEFHR
bank account for development BEERITHRP 2R
properties (94) (104)
Withdrawal of short-term bank REVEHRITER
deposits 336,703 1,429,633
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit ~ $RERE #HIFR 1717 3¢ 355 -
Proceeds from disposal of & BT B A R FT 15 3K I8
subsidiaries 37 1,831,671 1,495,018
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMERGENRIEA
investment properties - 185,013
Interest received U B A1) B 30,825 55,514
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HER
plant and equipment RIBFIE B 1,788 610
Net cash from investing activities REKREEE 2R FHE 1,709,022 2,648,686

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023~ Z{Z2023%3431H i1 F/EZ
Financing activities MEEY
Bank borrowings raised HESEZIRTTEE 5,655,336 7,930,319
Advance from a related company —EAERR 28K 737,875 1,573,296
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE ielhiet) (10,198,928)
Redemption of unsecured notes & O R R R (200,000) (3,486,813)
Interest paid for financial liabilities YRNERBENS (785,433) (527,920)
Dividends paid to owners MARBIHEAB A
of the Company ZIRE (77,228) (136,069)
Repayment to a related company BRT —HBEEQF (1,035,074) (370,690)
Acquisition of additional interests e g Bt B8 A B2 BB AN
in subsidiaries T 38 (4,411) (14,619)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 0 F B8 A B FEHE AR 4
interests of subsidiaries BIMZBE - (27,731)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEBEARE (4,554) (3,856)
Interest paid for lease liabilities XHHEAENE (1,324) (1,470)
Repayments to non-controlling BRTWERR
interests of subsidiaries JEYER M - (1,567)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBE RS o RNe FEE (1,063,558) (5,266,048)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RekBReEEY
cash equivalents #n Ol ) F 58 1,082,586 (1,471,883)
Cash and cash equivalents at RBERV2HE K
beginning of the reporting period ReEEY 1,252,888 2,718,494
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E R & &) v £ (24,341) 6,277
Cash and cash equivalents at end RB|ERARZEE R
of the reporting period, representing  IR& 5 &Y AIRTT
bank balances and cash HEeRNIR e 2,311,133 1,252,888




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

1. General Information

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s immediate holding company is Emperor
International Group Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The ultimate holding company of the Company is Albert
Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”), a limited
liability company incorporated in the BVI which is in
turn held by First Trust Services AG, being the trustee
of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”),
the settlor and founder of which is Dr. Yeung Sau
Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information
and Key Dates” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
48.

. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and
HKAS 16 Equipment - Proceeds

before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts - Cost of

HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

—RE ¥
REFEREEFRAR (KRB RAER
EAMKLAXHRRBERAR ERNAES
BEAEXSFBERAR ([BRFT])ERE
M ARRBZEEERAGRAEERE
EZERERAG (RRBRELES ([HEB
BAEHS])FMKIZBRAR) - RRQF]
ZREERARRBBIKERZERERA
Bl ([1BBEFER] - —EIRN B R B
SHAMKIZERAG) MG KERE
I The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust
(TAY Trust | - BEXKEL ([HEE LR
AY Trustz ZFE A RBISZA) 2 %5 AFirst
Trust Services AGHF A o AN A AT F &
NEBEEMB MU N AFR [ REER
NEERE] —EWE-

mAaMBmRINBT(ERL]) (REAA
AlZYREE®) 2R

ARA/—HREEERRR - EMNERRZ
TERGHNMIGEA8

ERFBREEITERBYHR
FEA([EEMBREED])

REFERBIER BT ETBMBR
HEEA

RAFE  ARAREMBRR ([REE])
EEXEATIEBGMAE ([HEE
AR B2 BEEEMIEIME LR
ZIEET HR2022F4A1R MMz AEBF
JZ HARE o8 il A 2 - LARR B4R & B I SRk

HRMBHmE BoAEZRE S
ERF3N ZIER]
Hogar &R E R E & A
F165% 2 1EFT EERE MEAZ
P18 3XIR
FE g ER BEAN-BITAN
FITIHRZIEFT Z R
FRMBHRE M5 HmE %R
A Z1BF] 20184 £2020F 2
FRENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the

FERFEREE BBV B R
EEA([FEMBHREER])
(%)
RAFERHE N EBTEEUBR
=R (4)

WA B R BB 88 2 55T
ARERAFERBEFEZHEHRRR

current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and

prior years and/or on the dis

closures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early appli
amendments to HKFRSs that
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to

ed the following new and
have been issued but are

Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in Sale

HKFRS 16 and Leaseback?
Amendments to Classification of
HKAS 1 Liabilities as Current or

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to

Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)3

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies!

Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates!
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single
Transaction!

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods b
be determined.

eginning on or after a date to

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)” (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022

Amendments”)
The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period
do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

2.

FERFTIE R AAER] B BB R
EEA ([HEUHHREER])
(&

B RAE MR ERZ R REBTER
B REER (4

BT SRRt 2 3742 RAG S ST B BRI IR S
EABN AN TES ([EF)) EHEAFH
B E MR RAGE ST E BRI RS EAIR
A ARREARER AR HRRLEER

=2
rEC

BEBETEAEI1E T [HEESE
BREBEHTGEREBZEESY (2020
F) ZHHEIIEET | ([2020F 1557 1) LUK
BB ERF1H 5T M #R#ER
HREBEE ] ([2022F 155 /)

20206 2RI BB ED EAME I
MM HEEEREZEEREAHLEE D
TEA MR EEREIINES - E
=y

BEEMBEAAAEXSHFEET
NEREEESNERETAERE
BEGZGF IEEERERAELES
SHERIEIVR 2T A - 2% EE
REBRIA/ERETAR  ZFHEX
ATEFEEDBERRDIIERD -

AR BRESBRREDNIERE ER
ERE RN - ZFERTH A
BB BRTEXERERI2MEAAB
BRENERAXBHATZE-

ARBEERRED T AR RNTESEE
HBER T S (JABSTRERRIT) - 20209 {2
FI R TE B 25K E 120224 8 7] 5 e 2022
FEH BERANBREHRKZATE
SHRFETEFERBNREAPRED
+ {8 A NIEE 4B B ERRER - (2R
THRETHREHZENRNREHRE
BEELETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)” (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022
Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that
enables users of financial statements to understand the
risk that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity
classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement
of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted.
If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the
entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s right to defer
settlement for borrowings of HK$8,991,248,000 are
subject to compliance with certain financial ratios
within 12 months from the reporting date. Such
borrowings were classified as non-current as the Group
met such ratios at 31 March 2023. Upon the application
of the 2022 Amendments, such borrowings will still
be classified as non-current as the covenants which
the Group is required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists
at the end of the reporting date and such borrowing
will still be classified as non-current.

Except as described above, the application of the 2020
and 2022 Amendments will not affect the classification
of the Group’s other liabilities as at 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBRMRZEHUEER
FTESFHEE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information HerEFZEAEEERE AIE
is considered material if such information is BERBERBEKR WIN RE B
reasonably expected to influence decisions made REEEBMAERIMBRARZES
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated FAARB (T EMRA) REE R AME
financial statements include applicable disclosures BIFT AR TE 2 3 A #2 35
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

31 REMBHRRZEREE

REMBRERIDBEREEIMAE
Bz BEEMBEREEMRE - BLAR
SURAMBHRME  HEKAIER

SIFELE
HAVBRRERIFELCERE
B ZEEBIBFEETLESR
EBERHLRNERERBREPE
REEREFAB - ERERE
BYERAEENRBES KRR
NHERREBAZRCHRBES -

3.1.1Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the going concern basis
which assumes the continuity of normal
business activity and the realisation of assets
and the settlement of liabilities in the normal
course of business. Management continues
to closely monitor the liquidity position of
the Group to ensure adequate liquidity is
maintained.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HKS$2,779 million. The Group’s current
liabilities amounted to HK$11,157 million,
out of which HK$7,804 million represented
the current portion of bank borrowings. The
liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate operating
cash inflows and sufficient financing to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due.

7202363 A318  FAEBREBE
f& 8 8 H O 81 & E2,779,000,000
AL AEENRBAEAEBER
11,157,000,000%& ot - H A
7,804,000,000/8 7T RIRTTIEE Z
MBED - AEENREE 2
MEZBRURMNEE L @5 BN
RERERARTEROBE A
REFHANMBEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)
3.1.1 Going concern (continued)

31 REMBRRZEREE (&)

Q11 FERE (1)

The Directors have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing
in assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The following plans and
measures are formulated to manage the
Group’s liquidity risk and improve the Group’s
financial position:

The Group has good track records
and relationship with banks which
would enhance the Group’s ability on
restructuring its borrowing facilities.
The Group will continue to monitor its
compliance of financial covenants of the
Group’s bank borrowings and is confident
that sufficient financing can be arranged
from the refinancing or renewal of bank
borrowings upon or before the maturity
date.

The Group expects to continue to generate
positive operating cash flows for the next
twelve months from sales of properties
and rentals from investment properties.

In addition, the Group will explore
opportunities to identify certain investment
properties for raising new borrowing facilities
or seeking for sale in the market to improve its
liquidity position, if necessary.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow forecasts prepared by management of
the Group, which cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 March 2023.
Taking into account of the plans and measures
as described above, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to maintain its operations and
to pay its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. The Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

3.1.1 Going concern (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, material
uncertainty exists as to whether sufficient
financing can be arranged from the refinancing
or renewal of bank borrowings and operating
cash flows generated from the sales of
properties depending on the market condition.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments might have to be
made to write down the carrying values of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to reclassify its non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, or to make provision
for any contractual commitments that have
become onerous, where appropriate.

3.1.2Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for investment properties which
are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

%-?A,ﬁ%??&%%z WREER

SETHEE (&)

3.1 REMBHRRZEREE (&)

Q1 FBERE (F)
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FRRTEEBREXNEERY
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AREE® ﬁEﬁKTEEEIE fied
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BMEHEAKEEHE  HEERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)
3.1.2 Basis of Preparation (continued)

31 REMBRRZEREE (&)

Q12 HEE (HF)

94

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
Leases (“HKFRS 16”), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets (“HKAS 367).

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefit by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

3.1.2 Basis of Preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

96

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing FrEERBEENB LA EE R Z
subsidiaries (continued) ZE (&)
Any difference between the amount by which the FEVE AR M 2 2 A B BE B PN SR PTUR

non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income ("OCI") in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or group of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not longer than an
operating segment.
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Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units,
or any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
and a joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss
and OCI are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FEEFTHE(A)

0

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

(continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with an associate or
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a joint venture are recognised in the consolidated e mARNER  EENEREE
financial statements only to the extent of interests BEABZBMENRANGELEERR

in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interest in a joint venture
When the Group increases its ownership interest
in a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, goodwill is recognised
at acquisition date if there is excess of the
consideration paid over the share of carrying
amount of net assets attributable to the additional
interests in joint ventures acquired. Any excess
of share of carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interests in joint
ventures acquired over the consideration paid are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the additional interest are acquired.
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3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses relating to its interest in
a joint operation in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), the Group
is considered to be conducting the transaction with
the other parties to the joint operation, and gains
and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the
joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator
(such as a purchase of assets), the Group does not
recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations including bundle sales
for hotel accommodation and food and beverage,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

(continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of services.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 TEGFHE (&)

4

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. For contracts where the
period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised property or
service exceeds one year, the transaction price is
adjusted for the effects of a financing component,
if significant, and is included in contract liabilities
before the transfer of the promised property
or services. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
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expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for BZAITRER L.
any significant financing component.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract BEEENZIEBHA

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not have incurred if
the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised
is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the assets relate. The asset is subject to
impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified good
or service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Revenue recognition

Sale of properties is recognised at a point in
time when control of the completed properties is
delivered to buyers. The Group receives deposit
from buyers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. The deposits received from the
contracts prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are recognised as contract
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

6

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group provides services to a gaming
concessionaire in Macau Special Administrative
Region (“Macau”) under service arrangements for
gaming operation in mass market hall, VIP room
and slot machine hall. The performance obligation
represents provision of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services to the gaming
concessionaire. Revenue from such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the Group is entitled to receive its
service income according to the relevant operating
performance from the gaming concessionaire
which simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs.

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers.
The performance obligation represents provision
of hotel accommodation services for customers.
Revenue from hotel rooms is recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group is entitled to receive its income according

KEEFEHZHA (&)
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to the relevant operating performance from the Fgs e

customers and the customers simultaneously

receive and consume the benefits provided by the

Group’s performance as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales HEERZ X HERRBME P UWIZ

is the net amount collected from the customers
for such goods. The transaction price for such
transactions is recorded as revenue when the
goods are transferred to the customer. There is no
other separate performance obligation identified
except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food
and beverage sales is recognised as revenue when
the food and beverage are delivered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group has other contracts that include
multiple goods and services, such as packages
that bundle food and beverage and other services
with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each good or service based
on its relative stand-alone selling price. The Group
primarily determines the stand-alone selling price
of hotel rooms and food and beverage based on
the amount that the Group charges when each is
sold separately in similar circumstances to similar
customers.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
investment properties under development for such
purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair values,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under development are capitalised
as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under development.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

(«3)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
including buildings that are held for use in the
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer
from investment properties, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management including costs
of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost or deemed cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. For investment
properties under development and properties under
development for sale, the Group ceases to capitalise
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready
for the Group’s intended use or sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

110

Borrowing costs (continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or
arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
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unless the terms and conditions of the contract are BHB T TEHF G-
subsequently changed.
The Group as a lessee KE B ERZAHA

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of leasehold land and
buildings and motor vehicles that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEEFIERSAA (E)
Right-of-use assets (continued) EREEE (&)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
or inventory as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

32 FEEFTHE(A)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEEFIERSAA (E)
Lease modifications (continued) EREEE (&)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the Coronavirus disease
(“Covid-19”) pandemic, the Group has elected to
apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

RARER—BEBHEARNEER
HmE  AEEREEERAERB S
BB R RN EETHERR
AERKEHEN B mEMNTER
BE&E-

AEEEBEABREAEEEELR
EREMEFtEREREBEAK.

HMAENESHB cHEES
EERBESRE (HUTRES])
ERELANHESEEMS  WAAAT
FBGSE AREERZEAAITER
TETHEERESRTEREE N

HEFRBENZSERERE A
feps - MEERMRERREES)
A EREARBHER PR EE
EERNHEERE:

T O 9 £ D Y R B
HiH 7202246 A30H 3 2 AT EY
%R

LB A (SRR S R
28

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
114 ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &3k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under
fair value model. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income when they arise. When a lease contract
contains a specific clause that provides for rent
reduction or suspension of rent in the event that
the underlying assets (or any part thereof) are
affected by adverse events beyond the control
of the Group and the lessee so as to render the
underlying assets unfit or not available for use,
the relevant rent reduction or suspension of rent
resulting from the specific clause is accounted
for as part of the original lease and not as a lease
modification. Such rent reduction or suspension
of rent is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments to occur.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15”) to allocate consideration in a contract to lease
and non-lease components. Non-lease components
are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications, including
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or
reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

%-?A,M%?E&%%TZ WREER
SETHEE (&)

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

32 FEEFTHE(A)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above) (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

118

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Inventories 75
Catering goods BERFR
Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and BRGFERK AL ZFRFEMRER

net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies
of right-of-use assets, properties held for sale are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and
costs necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary
to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

o

Inventories (continued) FE (&)
Properties under development for sale HEHEZ HREPY X

Properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business are classified as
current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-
use assets, properties under development for sale
are carried at the lower of cost (or deemed cost
for those transferred from investment properties)
and net realisable value. Costs relating to the
development of the properties include land cost,
construction cost and other direct development
expenditure. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties held for sale upon
completion.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediate in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

N

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including receivables related to
a development project, amount due from a joint
venture, trade and other receivables, deposit
in designated bank account for development
properties, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances), and other
items (financial guarantee contracts) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for
trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

3.2 FEEFTHE(A)
TR (&)
ETHEE (&)
RBEBMBREE LW AT
MEM Gz eMEEREMIBAR 2R

(continued) B(#&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (i) ;.,J—Lﬁﬁﬁgi‘bﬂ
In assessing whether the credit risk has m’%ﬁﬁfﬁﬂh@%ﬂ% R LA 2R

BRZIEME AEEHSRT
ﬂﬂﬁiaﬁﬁiLﬁZﬂMA
TR ITARNMMER AT LE
WZH Lﬂ%f’&tﬁ&%ﬁ
B AEBEZEARERBEIEEN
EEER BFEBANLBEKRA

increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making

this assessment, the Group considers both AR B ES 2 BT LR N
quantitative and qualitative information that &R o

is reasonable and supportable, including

historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken HEMS HEEERRSEEZE
into account when assessing whether credit B eEENATER:

risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant TRIAZIE(INE)HA

B

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR

deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant

MEEFRER LBHE
mEBI:
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decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its ZBE I KIE TN %

debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant BEHEAKEEBER F78
deterioration in the operating results of HemERt:

the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

(i)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group considers
the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

6

(iv)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.

Write-off policy

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Financial instruments (continued) @I A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

RIBBEBMBREELIHRALET
ME G cEREENREMIER 2R

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued) B (&)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
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rate determined at initial recognition. For ENEME  RESEVKHmELE
a lease receivable, the cash flows used for AIE165%  EERBREEEEMA
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash Rensmlt 2R KEEREM

flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts
for which the effective interest rate cannot
be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are
taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.

RBRERE B

M BEREOME  REERT
B2 G5 AEBEANMERANE
WRHE 5K Bt REE B &
BREERAAMELEEER
MIERFRRERASERERS
B A BB AR E A7 48R
IR

TSR T BIR M R &R 1R R
BHMEBEHEERRMS  AKE
75 5K P I B E B T 35 R R
BEMSFERDRENFEHR
B -HEEERR N EZREHAE
g )i 8 I B RR 3R R T IR A B
THRZHEEERE-

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEEBREBEBRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#R

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amount(s) due to an associate/a related
company/non-controlling interests of subsidiaries,
unsecured notes and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries and amount due to a related
company, if the Group revises its estimates of the
timing of repayments, the carrying amounts are
adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash
flows. Where the modification of financial liabilities
are non-substantial, the Group recalculates the
carrying amounts by computing the present value
of estimated future cash flows at the balance’s
original effective interest rate. The difference is
adjusted as deemed capital contribution by the
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company in equity.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

32 FEEFTHE(A)

LHITE (&)

THEEREZD (&)

EHMUTA

M T AR BHES ERBERR
HMEBBERNEETHFIGEZ Y
EREH - RARBITZ R T AR
BWRZHERBIREEREITAAR
R o

HEHERAIE2EBRAE
TRAE(BERES MEMEMNFA-
R —MBE AR/ —HEERR
B8 A B SEEA R s TR 0R - IR
BRRITEER) RROERERM TR
B SHPX AAFTE ©

AT B B8 2 W) 2 I 8 SUHE 25 3K IR e
e —BEREARIFUAMS @ WAL E
(ERT BRI RE 2 A5 RIBREE R
HAA A RREER TR RS RE -
TRABEEFUIFELN  AAKH
BBRRE RGN RERN R E G
ARKREEREZHEEBEENFERE
B -BREZBENERNIERIFERER
RARRBEBAZGIEREETHE

MBEREH
MBREREOBEZRTAERTBAR
BEBEBAREREBEES TAMNGKRR
SNBIBFIEMRZERE  WFAA
EREEREN ALK - AEBPTFRARN
MBERAONFIEAEETE K
WARIEE RBEBBREEAEEINK
AERIZ TS EE

RIBBEMGREEREIRETE
ZERBETRE K

MFEERLER (MEE) BR
HINE MR RAT#H -

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEEBREBEBRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &3¢ 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

0

Financial instruments (continued) THITA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) eHAEELRER (&)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities LR B EHER BT

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability
are modified, the Group assess whether the revised
terms result in a substantial modification from
original terms taking into account all relevant facts
and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any
fee paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. Accordingly, such modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the
gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial
modification when such difference is less than 10
per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition, the
carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities
will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted
to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and restricted deposits
arising from requirement under the New
Gaming Concession Contract that are held
for meeting short-term cash commitments.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
bank balances and cash.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss
before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

2

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, interest in an associate and interest
in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRMRZHEHUEER
TESFBE (A&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

Taxation (continued) #E (&)
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and BERBEEGEREEZAERRAE
assets reflects the tax consequences that would ERHREHRAERKEISERELE

follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes (“HKAS 127) (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

'

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will accept
the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed
to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and
deferred taxes are determined consistently with
the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is
not probable that the relevant taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect
of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in OCl and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the subsidies will be received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the subsidies are intended
to compensate.

Government subsidies related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such subsidies are presented under “other
income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. MEMBBRRZEHUEER
TESRTBER (&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 XEGTTHE (&)

6

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &R

URGBERZNAHXE
RTIEEZERE

MR8 RIZHBURE O EMALE
B BRE AR B AR ) AR AR 2 R TS
BELABERME T AN D AEER

=
=-°

REH BB ET 5 5 B R RR
FHETOREEE AR RERZ
MR RABEDIRENEE S &
REBNEDETANMG KERE
ERGREBANERS WS (B
Pttt ) (EARIE B N » I & S HK -
N5 BRI 5 B B AR BE IF T 55 5R B i
HEVRE BRI R TR S 5 B e i s
T ABE MG BT R (10
BINTERNBRTHER UEHEEZR
At S RBREE T (AT - I3 R AR o
IFRREFE - LR B AR RS
MEBRENS CREBRENAAE
ERR R B kR -

fiaf 8 PSP JE T T {68 - SE AT R AR M (ot A T
R & R R A ) (B o e S A
RE BB HRELKINIFENR
BT At R B R EERN S
B ERERE RN -

BIKEFEH
EBEHFERBEAEEZHRNEE
REBRBEETSENBEAHRZE
RS BRI S T IARERR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or assets arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the Directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China
(“The PRC”) and Macau in the aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$11,371,000,000 as at 31 March 2023
(2022: HKS12,347,800,000) are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of such
investment properties located in The PRC and Macau
are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities of
HKS$1,691,018,000 (2022: HK$1,870,160,000) on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is
subject to income tax in the respective jurisdictions, on
the assumption that these investment properties will
be recovered through use.

In respect of investment properties that are located
in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) and the United Kingdom (“UK”) with aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$26,573,753,000 (2022:
HKS$29,446,671,000), the Directors concluded that these
investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in these investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation in investment properties,
the Directors have determined the carrying amounts
of the investment properties located in Hong Kong and
UK measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
as it is expected that the Group will not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties
situated in Hong Kong. From April 2019, the Group’s
investment properties in UK are subject to UK tax on
gains arising from disposals because of the changes
in UK tax rule. As a result, the Group has considered
the impact of deferred tax on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is subject to income
tax in UK. As fair value losses have been recognised on
investment properties in UK during the year ended 31
March 2023, no deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
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mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$37,944,753,000 at 31
March 2023 (2022: HKS$S41,794,471,000) are measured
at fair value. The amount is based on a valuation
on these properties conducted by the independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers (the
“Valuers”) engaged by the Company and approved
by the Directors using property valuation techniques
which are dependent on key inputs and significant
unobservable inputs and assumptions that involve
judgement of market conditions. The relevant inputs
and conditions include:

capitalisation rates and comparable market rents
and transactions with adjustments to reflect
different locations or conditions for completed
investment properties and changes in market
conditions; and

comparable market rents and transactions,
discount rate, developer’s profit and cost to
be incurred to complete the development for
investment properties under development.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes
to these assumptions and inputs would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. At the end of each reporting
period, a designated team works closely with the
Valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and

o

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated net realisable value on properties under

development for sale

The Group’s properties under development for sale
are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.
The determination of the net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less estimated costs to
completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale of these properties. The selling prices are
estimated by reference to the market prices of similar
properties in prevailing market environment. The costs
to completion of the properties under development
for sale are estimated by reference to the development
budget, actual development cost of similar completed
properties with adjustments based on current market
data. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development for sale is less than expected as a
result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
write-down may result.

The carrying amount of properties under development
for sale as at 31 March 2023 is HK$4,861,331,000 (2022:
HK$5,262,205,000). During the year, write-downs of
HKS$251,703,000 (2022: HKS$46,485,000) and reversal
of previously recognised write-downs of Nil (2022:
HK$30,112,000) are recognised for properties under
development for sale respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and 4, BEREFTHERMAETTHABREZ

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets in respect of hotel and hotel related
operations in Grand Emperor Hotel (collectively the
“Grand Emperor Hotel Properties”)

The impairment assessment of the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties is performed by comparing the
recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties, which is the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use to its carrying
amount as at 31 March 2023.

The recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties is estimated based on fair value
less cost of disposal using income approach with
significant unobservable inputs and key assumptions
adopted by the management of the Group including
forecasted revenue, costs and discount rate applied
in the valuation conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional valuers engaged by the Company
and approved by the Directors. Changing the inputs
and assumptions could materially affect the fair value.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no impairment
loss has been recognised on the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties (2022: impairment losses of HK$86,210,000
and HK$23,335,000 have been recognised on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect
of hotel and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel,
respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

5. Revenue 5. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBZBASITHOT :
(a) Contracts with customers (a) EEEH

Hotel and hotel related operations: BIERBEEEER:

Recognised over time: R — R R R
Service income from gaming TER E 2 BRBWA
operations 87,740 260,581
Hotel room income BIERE WA 85,168 56,082
Others Em 13,765 609
186,673 317,272
Recognised at a point in time: P TE By PR HE R
Food and beverage sales BHHE 74,000 82,498
260,673 399,770
Sales of properties recognised REERERIAZ
at a point in time MEHE 79,240 1,025,152
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHZWA

customers

339,913 1,424,922

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
ceased the provision of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services to SJM Resort, S.A.
(“SJM”) under service agreements with SJM upon
their expiry on 26 June 2022.

Then, on 15 June 2022, Tin Hou Limited (“Tin
Hou”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (“Emperor
E Hotel”), entered into an agreement with SJM for
the provision of the hotel rooms, catering and other
ancillary services for the gaming operation run by
SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel from 27 June 2022 to
31 December 2022. On 30 December 2022, Tin Hou
entered into a new service agreement with SJM
for the provision of gaming-related marketing and
public relation services to SJM in Grand Emperor
Hotel for a term of 3 years commencing 1 January
2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

5. Revenue (continued) 5. WA (#)
(a) Contracts with customers (continued) (@) BEF &6 (4#)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining PHEEFENF T BHEF
performance obligations for contracts with WX ZE
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining SPHREFKRBATEENISE (KE
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially TRE D REIT) AR IEFTHHER U AR
unsatisfied) and the expected timing of recognising R -

revenue are as follows:

Within one year

In the second year B _F 10,197
89,166
All sales or services rendered from hotel and hotel FAEBERBEEBEBRECHE
related operations are for contracts with an original HRGERIREBBE R —FRIAANHE
period of one year or less. As a practical expedient K ERB BT BRESERIFELSH 2 7]
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated TRERE PREZSEHRTROEE
to these remaining performance obligations is not ZRGEBRTHE -
disclosed.
(b) Leases (b) AE

Total revenue arising from leases: HEEE ZRABA:
For operating leases: PREEHEMS -

Lease payments that are fixed or [ 7 Sk K R P 5 8L

depend on an index or a rate AR 2 HERIEA 855,857 891,114
Variable lease payments that do not KRB 18 Bk FI &

depend on an index or a rate Z A B ERIA 14,912 13,288

870,769 904,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are
lease of properties, properties development and
hotel and hotel related operations for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance.

The segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of their products and services
provided by the Group’s operating divisions which
is consistent with the internal information that is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors of
the Company, the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. This is also the basis of
organisation in the Group, whereby the management
has chosen to organise the Group around differences in
products and services.

Principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Lease of properties Completed investment
properties held for

rental purpose

Properties development  Properties development
and redevelopment for
sale purpose

Hotel and hotel related
operations in Hong Kong
and Macau including
mass market hall, VIP
room and slot machine
hall operations and
provision of gaming-
related marketing and
public relation services
for Grand Emperor Hotel
in Macau

Hotel and hotel
related operations

The CODM review the hotel and hotel related operations
in Macau along with that in Hong Kong and hence
they are grouped and identified as a single operating
segment - hotel and hotel related operations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.

Segment Information (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment results represent
the profit earned by or loss suffered from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
interest income, government subsidies, finance costs,
gain on disposal of a subsidiary, share of result of
an associate, share of result of a joint venture and
unallocated other gains and losses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Information regarding the above segments is reported
below:

For the year ended 31 March 2023
Segment revenue and results

Segment revenue DERA

- from external customers - REIBEP
Segment results before reversal SAEAERERRD-
of impairment losses, fair value change ~ AREEZEEH
and write-downs WA 2 D EREE
Reversal of impairment losses recognised HERME - EREEZ
on property, plant and equipment HEEERER
Fair value decrement in investment REMELABEZRE
properties
Write-downs of properties under RIELEZEERMEL
development for sale, net WO — #5
Write-downs of properties held forsale 5 {EHE 2 W% Z #UR
Segment results DEREE
Interest income FEBA
Government subsidies B # 8
Corporate expenses, net PEER-FE
Finance costs HRER

SlE—MBERR 2 EE
NE—HELLEZEE
HE - EA Rz s

Share of result of an associate
Share of result of a joint venture
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss before taxation BRTEATEE
Taxation credit BEAL
Loss for the year FEEE

Emperor International Holdings Limited

870,769

711,774

(1,804,437)

(1,092,663)

DRER (&)

RERF 2D B2 BT BOR R 3R AT
Az NREEESBRRER - DBERERED
BERDERRITHER FBWA  BH
ey MBER  hE—MHEAR K
DME—HEBERARZEE DE—HAED
RZERBERARDE 2 Bt Yezas BB B 8 Py
R ENRELZBE W DHEHRTEE
RERRENEERDERFERR 25
BB

BB LR BZERZRIOT

B £20239F3H31H 1 F/E
PEBRAREE

260,673 1,210,682

(35,956) (270,883) 404,935

- 31,781 31,781
(1,804,437)

= (251,703) =
= (21,113) =

(251,703)
(21,113)

(308,772) (239,102)  (1,640,537)

40,733
15,593
(217,622)
(690,389)
(12,447)
(6,628)
212,069

(2,299,228)
97,642

(2,201,586)

REFREEARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

6.

~

Segment Information (continued) 6. DHEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Bl 220233 H31H I FJ&
Other information Hib&E R

Amounts included in the measure of ATEDBEERIAZRIE:

segment results:

Depreciation of property, plant and ME RERREINE
equipment 114,460 114,460
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEZTE 21,240 21,240
Impairment allowance recognised for BREHEKTIAZ
trade receivables RERE 590 1,346
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant L &EW% HELEEZ
and equipment B8 (as) (1,291) (1,258)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not THRHTEIELEREEEFEDEE
included in the measure of segment results (included in BRI ARFTAZREB (GFAREER %
corporate expenses, net): #E)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, ®XEBE#HE 2% HEX
at corporate level wEZIE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. D HER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B 20229331 H IF F/E
Segment revenue and results TEWAREER

Segment revenue o EBA

- from external customers - RENFEP 904,402 1,025,152 399,770 2,329,324
Segment results before impairment STEREBE RABEEZ

losses, fair value change, write-downs EHE ~ WOR K MUR (21 A

and reversal of write-downs IS 743,485 67,209 (357,766) 452,928
Impairment losses recognised on BREEZHERE

goodwill - - (54,743) (54,743)
Impairment losses recognised on RYE BERREZ

property, plant and equipment REEE - - (135,184) (135,184)
Impairment losses recognised on BRACAREEHNEER

right-of-use assets - - (24,976) (24,976)
Fair value decrement in investment REMELABEZRE

properties (488,877) - - (488,877)
Write-downs of properties under RIELEZEERMEL

development for sale, net o — 558 - (16,373) - (16,373)
Reversal of write-downs of properties FEHE 2 W% 2 MO

held for sale # ol - 464 - 464
Segment results DEEE 254,608 51,300 (572,669) (266,761)
Interest income FEdA 42,928
Government subsidies BT B 2,761
Corporate expenses, net TEER-FE (181,916)
Finance costs H%ER (386,201)
Share of result of an associate DME—EBE ARz EE (804)
Share of result of a joint venture DME—BHAELECEE (41,152)
Loss before taxation BREATEE (831,145)
Taxation credit BIEE & 91,503
Loss for the year FEBE (739,642)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

REFREEARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

6.

-

Segment Information (continued) 6. DHEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B F20229F3 431 H IF F/E
Other information Hth & #

Amounts included in the measure of ATEDBEERAZRE:
segment results:

Depreciation of property, plant and M RERREINE
equipment - . 144,963 144,963
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE - - 23,972 23,972
Impairment allowance recognised BREHEBHIEL
for trade receivables RERERE 921 - - 921
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant 1 EW% HELLEZ
and equipment (M) B8 (479) - 64 (415)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not THRHTEIELEREEEFEDEE
included in the measure of segment results (included in BRI ARFTAZRIEB(GTAGEEBR—F
corporate expenses, net): ) :

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, TPEEMFAEZIWE HER

at corporate level BB E 27,722
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by MR AREREESERED 2 AEN AT
operating segment is disclosed as they are not regularly DT AT T RICERRAFE
provided to the CODM for review. B UL IR B X H AT

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. D HER (&)
Geographical information i 35 & R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, The REERER BRI REBELEER -
PRC, Macau and UK.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and REEKRBINBELP 2 WARBBEIER
information about its non-current assets, other than BEE(TEREAEE—"EEEREEBE ZEK
receivables related to a development project and HREREERBRITFROCER (KREEZ
pledged bank deposits, by geographical location of the WIBAI B SIS ) G T -

assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong ; 701,720 1,638,801 26,744,900 28,778,611
The PRC + 211,648 208,691 9,437,240 10,431,586

Macau BRFY 216,592 381,656 3,749,470 3,823,824
UK RE 80,722 100,176 2,648,826 3,158,685
1,210,682 2,329,324 42,580,436 46,192,706

Information about major customers FEEFZEH
During the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue derived B E202263A318 FFE - RKBMEAE
from one customer contributed over 10% of the EaWK ALK EZIBERP ZIKAE
total revenue of the Group’s revenue amounted to 260,581,0005% 7T (20234F : 7K & [BF 15 48
HK$260,581,000 (2023: none of the customers of the WAL0%A 2 BRIEF) o sz WA BB 5
Group individually contributed more than 10% of the MBS EEESER-

total revenue). The revenue is related to the hotel and
hotel related operations.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEEBMARAT !
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

7. Other Gains and Losses

FIFMEZMEZ

(Write-downs) reversal of write-downs of

7. s REE

properties held for sale (B8R ) R ) [PAREE) 464
Impairment losses recognised on goodwill #REHE ZFEEE - (54,743)
Reversal of impairment losses WRYE R RRE

(impairment losses) recognised on 2 REEEEE

property, plant and equipment (REEE) 31,781 (135,184)
Write-downs of properties under FEHEZERETYE

development for sale, net (Note a) WO — 3% (K ita) (251,703) (16,373)
Impairment losses recognised on BREREEEZ

right-of-use assets VEREL SE] = (24,976)
Net exchange loss M BT 1R F 5 (66,387) (16,167)
Forfeiture of unredeemed commission B ARBRIER XK 2

expenses in gaming operation (Note b) MEMxZ (#itb) 22,305 -

(285,117) (246,979)

Notes: Bt 7t -

(a) During the year, the Directors reviewed the net realisable value (a) RAFE ZEE22REAMERREYHEF
of the properties under development for sale with reference EHECERPMEN ] E R FEET
to the current market environment and recognised write- a3 #E SR MUR251,703,0007% 7t (2022
downs of HK$251,703,000 (2022: recognised write-downs of 4 B R MUR46,485,0005% T K B [ 56 Bl
HK$46,485,000 and reversed previously recognised write- R 2 #0530,112,00078 1) °
downs of HK$30,112,000).

(b) The amount represents the forfeiture of commission payable (b) Z e FEIE P E B B B W 1808 W RHE R
to gaming patrons after the expiry of the redemption period. BERPzME-

8. Finance Costs 8. MBEH

Interests on: FE

- bank borrowings -R1TEE 686,103 310,471
- lease liabilities -MHEAE 1,324 1,470
- unsecured notes - EERAEE 64,544 212,484
- amount due to a related company - B —REE R R FE 49,115 10,991
801,086 535,416

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost B RNEEREERAT
of qualifying assets 2 BB FIA (142,124) (171,929)
658,062 363,487
Bank charges RITE A 31,427 22,714
690,389 386,201

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Finance Costs (continued) 8.
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by
applying capitalisation rates ranging from 2.09% to
3.57% (2022: 2.78% to 3.28%) per annum.

9. Loss Before Taxation 9.

Loss before taxation has been arrived BREAIEEE
at after charging:

MGEM (&)

RAFE 2 ARCEBERATN —RIER
@R E A 3T R A AL E2.00% %
3.57% (20224 : 2.78%%3.28% )5t & -

BRI E5 18

[

Staff cost, including directors’ remuneration ETKA (BEES

&) 425,571 500,981
Retirement benefit schemes contributions  E{REF|EF B4R 8,792 12,524
434,363 513,505
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN BN & 8,290 7,014
Commission expenses in gaming operation B XK HEMAX
(included in selling and marketing (BEtAHER
expenses) MZHEEZER) 10,324 45,904
Cost of properties held for sale recognised  EHR AN Z#H1E
as an expense & W R AR 64,953 862,049
Cost of inventories in respect of hotel and EHRRFAX 2BEER
hotel related operations recognised as BIEHEBAERBEFE
an expense X Z< 23,061 26,561
Depreciation of property, plant and M HENRELZ
equipment e 142,387 172,685
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZIE 21,240 23,972
and after crediting: MEstAc:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEW % HEs RRB
equipment Z Was 415
Government subsidies (Note) BT wE (ML) 2,761
Interest income from a joint venture m—fEa g hERR
Z B A 19,044
Other interest income H At F1) 2 WA 23,884

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government
subsidies of HK$9,866,000 (2022: HKS$2,761,000) in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies, of which HK$6,007,000
(2022: Nil) related to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government. The remaining
government grants of HK$5,727,000 (2022: Nil) are related
to rental-related subsidies from PRC government. There
are no unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants.

Wit

RAFE AEERRBEEFTAERRE
6 B3 % Bh 2 Tk FF 4 9,866,000 7T (2022
12,761,000 7T) + & 46,007,000 7T
(20224 : &) B EBBUTIRE A [RFLZE]
& A E o 88 T BT B)5,727,0000% 7T
(20224 - ) B2 rh BT RO FE € AR B8 48 B
B ZE MW EM BT AREK G -

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023~ #£2023%#3H31H IF F/E

10.Directors’ and Five Highest Paid N.EERhEEeFMALZ
Individual’s Emoluments [l
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) E=M<
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the MAFE EFRERTBRABZME
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing IR PR E A T AR Bl K & BG4 B8 40
Rules and CO, are as follows: Dk

2023

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries and other
benefits (Note a)

Retirement benefit
schemes contributions

2023
wE
Etie: 2,237
HeREHER
(Hia) 13,827
RINEREE
=3 408

Total emoluments

ik

2022 20225

Fees e

Other emoluments: Hipfe - 500 500 250 250 280 108 1m 280 2,341
Salaries and other e REMER

benefits (Note 2) (Kta) - 3416 1706 523 233 - - - VALY
Retirement benefit RIREREE

schemes contributions =3 - 229 106 - 60 - - - - 395
Total emoluments e - 4,145 2,312 5,543 2,642 280 108 173 280 15483

! Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.Directors’ and Five Highest Paid
Individual’s Emoluments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(a) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor
vehicles, yacht, club debentures and membership.

(b) Resigned as independent non-executive director on
18 August 2022.

(c) Elected as independent non-executive director on
18 August 2022.

(d) Retired as independent non-executive director on
19 August 2021.

(e) Elected as independent non-executive director on
19 August 2021.

(f) The performance related incentive payment is
determined with reference to the operating results
taking into account certain adjustments, individual
performance and comparable market statistics for the
year.

The chief executives are also executive directors
of the Company and their emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by them
as chief executives.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as
Directors.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2022: three) were Directors
whose emoluments are set out above. The total
emoluments of the remaining two (2022: two)
individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit schemes
contributions

#r S B A A
BARAEFIFT B 5K

N.EERTEGEeEFMALZ
M= (&)

(i)

(ii)

ExME (&)
Wit

(a) EM@EMNEEERETERTE BHE-
SREFRERE-

(b) 72022F8AI8HEFEB L IHITE
=Ho

(c) 720224 8R18HEE BB IEHITE
Ho

(d) R202148R19H RE /B IEHITE
Ho

(e) M2021F8F19HEE BB LIERITE
=.

() BXREWZREFAD2RAFE
KEEBANERFENETHAE EA
R R AT BT 45 BUR R E ©

R TBABNRARRR ZHITES
BEREXHBE LM BREFES
RaTBABRERBAESHME -

AERRATEEME T2 REER
EIEAR R A AN KB E AT MR
2 o LA EFTRIFITE R R IF
HITEENMS T 2ERARFELE
FRMZ RIS HOTREN

TERESHMAL
EAREBESEZRESHFMALH 34
QINF 3R ABEE FE2MEH
X224 (20224 1 28 ) &S %
AT B @sEmT -

113

5,959

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZEREESRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

10.Directors’ and Five Highest Paid
Individual’s Emoluments (continued)

154

(ii)

(iii)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT

Five highest paid individuals (continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

N.ESERAEGEeEFMALZ
M= (&)

BEBEHMAL ()
BEWE N FUTBE

(ii)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ jt %3,000,0007% 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ jt £3,500,0007% 7T

1
1

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for both years. None of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals has waived
any emoluments during both years.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group participates in a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“ORS0O” Scheme) and the mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying
within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes. Where there are employees who
leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, the contributions payable by
the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k
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RMEFE AREHET N F58K
SHEMA LM ESMAREE LR
AR Z F B SN RRERLFE -F
FE RSB RS H A LR IEFE 5 E
REEB 2

BN A ET &
AEE2E— AT RN E BIRE
BEBE RN BRI EM 2 BER
KT8 (T8 R RKE8)) K& 720004
DRAREEBRGIME LB BEH
R ZBHERTERF B ([RIEEF
) ZRFFABZEERBULIEA
P BEESRA URAKEZEED
B o L0 98758 & 51 &) 3R 3L AT B B SRR K
AAEREZEEHREBEREERE
RAFTEIANREM 2 e B e a8 K
72200012 A1 B 30 bA 1% P A T AR
SEzREHESMBESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

100.EERAEHReEFMALZ
< (&)
(iii) BRBERIGTE (&)

10.Directors’ and Five Highest Paid

Individual’s Emoluments (continued)
(iii) Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees
of a subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1
September 2014. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
control of independent trustees. The retirement
scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions payable to funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where
there are employees of the Group who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
Macau and The PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the Macau
and The PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes
contributions were HKS$8,792,000 (2022:
HK$12,524,000).

NEBBH2014F98 18 E I A K EE
USRIz —ERBRARIMNEESE
iR B & P T BB BURIKET Bl - 5% 5T 2l
ZEERBYSTAAENZESEE

WEAEEZEED A REZRNER
2 BRARET B pK AN $8 AN 5 B i AT 2 4R A
Fraltt REMESFTEZ B A%
ERENERBEEBARLE K
EEEMERIIZE SR EREEE
R,

AEBEZRFIRTEMNBATZESR
T30 Bl A BRPTERUR K o B R B 2R
ZBFRERRKEMNE 2KE - KN
ERREEFM X EA O LLAZE
RREMFBIEK - ASBREFRH
B S o ANEE U T RIKGE N8I A
EzEEERNRRFE 2R THET

ke

RARFEE RARENABHRAISER
8,792,000/% T (20224 : 12,524,000/%
JT) e

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEEBREBEBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

11.Taxation Credit

156

Taxation credit comprises: MIEE 2 BIE:

Current tax N EE R

11.

BIEE R

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABNEN (3,479) (6,105)
Macau Complementary Tax BTSRRI (862) (2,627)
UK Income Tax HEFTISH (7,751) (8,800)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FESEREH (1,411) (1,504)
(13,503) (19,036)

Reversal of Macau Complementary Tax BEEERMME
provision in respect of prior years ARG 52,371 43,662

Overprovision in respect of prior years TFERBRZ

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABNEW 235 448
UK Income Tax HEFEH - 140
235 588
Deferred taxation credit (note 34) BEEFIEER % (A3234) 58,539 66,289
97,642 91,503

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”) is calculated at
the applicable rate of 12% of the estimated assessable
profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the statutory right to issue CT
assessment on the estimated assessable profit in a year
of assessment will expire in five consecutive years after
that year of assessment. At the end of the reporting
period, the Directors reassessed the adequacy of the CT
provision and determined to reverse part of the Group’s
relevant CT provision of HK$52,371,000 for the 2017
year of assessment (2022: HK$43,662,000 for the 2016
year of assessment) accordingly.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of
19% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of The PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of The PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#k
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12%zE1H -

BB E FIEXIHFEEFER
ETRERB S M 2 TS MR TR 2 A E
PRI FEERTEERFEER R
REHKR BEERMEHARBEZ TN
EHEH TG R R E B RS AL E
P01TFFRFEE 2 BB S H T B E
52,371,000/% 7T (20224 : 20164 7 i & &
43,662,000 7T ) ©
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REBEFEERMERE ([REMEHE])
R EERBBAEIRED - BB RRR
PR E F 2 2 B R 225% ©




A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

11.Taxation Credit (continued)
The taxation credit for the year can be

the loss before taxation per consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

Loss before taxation

11L.BIEE R (&)

reconciled to
RIS EEHRNT

FANBEE R GRS BRERME KRN

Taxation credit at Hong Kong Profits Tax
of 16.5%

Tax effect of share of result of an associate

Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions

Reversal of CT provision in respect

of prior years
Overprovision in respect of prior years
Others

Taxation credit for the year

12.Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of
2022: HK$0.016 per share
(2022: HK$0.012 per share
in respect of 2021)

Interim dividend paid in respect of
2023: HKS$0.005 per share
(2022: HK$0.015 per share
in respect of 2022)

Special dividend paid: Nil
(2022: HK$0.010 per share
in respect of 2022)

BREIRIEE (2,299,228) (831,145)
BEBFE16.5%
R CRIBES 379,373 137,139
D — B E QR EE
BB (2,054) (133)
DME—EAEELEES
IR (1,094) (6,790)
MBS HERD
WAZ BTG & 79,825 121,790
BB E TR HR
THBBRE (378,394) (223,266)
B) A ST AR
HIBEE 44,690 27,764
RERTIEBEZ
Mz E (71,601) (27,838)
BB A R R H A B
EREETH TR
- (13,547) 10,956
BOTFREHAR
& 52,371 43,662
TFERBBRE 235 588
HAh 7,838 7,631
FARBER 97,642 91,503
12.18 8

FRERIED K IS

BR2022F R HAM S,
Hh%0.0165% 7T
(20224 : 120214 ~
REARR B B FA%0.01287T)
220235 R HAR B, ¢
& /%0.005% 7T
(20224 : 120224 ~
A ERR B A& A%0.015/8 7T )
SRR S
(20224 : 20229 2
BRI B B & R%0.0108 1)

44,131

55,163

36,775

136,069

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

12.Dividends (continued) 12.RE (&)

The final dividend of HKS$0.003 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: final dividend
of HK$0.016 per share) amounting to approximately
HK$11,033,000 (2022: HKS$58,841,000) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

13.Loss Per Share

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Loss Fi
Loss (loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) for the purpose of
basic loss per share

13.

A EEREREEZ
EiE (AREHE A
EHFEEBE)

EECFHREEE2023F3A31H 145
€ & R%0.00378 7T (20224F : KREAR B &K
0.016/8 70) 2 R AL & - #£4911,033,0007%
7t (20224F : 58,841,000/ 7T ) * HEZBF AR R
REERFBFRS EHERFAIEE-

ZFREBE
A DR A B G R B A B 8 T AR IR A
IS HES

(2,141,983) (469,329)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary

w140 BB

At EERENEEE

shares in issue for the purpose of FRzZEETERR
basic loss per share 5 <Iyfeis g 3,677,545,667

Diluted loss per share is not presented as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

14.Investment Properties

The Group leases out various offices premises,
industrial premises, residential premises and retail
shops/complexes under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 15 years, with unilateral rights to extend
the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
the relevant group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option
to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.Investment Properties (continued)

14 REY=E (&

FAIR VALUE EDAEE
At beginning of the year REH 40,316,471
Exchange realignment SMEFE (810,461)
Additions NE 33,096
Disposals HE -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HERBAR (A237) BEUREION)
Transfer from properties under BRELEZERER

development for sale (Note a) MEEE (Hiza)
Transfer from properties held ERFNEZNEER

for sale (Note b) (Hizb)
Transfer from investment properties BEBETRREMEFER

under development to completed ZREKEANE

investment properties
Transfer from completed investment EEERRENFER

properties to investment properties FERTRENE

under development (Note c) (Hiztc) (490,000)
Net decrease in fair value REZERZZALEE

recognised in profit or loss BROFE (1,698,353)
At end of the year REXR 36,190,753

Notes:
(@) During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain properties under

development for sale originally held for sale purpose, upon the
change in use to held for rental purpose, were reclassified to
completed investment properties upon completion at fair value
of HK$446,136,000 at the date of transfer.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain properties held
for sale originally held for sale purpose, upon the change in
use to held for rental purpose, were reclassified to completed
investment properties at fair value of HK$169,111,000 at the
date of transfer.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, certain completed
properties originally held for rental purpose, upon
commencement of re-development, were reclassified to
investment properties under development at fair value of
HK$490,000,000 at the date of transfer.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

WA W 38407471 4,022,000  42,429471
(108,730)  (919,191) 217,468 60,460 277,928
814 33,910 44233 116,482 160,715
. o (185,013) - (185,013)
ARG (1,015,000) - (1,015,000)
446,136 - 446,136
169,111 - 169,111
2,611,000 (2,611,000 -
490,000 - - -
(106,084)  (1,804,437) [NEIERES) (109,942)  (488,877)
NN IR IEN 40316471 1,478,000 41,794,471
Biat -
(a) #Z=202243A31BILFE BTG E

HERGRZIHIEHEZBRRTDEREEH
BRFELER RETHRERABAR
15 {8446,136,0008 TEF D FEREEKRK

BHE2022F3A31B I F - B THHFFE
HERZZHIFHEZMEREERERR
{EH S - R E R A B D 0 EE169,111,000
BLTEHDBEREEZNRENE-

BE2023F3A31R L5 E B T MHREE
HMERGBZEZRMERBRMIARIZEE
H Hi 2 /¢ B 15490,000,000 T £ H A
BRTEREWME-

REFREEARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

14 REYE (&)

14.Investment Properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties
comprises properties situated in:

REYE 2 REEBRELNAT I YR

Hong Kong )

The PRC i
Macau !
UK HE

23,924,925 26,287,986

9,020,600 9,965,200
2,350,400 2,382,600
2,648,828 3,158,685
YL 41,794,471

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
the end of each reporting period have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited, Cushman & Wakefield Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, Savills (Macau) Limited and Vincorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited (2022: Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, CBRE Limited, Cushman & Wakefield
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Savills (Macau) Limited
and Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited), in accordance with the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2020 issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors or International Valuation Standards 2022
issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
The Valuers are not connected with the Group.

For completed investment properties, the valuations
have been arrived at with reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties or
rental income using the applicable market yields for the
respective locations and types of properties. Due to the
continued reduction in market transactions of similar
properties in the current year, the Directors considered
that income capitalisation method is more appropriate
for the valuation of certain residential premises in
Hong Kong as at 31 March 2023 as there are relatively
more market available data in respect of comparable
market rents and transactions. The valuation technique
is changed from direct comparison method to income
capitalisation method during the year.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14. BREYZE (&)

For investment properties under development, the
valuations have been arrived at assuming that the
investment properties will be completed in accordance
with the development proposals and the relevant
approvals for the proposals have been obtained. The
valuations include key factors such as the market value
of the completed investment properties, which are
estimated with reference to recent sales evidence of
similar properties in the nearest locality as available
in the relevant market with adjustments made by the
Valuers to account for differences in the locations and
other factors specifically to determine the potential
sales proceeds, and deducting the development
costs and required profit margin from the investment
properties which are derived from the interpretation of
prevailing investor requirements or expectations at the
valuation dates.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the net
interest capitalised in investment properties under
development amounted to HK$36,917,000 (2023: Nil).

The fair value decrease on property revaluation
included in profit or loss of the year is
HK$1,804,437,000 (2022: HK$488,877,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use. The fair values of certain investment properties
have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued
operating lease income to avoid double counting.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
both years.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable.

MERPREVEMNS  HEDBRRRED
EHEREZRSERMEL - BER
DB E-(AERREERREDE
ZTEFETEZRR Y2RNEETS
A] B i b [ AR AT 2 AT R A 5 2
ERBETHR MEEMERELEER
REMABRZIELHE UETEEHE
ZFTRHE BRI EME 2 BRAA R
PrERZFBE (WERFIRERERE
EREERRZZRAFEMMERSL) -

B E2022F3A31B IEFE -#RPRE
)3 60 & ANE ) BOF R 7336,917,00078 7T
(20234 - £%) °

AR FEEBRFZCWESHZ2ANE
B8R 4 &1,804,437,000%8 7T (20224 :
488,877,0005 7T ) °

WGt R ANEER X &R MR
TRERREZEBRZ ETREVEN
NRABECIEHAE BRSBTS
HEWA LB REETHE -

R EFER  SEE A ST E3R -

TREREBLERENE ZAEEN
MEE &R (LEEMER 2 GERM
REBHGARE) URREBAREETE
ZHABBZABREESALEENE
PARAZ ARBESZHR (F1E3R) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14 REWVZE (&)

Hong Kong
3

Retail shops/complexes

TERE/ BB

Retail shops/complexes

TEAHS/BS

Offices premises

Industrial premises

I50%

-

15,062,735

908,000

5,338,665

352,905

16,340,741 Level3

1,002,000 Level3

F3M

5,667,960 Level 3

38

1,950,805 Level3

34

Emperor International Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k

REFREEARATE

Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the
market unit rate as the key time, location, frontage and size, between the market unit rate used

input comparables, which ranged from HK$4,600 to would result in a significant
HK$550,000 (2022: HK$4,600 to HK$580,000) increase in the fair value of
per square foot the investment properties,

and vice versa.
ERUBE UTRENERES THELER TREHRALBNERLBE.  FRETSELERARENS

ELLYN ¢ B BEARAN ENTETHRA600ET SIBRENEZAREBEXE
%550,000% 7T (2022 : 4,600/ 7L £580,0007% B RZMRe
)

Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are:

WABRLELERAER:

(1) Capitalisation rate Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of the properties, prevailing market and vice versa.

condition, which ranged from 3.7% to 4.4%
(2022: 3.6% to 4.3%) per annum

(1) ERf % AR EHREERSMAZERL Wz EAEYR AALEELE
B RBOMERR ENTEE3T%E44% (2022 RZTH%e
F:3.6%%24.3%)

(2) Market unit rent Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using ~ The higher the monthly rent,
direct market comparable and taking into the higher the fair value,
account of time, location, frontage and size of and vice versa.
properties

(2) PRELES BRAEG BETSERTHENACNEEAEE AEMS ARABELS R
Wi RMECHRE L8 BEHERAN ke

Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the

market unit rate as the key time, location, quality, floor level and size, market unit rate used
input between the comparables, which ranged from would result in a significant
HK$8,300 to HK$49,000 (2022: HK$8,300 to increase in the fair value of
HK$53,000) per square foot the investment properties,
and vice versa.
ERUBE UTBEMERES THELER TR RALBNERLBE I FRATSELERARENH
IERARE B EX BERANN ENTETAR00EL  SIBREVNEZAREBEAR

249,000/ 7 (2022 : 8300 LE53,000EL)  HM RZ M-

Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the

market unit rate as the key time, location, quality, floor level and size, market unit rate used
input between the comparables, which ranged from would result in a significant
HK$3,800 to HKS8,800 (2022: HK$3,700 to increase in the fair value of
HK$9,200) per square foot the investment properties,
and vice versa.
BELEE UMGENERES MEENLER FTELHRINENER KE U AERTSELERABEMSE
TEHABE EEX BERAN ENTEEHRIB0ET  IBRENEZOABEAR

28,8007 7T (2022 : 3,700 L £9,200% ) #i R R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14 REWZE (&)

Residential premises 718,620 811,480 Level3 Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into accountthe A significant increase in the
market unit rate as the key time, location, quality, view, floor level and market unit rate used
input size, between the comparables, which ranged would result in a significant

from HK$5,700 to HK$25,000 (2022: HKS5,700 increase in the fair value of
to HK$31,632) per square foot the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FENE £3% BRUEE NHBEMERES THELER TEMHARALENER BE I FARATSELERARENS
ELE PN ¢ B Ex 2B BERANM ENTFBEARSI00  SIHRENEIALEEAE

7L 225,000/% 7T (20224 : 5,700/ 231,632 B R2 MR-
BT)

Serviced apartments 1,014,000 515,000 Level3 Income capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using  The higher the monthly rent,
with market unit rent and direct market comparable and taking into the higher the fair value,
capitalisation rate as the account of time, location, quality, view, floor and vice versa.
key input (2022: Direct level and size of properties, which ranged from

comparison method with HKS50 to HKS79 per square foot
market unit rate as the key

input)
RHALE E3% WAERIE DHBEER AR RETSERTHENECTEEAERR ¥ AHEUS AAABEES R

BRfxfERBREARE BaRyEsRE UE B2 2B BERA ke

(20225 BB MHE NENFGEFROETETIER

NHEEBEABEREALE)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation

capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of properties, prevailing market and vice versa.

condition, which was ranged from 2.75% to
3.25% per annum

BR{ek @HREEESRAZERL N2t BREER ARAEEEE
B ROTEMR ENTFBELINEI25% Rz ke

(2022: Market unit rate, mainly taking into account (2022: A significant decrease

the location, quality, view, floor level and size, in the market unit rate

between the comparables, which ranged from would result in a significant

HK$18,000 to HK$26,000 per square foot) decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.)

(2022 THEE TEETRANENETZMLE . (20225 THEEARED 73]
B 2B BERAN ENTETHRIG00  HREMEHLABEAEA
BTE26,000E7T) b R2ZTRe)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14, REYE (&)

Industrial premise 470,000
under development
ERAIENE

The PRC
T

Retail shops/complexes 132,300

TEHS/BS

Retail/commercial properties 1,284,000
under development

ERTTE/HENF

-

144,700

1,478,000

Level 3

Level 3

234

Emperor International Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k

REFREEARATE

Residual method
The key inputs are:

REZIEHAEA:

(1) Gross development value  Gross development value on completion basis, ~ The higher the gross
mainly taking into account the time, location, development value, the
design, frontage, layout and size between the higher the fair value, and
comparables and the properties, which ranged  vice versa.
from HKS3,800 to HK$8,800 (2022: N/A) per
square foot

(1) REBER REREENRAEAEE FELHARALENEE REMEER ARABEES
AENFERGH LB R BEE BRRX  RZFA.

P ENTET 7 R3,8007 1. 28,8007 T (2022
£:1ER)

(2) Developer’s profit Developer’s profit at 20% (2022: N/A), taking The higher the developer's
into account the construction progress of the profit, the lower the fair
property value, and vice versa.

(2) BEE 87 BREATIH200 (2022F : TER) G RZY ZEH&FNE AAAEER
$VIRER & RzmAe

Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the
market unit rate as the key time, location, frontage and size, between the market unit rate used

input comparables, which ranged from HK$2,000 to would result in a significant
HK$3,100 (2022: HKS2,100 to HK$3,100) per increase in the fair value of
square foot the investment properties,
and vice versa.
BB UHBENBRES THEUER TEMHRALENER BE I FRATSELBRARENS
ELL VN ¢ & BEARAN ENTFETFHRL000ETE SIHBRENE L AABEXE
3,1007% 7t (20224 : 2,100/ 7T £3,100/4 7T ) B RZmRe

Residual method
The key inputs are:
REZEEGAER:

(1) Gross development value  Gross development value on completion basis, ~ The higher the gross
mainly taking into account the time, location, development value, the
design, frontage, layout and size between the higher the fair value, and
comparables and the properties, which ranged  vice versa.
from HK$3,188 to HK$9,419 (2022: HK$3,408 to
HK$10,027) per square foot

(1) FELEE BREREENAREEE IERARILENEE REEEENS MAAEBEHR
AENERGE LB R BEE BRERX & RZHA
N ENTEEARR3188%E LRI 4197 T (2022
F:3408%LE10,0275T)

(2) Level adjustments Level adjustment on individual floor of the The higher the upward level
properties ranged from about 50% to 95% adjustment, the higher the
(2022: 50% to 95%) on specific levels fair value, and vice versa.

Wk EEES NEERBEZBERR NTHEBEBZNS%E LREEMS AALEESS
95% (20225 : 50%%£95% ) Rz ke

(3) Developer’s profit Developer’s profit at 30% (2022: 30%), taking The higher the developer’s
into account the construction progress of the profit, the lower the fair
property value, and vice versa.

(3) R 2 AT BRE2ET530% (20225 :30%) - Bt RANE BREEFES AAAEEY
ZIBEE & Rk




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14 REWZE (&)

Retail shops/complexes 1,241,000 1,351,000 Level3 Income capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using ~ The higher the monthly rent,
with market unit rent and direct market comparable and taking into the higher the fair value,
capitalisation rate as the key  account of time, location, frontage and size of and vice versa.
input and discounted cash properties, which ranged from HKS57 to HKS79
flow analysis with market (2022: HK$41 to HKS86) per square foot
unit rent and discount rate
as the key input

TEHH/ H5 £38 WABKOE DHGELESR GARS RETGERTLENECERARE  ARYS ARLEEYS R2
ERCEERIZEAMEBR USSR BRE LE BEARK) EN ke
ERRSREAN IHBE  FEFARSTETEIIET (20225 41ETE86
i REREERIEGN  B)

o

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of properties, prevailing market and vice versa.
condition, which was 4.25% (2022: 4.25%) per
annum

ERfek @HREAESRAZERL N2 BREER ARABEEE
B ROmEMHL HREE4.25% (20225 Rz meke
4.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account the net The higher the discount rate,
capitalisation rate and stabilised annual rental ~ the lower the fair value, and
growth rate, which was 6% (2022: 6%) vice versa.

BBE EHRFEMERECERGERE - BEZER ALABEEE R
A6% (20225 : 6%) ZIRe

Office premises CREFFOE 6,979,000 Level 3 Income capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using  The higher the monthly rent,
with market unit rent and direct market comparable and taking into the higher the fair value,
capitalisation rate as the key  account of time, location, frontage, size of and vice versa.
input and discounted cash properties, prevailing market condition, which

flow analysis with market ranged from HK$45 to HKS74 (2022: HK$48 to
unit rent and discount rate HKS80) per square foot
as the key input
BRAENE 34 WANERLE DB EfEER BRES RETSERTLENE NERANE. AEMS IAABEER R2
ERCEERIZEAAER  UEHRNEIRE LB BEE K0 BT ke
FRREREA UTHE  THMR ENFETHRSELET4ET (2022
B REREERTERN  F:48ETE80ET)

¢

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of properties, prevailing market and vice versa.
condition, which was 4.25% (2022: 4.25%) per
annum

ERLE GHRECRSRAZER - NE2E BRLEHR BIRABEHE.
B ROmAHA £AEE4.25% (2022F Rz ke
4.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account the net The higher the discount rate,
capitalisation rate and stabilised annual rental ~ the lower the fair value, and
growth rate, which was 6% (2022: 6%) vice versa.

BRE GHARFARERBRFHEGRRE B BRZUS ARAREEME R
6% (20225 : 6% ) 2T

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14, REYE (&)

Residential premises 12,300 12,500 Level 3 Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account Asignificant increase in the
market unit rate as the key the time, floor, building condition and size, market unit rate used
input between the comparable, which was HK$8,500  would result in a significant
(2022: HK$8,600) per square foot increase in the fair value of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.
TENE £35 BRUBE NHBEMERES THELER TEHARALENER RE 8 FRATSELERARENS
ELL YN ¢ B BFRRARAN AETHRBS00ET (2022 SHRENE AREEBNE
£:8,60047T) B RZ MR-
Macau
A
Retail shops/complexes 1,820,000 1,861,500 Level3 Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the
market unit rate as the key time, location, frontage and size, between the market unit rate used
input comparables, which ranged from HK$8,800 to would result in a significant
HK$170,600 (2022: HK$9,000 to HK$174,000) increase in the fair value of
per square foot the investment properties,
and vice versa.
TEHH/ B £3 ERUBE UHBEMERES THENER FELHRILBNER BHE L FRETSELERARENS
ELLUN ¢ E BEEARK ENTFETAREB00ELE SIBRENE L AREBEXE
170,600 7t (20227 : 9,000/% 7t £174,000% 1t) e RZMmAe
Commercial properties 492,200 481,500 Level 3 Income capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using  The higher the monthly rent,
with market unit rent and direct market comparables and taking into the higher the fair value,
capitalisation rate as the key  account of time, location, frontage and size of and vice versa.
input properties, which ranged from HK$26 to HK$92
(2022: HK$13 to HKS94) per square foot
AENE 34 WABRMOE DHGELESR BARS REMSERTLENEZTERARR . ARYR BALEEYS R2

CEN(@SIZEEEIN-C TEHARDEER LE BEARCNM AN HKe
TEFRRW6ETEIET (2022F : 13ETZEN

BT

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of properties, prevailing market and vice versa.

condition, which was ranged from 3% to 4%
(2022: 3% to 4%) per annum

B @A REEESRAZERL NE2t BAEES WAREELE
B ROMSMA ENTFBF%Z4% (202F:  RZF%-

3%E4%)
Residential premises 38,200 39,600 Level3 Direct comparison method with Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the A significant increase in the
market unit rate as the key time, location, quality, view, floor level and market unit rate used
input size, between the comparables, which was would result in a significant
HK$7,000 (2022: HK$7,200) per square foot increase in the fair value of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.
TEYE 35 ERUBE UHBEMERES THELER TR RALENERZBRE I FRATSELERARENH
TERAUE B EX 28 BERAN AETART000%  SIHRENEIOABEAR
70(20225 :7,200% 70) B Rz HRe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14 REWE (&

UK
L
Retail shops/complexes/offices/ | ALtRPL] 3,158,685 Level3 Income capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on internal floor area using  Asignificant increase in the
residential premises with market unit rent and direct market comparables and taking into market unit rent used
capitalisation rate as the key  account of time, location, frontage and size would result in a significant
input of properties, which ranged from HKS35 to increase in the fair value of
HKS$436 (2022: HK$40 to HKS510) per square the investment properties,
foot and vice versa.
TERR/ B/ R/ £35 WANERIE DS EAESR BRAES RETSERTHENELAPEARE HRATSELESARENS
FEms ERbEEATERAUE WEHRNEER LB BEERAN AN SIHRENE L AAEEXRE
THEHRIFTEA6HT (20225 4082 B R
510E7T)
Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential nature  rate, the lower the fair value,
of properties, prevailing market condition, and vice versa.

which ranged from 3% to 4.4% (2022: 2.85% to
49) per annum

ERfek @HREAESRAZERL N2t EREER ARABESE
B ROTEMRR ANTFEFINE44% (202 RZFA-
:2.85%%4%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued)

©

Joint operation relating to investment properties
under development in The PRC

Some subsidiaries of the Company, Expert Pearl
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Expert Pearl Group”) entered into
a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with
Shanghai Zhangxi Investment Development Co.,
Ltd. (the “JV Partner”) to jointly develop investment
properties under development located in Shanghai
(the “Shanghai Property”). Expert Pearl Group and the
JV Partner intend to develop the Shanghai Property
into a commercial complex (“The PRC Project”). Under
the JV Agreement, the saleable floor area would be
split between the parties in equal shares after the
completion of the development of the Project. Pursuant
to the terms of the JV Agreement, The PRC Project is
accounted for as a joint operation.

There was litigation between Expert Pearl Group and
the JV Partner since 2006. In 2012, the Group received
the court judgement that the JV Agreement shall
continue to have effect. Details of these are disclosed in
2011/2012 annual report.

As at 31 March 2023, the major asset in The
PRC Project is the investment properties under
development with fair value of HK$1,284,000,000 (2022:
HKS$1,478,000,000). The site preparation work had
been completed at the end of the reporting period,
the valuation has been arrived at by adopting residual
method.

As at 31 March 2023, the receivables related to a
development project of HK$169,628,000 (2022:
HK$183,097,000) represent the construction cost
incurred by the Group and receivable from the JV
Partner.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment
properties with fair value of HK$32,259,861,000 (2022:
HK$35,540,255,000) have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (details are set
out in note 42).

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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14 REW=E (&)

FERTEBRRTRENEZAEER

AN &) 2 M8 A &) Expert Pearl Investments
Limited X H ff B 2 5] (41 & [ Expert
Pearl£® ] )E I BREREERERA
Al(lagBHDITLEaE = ([&EH
#) O UHRERMAR BT Z2EEFRR
BME ([ LBWE]) - Expert Pearl%£E &
SEBHBRE LBV EZRRR/RBERARK
B(HREE]) REGEHE FTHE
AR TP EIER 2 EREIEERGRE
BHOREEEME - RIBSE MR IER
FEIEE ABRRAEER-

E20064F i#E - Expert Pearls B 84 & 1+
2 ETF AR EA - FR20124F - A& M B SABR
MR - EERREEER - BEFBERER
2011/20124F 5

M2023F3A31F AREEMNETEE
EREERPREME HEQAAEBEA
1,284,000,0005% 7T (20224 : 1,478,000,000
BT B ERE TIFE RS HARTA
WERBEERETHE

202343 A31H - AR —HERER
Z &5/ TE169,628,0007% JT (20224
183,097,000/8 7T ) 5 AN R B B EE A Y I 2L
AR K EM & & Rt 2 SRR -

M2023F3A31B8 - AEBEAAREE
32,259,861,000/% 7t (20224 : 35,540,255,000
BL)ZEREMEEEARIERAEBER
RITEEZER (FBFHNHE42) -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

15. )% - #eE R e

15.Property, Plant and Equipment

cosT RA

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A1H 500,093 3,033,597 510,110 640,076 4,683,876
Exchange realignment SNE T B 15,423 - 541 350 16,314
Additions RE - - 18,962 23,508 42,470
Disposals & - - - (3,462) (3,462)
At 31 March 2022 $202243A31H 515,516 3,033,597 529,613 660,472 4,739,198
Exchange realignment HINE B (12,643) (2,541) (815) (15,999)
Additions E - 18,810 19,859 38,669
Disposals HE - (458) (10,196) (10,654)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31A 502,873 3,033,597 545,424 669,320 4,751,214
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TE KRR E

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 818 91,862 513,450 426,765 593,933 1,626,010

Exchange realignment SNE TR 1,982 - 280 212 2,474
Provided for the year REE 7 BlE 17,405 103,577 33,980 17,723 172,685

Impairment loss recognised BRZREBE - 106,676 10,495 18,013 135,184

Eliminated on disposal B R 8 - - - (3,267) (3,267)
At 31 March 2022 $202243A31H 111,249 723,703 471,520 626,614 1,933,086

Exchange realignment HINE 2 (4,244) - (1,052) (577) (5,873)
Provided for the year REFEE 16,635 73,904 28,826 23,022 142,387

Reversal of impairment loss HEEERE - - (2,790) (28,991) (31,781)
Eliminated on disposal & FK 8 - - (458) (9,666) (10,124)
At 31 March 2023 202353 A831H 123,640 797,607 496,046 610,402 2,027,695

CARRYING VALUE REE

At 31 March 2023 M2023%3A31H 379,233 2,235,990 49,378 58,918 2,723,519

At 31 March 2022 #202293A31H 404,267 2,309,894 58,093 33,858 2,806,112

FETYME R R REREMATAERF
MDA EARIR NS F L RIER - AMEHE

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line BRI (E

method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the estimated useful lives of HELH R iy 5t AT {50 F3 E HA PO 45 5

and buildings 40 years or the unexpired terms = TEEEFE 4 2 K & m & 8

of the relevant leases, (AREHBE)
whichever is shorter

Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives of SEIE (et AT {E R EE BRI PO 4 5k
40 years or the unexpired terms MEME Lz REmFH
of the relevant leases, (LB HT & Ak)

whichever is shorter

Leasehold 10 - 20% THEMEREE 10-20%
improvements
Others 10 - 33%53% HAh 10 - 33Y/,%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

15.Property, Plant and Equipment

(continued)

As lease payments for land and buildings elements
cannot be allocated reliably, the entire lease includes
in the carrying amount of the leasehold land and
buildings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, in view of
operating losses incurred by Grand Emperor Hotel
arising from the adverse change in market conditions
as a result of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and
foreseeable cessation of the gaming operation in Grand
Emperor Hotel which would have adverse impact on the
hotel and hotel related operations in Grand Emperor
Hotel, the Directors concluded that there was indication
for impairment and performed impairment assessment
on the recoverable amounts of the assets allocated the
cash-generating unit of Grand Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, due to the
foreseeable cessation of gaming operation in Grand
Emperor Hotel and the cash inflow from the gaming
and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel is
expected to be insignificant as the gaming operation of
the Group will be ceased soon after the expiry date of
the service agreements with SJM on 26 June 2022, the
Directors have reallocated the assets for the gaming
and related operations to another cash-generating
unit for impairment assessment separately. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, full impairment loss
of HK$48,974,000 (2023: Nil) had been recognised on
property, plant and equipment in respect of gaming
and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the recoverable
amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties as a
single cash-generating unit was estimated based on fair
value less cost of disposal using income approach with
significant unobservable inputs and key assumptions
adopted by the management of the Group including
forecasted revenue and costs, and discount rate applied
in the valuation conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional valuers engaged by the Company
and approved by the Directors. The discount rate
applied was 8%, which is based on the market yield
and growth rate of the relevant market. The fair value
measurement was categorised into Level 3 fair value
hierarchy.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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15. )% - #eE NrtE (F)

BNt MEF Ry 2 HE IR E AR 5
ok BRHEOREREEL W RET 2
FRmE{E -

B 2202243 A31H L FE - ERFH B M
WERBRESHZMSN AT ES S
BURPI R SREBEEL KL LEEIN MR
FIR2IREETEER TR R R I 2 1BREK (B
75 38R P 55 2 4R 4608 15 2 08 5 N F 5 A B
EBELETNEE) EFTR/FERED
RAUEDREERPIREREBEERCESE
Bz EEZ B BEETRER G-

BE2022F3A31H L FE - AVRFIRE
SREETE 5 P IR R AR E 2 18R T MR PR
EREFEBEREEEH 2R RAR
Wit (ARAKEBEEHEN
BB AR 7 IR 195 fEm B (202246 5268 )
BREHERKIL) EFCRHBYRERER
ZEEBHOIRES—HRESELEBUNUE
BEITRER 4 - B E£2022F3A31H 1L F
OB RIRPIR 2REEE 2 B MR
AXEF2ME KR LREERDBERERS
1848,974,000/8 7T (20234 - &) °

B E20229F3A310 L FE  RFIE 2R
BEME ERE-REELEM) 2 AT
OB EAAEEEEERAZIRE
APABRGABELRERER (BERL
HARAZB 2B A EREXRMGEMT
ETW K EFHE 2 B EEB TR A
BB ARBEIRR) 2 WAL R AR(EE
B R Al 5 o B A EVBE IR R 58% 0 Th
ERHEMSHMSRERRIEREK - QA
BEFENDDBER/EINLABESFHR-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

15.Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W% - HeBs R 5k 1l (4B )

(continued)

Based on the result of the assessment, the Directors
determined that the recoverable amount of the Grand
Emperor Hotel Properties was lower than its carrying
amount. The impairment amount had been allocated
to each category of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties
such that the carrying amount of each category of
assets was not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero.
Based on the impairment assessment calculation and
the allocation, impairment losses of HK$86,210,000
and HKS$23,335,000 had been recognised on hotel
properties included in property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets in respect of hotel and hotel
related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel during the
year ended 31 March 2022, respectively.

On 30 December 2022, Tin Hou, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel, entered into a new
service agreement with SJM for the provision of
gaming related marketing and public relation
services to SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel for a term
of 3 years commencing 1 January 2023. Pursuant to
the new service agreement, the Directors concluded
there was indication for reversal of impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on property, plant
and equipment in respect of hotel and hotel related
operations in Grand Emperor Hotel which was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2022. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
in respect of hotel and hotel related operations in
Grand Emperor Hotel is estimated based on value in
use method with significant unobservable inputs and
key assumptions adopted by the management of the
Group including forecasted revenue and costs, and
discount rate. Based on the result of the assessment,
the Directors determined that the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment in respect of hotel
and hotel related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel is
higher than its carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for these assets in prior year. During the year ended
31 March 2023, reversal of impairment losses of
HKS$31,781,000 has been recognised on property, plant
and equipment in respect of hotel and hotel related
operations in Grand Emperor Hotel.

ERFHEER EFEETRPIRZREAE
MEZAIRESEEREREE  RESRHE
EDRERPIRSIREBEYE LR A
ERBEEENERETERIEEARER
ABERHEXRA HEREELRZEZESD
EH-HZE20223A31H IEFE - ENRE
AHEEER BB OB ERat ABRIRPIR
SREHE 2B KBERBEEB 2%
BERRERERBEENBEMED R
e 2R (8 /5 1586,210,0007% 7T }223,335,000
BT

72022F12 4300 A (REREEEZ
—HEEMEAR) ERIRET Y — i -
AR AR H20235 1 A 1H i 3 B34 AR 4R
RRFRERLBERTBEHB LTS
HERARBRE -REFNRE HE EF
RAARERDIR I EHRPTE 2 RETH
J& 2B E NOB R AR TS 2 % - #es MR
wEITRER G EREE202243A31H
I EERBRE - RPIR2REEEE 2B
JEROEERBER Z ¥ RBENREZT
WEeBEIERNEBEEERB 2SI MNE
ATABEG ABEBELRERRR (BHERE
RIMA R B A R A3 R ) AfE BB 770
EEt-REFEER EFETRFIRER
LB E 2B E MOBE AR EB 2 M - e
KEE oA O BBBHNBEFER
ERZREEERANEBRZREREE-
BE2023F3A31IA L FE EHRMEE
IREEGEE 2B E KB ERBEERB 2 ME-
MRS Ko 5% 5 T SR ORN (B 5 18 72 (21 31,781,00078
Lo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

15.Property, Plant and Equipment

172

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, in view of
operating losses incurred by Grand Emperor Hotel,
the Directors performed impairment assessment of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of Grand Emperor Hotel Properties by comparing
its recoverable amounts to its carrying amounts. No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended
31 March 2023 as the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of Grand Emperor Hotel Properties are higher than its
carrying amounts.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022, in view of operating losses incurred by Inn Hotel,
the Directors performed impairment assessment of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of Inn Hotel by comparing its recoverable amounts to its
carrying amounts. No impairment loss was recognised
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022 as the recoverable amounts of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of Inn Hotel are
higher than its carrying amounts.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022, in view of operating losses incurred by The
Emperor Hotel, the Directors performed impairment
assessment of the property, plant and equipment
of The Emperor Hotel by comparing its recoverable
amount to its carrying amount. No impairment loss
was recognised during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022 as the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment of The Emperor Hotel is
higher than its carrying amounts.

The locations of leasehold land and buildings and hotel
properties shown above are as follows:

15.

M RN RE (B

B E2023F3A31R L FE - ERNRFERE
REFEEELZKLEEHR EFEBLER
PISRSIRGEEEMEZWE BB NRE R
EREEE BRI SEEEREE HE
EITRERT L - B2 2023F3A31R EFE
W ERERREEE  EARPIR SRS
MEZYME BERREBREREEE A
W el e RN EREE-

B 22023F3H31H }K2022F3H31H IEF
B ERREBREELECKEBR EF5
3B EL BRSO I ) 3 - MRS AR e i PR A
BEZ ARG REEREE S HETTR
BE&T 14 - B £20235F3H31H K%202253AH
BSIREFEMERRRERSE BAARE
BEZWE RELRENEREEEZT
Kol e RN EREE -

B ZE2023F3H31H %2022F3H31H I
B ERNRERIAEELZKLEBHE &
EEBUBRAERSBENE BBLRE
Z AT e & R H AR M - S TTRUERY
i o B 22023F3 A31H 202263 H31H 1k
FESEERREER AREERSIEE
ZWE BEkREBZTRESESNER
M °

FREE T RETFERBENEIAEWT

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong &# 2 &+ REF 30,511 31,780

288,804 310,222
59,918 62,265

379,233 404,267

Buildings in The PRC hEZEF
Buildings in Macau B CEF
Hotel properties in Hong Kong BB ZBIEYE
Hotel properties in Macau RPIZBEE

1,413,143 1,454,145
822,847 855,749

2,235,990 2,309,894
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.Right-of-Use Assets

16. EAEEE

cosT R A

At 1 April 2021 7R2021F4H18

Additions NE

At 31 March 2022 72022943 A31H

Additions =

Lease expiry/terminated ME w41k

Lease modification HE BN

At 31 March 2023 7A20234F3A31H

DEPRECIATION AND FERRBE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 April 2021 7K2021F4H18

Provided for the year RERE 2 BE

Impairment loss recognised R .2 EEE

At 31 March 2022 1202243 A31H

Provided for the year RNEEG 7 B

Eliminated upon lease THE &, 4 1R

expiry/terminated

At 31 March 2023 R202343A31H
CARRYING VALUE IREE

At 31 March 2023 M2023%3A31H
At 31 March 2022 7202293 H31H

558,046

20,142
5,861

578,188
5,861

584,049
857
(8,881)
(2,344)

573,681

558,046 26,003
857

(8,881)

(2,344)
15,635

558,046

39,346
19,674

6,793
4,298

46,139
23,972

82,008
18,715

13,079
2,525

95,087
21,240

= (8,881)
100,723 6,723

(8,881)
107,446

457,323
476,038

8,912

466,235

12,924 488,962

Expense relating to short-term leases

EHEHEEZRAX

1,269

Total cash outflow for leases

MEZRE R AR

6,595

The Group leases certain leasehold lands, office,
warehouse and carparks for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term from 2 to 25
years (2022: 1 to 25 years). Certain leases of leasehold
lands in Macau are negotiated for an initial term of 25
years with extension options exercisable by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

AEBEHEETHEL M BRAE - BER
FESIEREEZHA HEAOMTL2E
EFHR2E25% (20224 - 12254 ) - R
FMeETHEL M BORERTESH
255 WA AKBETTHREREEZE-

HMEGRIREEBERETHEANES
R [R5 3R B AR A - A B FE AR HA R A T
TR RER A REEAE LN
TEENETE A K58 B e B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

16.Right-of-Use Assets (continued)

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and
commercial properties classified as property, plant and
equipment and investment properties respectively.
The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests. The leasehold
land components of these owned properties are not
presented separately as the payments made cannot be
allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for office. As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of leases disclosed above.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, impairment
losses of HK$22,988,000 and HKS$347,000 had been
recognised on leasehold lands and land and buildings
in respect of hotel and hotel related operations in
Grand Emperor Hotel, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, an impairment
loss of HK$1,641,000 has been recognised on land and
building included in right-of-use assets as the Directors
consider the future cash inflow from this right-of-use
asset will be insignificant.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group assessed the leasehold
lands included in right-of-use assets of Grand Emperor
Hotel together with their respective hotel properties for
impairment by considering their recoverable amounts,
in view of operating losses incurred by the hotel and
hotel related operations of Grand Emperor Hotel. The
details of the determination of the recoverable amounts
are disclosed in note 15. No impairment loss was
recognised on the leasehold lands of Grand Emperor
Hotel for the year ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group
assessed the leasehold lands included in right-of-use
assets of Inn Hotel and The Emperor Hotel together
with their respective hotel properties for impairment
by considering their recoverable amounts, in view of
operating losses incurred by these hotels. The details
of the determination of the recoverable amounts
are disclosed in note 15. No impairment loss was
recognised on the leasehold lands of Inn Hotel and The
Emperor Hotel for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022.
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I NREBEDREBAE T ORAWE
R R EERERYEASLIREYE -
AEERZEMFEnD (BEAREE )
ZEMBEAAN SUBEZEME#ED R
SEX—FBHRIA - AR RBER SED BCAT
PR BMREEEMENHELHHH L E
BE2Y-

AEBRBATEMITLEHEE - R
20233 H31H 202293 H31H - &2 HifE
EHAEIXOREHEHEAHESE

B 220223 A31H IEFE B AR
RERGEE 2B MBERBER 2HE
EX AR L RIEF D R ERBERER
22,988,000/ 7 £2347,000/% 7T °

BE20223A31H L E Bt AR
REE 2 i MEFRERRIERE 181,641,000
B RARESASKAZEREEEL
KRB RARGRTRIE -

20233 A31H  ERRPIR SRR
ZBEMBERBEBELE 2KEEBR

RSB DA W [ RE AT (R P 3E 2 IREETR
EAFAERREEZHET ERZAE
B2 BRI R 2 RE - EE AR &5 2 7
BB FE154% 58 - B £2023F3 A31H L F
B A RPI R SR E 2 E £ 1
RBERE -

7202343 A31H K%202263H31H - R
ZEBEEE KL EER  REE U AKRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.Interest in an Associate

Interest in an associate represents the Group’s
50% equity interest in Xinhui Hongsheng Property
Development Company Limited (“Xinhui Hongsheng”).
In view of the composition of board of directors of
Xinhui Hongsheng, the Directors consider that the
Group has significant influence over Xinhui Hongsheng.
Xinhui Hongsheng is established in The PRC and is
engaged in property development in The PRC.

7. R—BBE QR 2 &
R—HBERR 2 EaiE A ARE RS
BMWEBRRARAR ([FHEBE])FAN
500 - ENMERRESTGZMEN &
ERRAEEENERRBEEEATE S -
MEBRER PR RPBEEENEER
EN

Cost of investment in an associate,
unlisted JEET

Share of translation reserve DG E R
Share of post-acquisition profits DR 18 T

RS QR ZERA

75,978 75,978
(2,150) 7,559
36,402 48,849

110,230 132,386

The associate is accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

ZBERRIARREAALEREMB
WK

B AR 2 B AR E RN T
TR B AR B R AR R BB 5 Bk
AR BN B 1 RV TS SRR A5 R 2 B -

Current assets MENVEE 394,962 432,108
Non-current assets ERBEE 25,251 28,858
Current liabilities B BE (208,363) (206,226)
Revenue A 2,914 6,731
Loss for the year FEEE (24,209) (298)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

17.Interest in an Associate (continued) 1T R—EBERNR 2ER (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial RERE M BEHRRPERNN — B LS QA
information to the carrying amount of the interest EEZEHERDHEER LAMBER
in an associate and share of result recognised in the MELHRWT

consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of an associate R—EBERR 2 FEE 211,850 254,740
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZR&EEK — & A &% B #E
interest in an associate R ZhEs = 50% 50%
105,925 127,370
Effect of fair value adjustment at WHERANEBEARZZE
acquisition (Note) (K13E) 4,305 5,016
110,230 132,386
The exchange loss of HK$9,709,000 (2022: exchange HE2023F3A31H FFE 0 E — A
gain of HK$5,372,000) arising from translation of N B BB kT E A TE KBS 489,709,00058
financial information of an associate for the year ended 70 (20224 : [E ¥ W 255,372,000/ 7T ) Jh 7
31 March 2023 is recognised in OCl and accumulated in Hfth 2 T U5 2 B R S O B Y 4 R At o
translation reserve.
Note: During the year, the fair value adjustment on properties Mt RAFE WERBZEEZRNEEME
under development at acquisition released to profit and Bet A —HBE AR EBEZERSP
loss and included in share of result of an associate upon ME 2z N R BEFER343,000% T (2022
sale of the properties amounted to HK$343,000 (2022: £ 1 655,000/87T) °

HK$655,000).
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= 176  ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 3R




mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.Interest in a Joint Venture

Interest in a joint venture represents interest in Superb
Land Limited (“Superb Land”) in which the Group holds
50% (2022: 40%) equity interest. During the year ended
31 March 2023, the Group acquired 10% additional
interest from one of its joint venture partners with cash
consideration of HK$65,002,000. All decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
all the joint venture partners sharing control. Superb
Land holds 100% interest in Talent Charm Corporation
Limited (“Talent Charm”), being the property
development company of a development project
located at No.15 Shouson Hill Road West, Hong Kong.

Cost of investment in a joint venture,
unlisted LT
Share of post-acquisition losses SMERIEEEE

R—HAEEERZRERA

BR-—EEEEE 2 ER

R—HeaErEZEZBEASERE
Superb Land Limited ([Superb Land ]) =~
50% (20224 : 40% ) P #& - &, 22202343 H
BIRIEFE AEBEBHAZSRHE Y — B
10%#H) 88 9N 25 - 30 @ X (B /65,002,0007%5
T HAEB B RKARMERRZAE
THE 2 & &R Y —BFAE - Superb Land
RAGRBAERAR ([H#]) 2100%#E s -
MERAEMEZR AR HERBEMRE
ABEELEAELSSE -

65,002 -
(41,655)

Amount due from a joint venture

B —HeEtE A

(48,283)

16,719 (41,655)
1,310,861 1,004,812
1,327,580 963,157

As at 31 March 2023, the amount due from a joint
venture carries interest at 2.2% (2022: 2.2%) per
annum. It has no fixed terms of repayment and the
Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of the advance within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
amount forms part of net investment and it is shown as
non-current.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

72023438310 ER—BAE L E XK
I8 TY IR F F E2.2% (20224 : 2.2% ) 5H & °
ZFH BV EETERE MAEEESNR
SHIRHE+ — @B RTTEEEF A B K(E
BB A 22 EEAFIREN—F
D WE BIERE -

B ERENIURRATAAZEREY
e

AEBEREERZUBEMBREIN T3
TAMBENBMEREREE M B REE
ARENEECEYBHRRAIIRZHEE -

9

Current assets MENVEE 4,798,041 4,953,637
Current liabilities VEIR=E (3,238,055) (5,057,775)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,677,380) -
Revenue A 435,000 -
Loss for the year FEEIE 13,255 102,880

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

18.Interest in a Joint Venture (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
a joint venture and share of result recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Net liabilities of a joint venture
Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in a joint venture

AEER—HAE

—HAaEbRZAEFRA

B PhE DX

I R—EEeELEER (&)
RELHBRERERHRA—ME B0
RS T T e
BEHEMNT -

(117,394) (104,138)

Amount due from a joint venture
Effect of fair value adjustment on
acquisition of additional interest

W B ER S 2

By 486
wa

EW—H & & d % KA
XA

EERE
50% 40%
(58,697) (41,655)
1,310,861 1,004,812

NIEBEAE
75,416 -
1,327,580 963,157

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has given a corporate
guarantee of HK$1,165,000,000 (2022: HK$932,000,000)
to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted
to Talent Charm, of which HK$1,012,738,000 (2022:
HK$932,000,000) has been utilised. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee is
not significant.

19.Goodwill

COST 52N

At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and at

720214 H1H - 20223 A31H

2023F3A31H A& BBt AR ER
ZHRTHMERN —BRITEBALERER
1,165,000,0007% 7T (20224 : 932,000,000
B 7T) - B 71,012,738,000/% JT (20224 :
932,000,000 L) E KB B -EFRA
BRERZAREBETIEKR.

19. &

31 March 2023 202343 AH31H
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H1H
Impairment loss recognised R BEEE

At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023

7202243 H31H 202343 A31H

CARRYING VALUE ARMEE
At 31 March 2023 R202343A31H
At 31 March 2022 7202253 H31H 1,940

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Directors
are in view of the foreseeable cessation of the gaming
operation in Grand Emperor Hotel after the expiry date
of the service agreements with SJM on 26 June 2022.
Hence, impairment loss of HK$54,743,000 (2023: Nil)
has been recognised on goodwill in respect of gaming
operation in Grand Emperor Hotel.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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HZE2022F3A3I8 LG E EER AR
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BRIR R & Ewm B (81202246 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

19.Goodwill (continued) 19.82 (&)
Regarding the remaining goodwill of HK$1,940,000 Bt #2 T1,940,000/% 7T (20224 : 1,940,000
(2022: HK$1,940,000) for the purpose of impairment BL)ZEEMES  AETRENR  ZE
test, it has been allocated to the cash-generating unit in BEOREMFEHECHeEAEMN BH
relation to the lease of properties, and no impairment BREZFE-
is considered necessary.

20.0ther Assets 20 HhE=E

Club debentures and memberships, at cost €FifE5 L& % -

The club debentures and memberships have indefinite EMESFREHEABRREH-
life.
21.Properties Held for Sale 21 FEHE 23
The carrying amounts of properties held for sale FEHEZMEZEHERFBLNIA T
comprise properties situated in: Dak:ok//E &

Hong Kong 7 581,956 668,022
The PRC i 453 487

582,409 668,509

22.Properties Under Development for Sale  22. E{EFHE R EHDYHE

The amounts represent projects of properties under FRCHERBERIFLEZERTME-
development for sale in Hong Kong.

Included in the amounts are properties under ZEFREBREZFELEZERD
development for sale of approximately HK$4,311,331,000 Y) % 494,311,331,000/% T (20224 :
(2022: HK$4,787,850,000) which are expected to be 4,787,850,0007% 70 ) TE TS 7Y 2R 45 BRI R AB 5T
recovered after twelve months from the end of the TEA®EFHE -

reporting period.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in RAFE BHEHEZBREDPYEZER
properties under development for sale amounted to £ F) B F1E £142,124,0007%8 7T (20224 :
HKS$142,124,000 (2022: HK$135,012,000). 135,012,000/ 7T) ©

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

23.Trade and Other Receivables

An analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:

‘

Trade receivables (Note a)
Chips on hand (Note b)

Other receivables (Note c)
Deposits and prepayments (Note d)

£ (HiZb)

B 5 RWRIR (Hfeta)

H & Wk R (K atc)
e RENFOR (Bitd)

B 5 R EMEWR

B o5 REMEKFKIAZ D WZZITF:

7/l

As at 31 March 2023, trade receivables comprise
receivables from contracts with customers and lease
receivables of HK$33,314,000 (2022: HK$24,431,000)
and HK$22,755,000 (2022: HK$41,242,000) respectively.

As at 1 April 2021, trade receivables from contracts
with customers and lease receivables amounted to
HK$40,969,000 and HK$22,334,000 respectively.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net
of impairment allowance) based on either the date
of credit granted or the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is set out below:

56,069 65,673

= 50,444

178,424 208,961

237,035 398,396

471,528 723,474
R202343A310 & 5 N E 11%7}( B
HERPAEHCERWFIBERERBERE 55

/%33,314,000/% 7T (20224 : 24,431,0005’%
7t) }22,755,000/% 7T (20224 : 41,242,000
BIT)

20214 H1B -85 r_HﬁerIE \LT’EX S|

EPAHZEBA M EKHEEREAD R
40,969,0007% 7T }222,334,000/% T ©

REEHR - RIBEAEEE 5 R UGA (4
FRORERE) 2 REEREARRERAHM
Ve BB S AT

0 - 30 days 0%30H 46,148
31 -90 days 31=90H 3,264
91 - 180 days 91%180H 3,289
Over 180 days 180H LA I 12,972
65,673

Notes: Biat -

(a)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT

No credit period was granted to tenants for rental of
premises. Before accepting any new tenant, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential tenant.
No credit period was granted to hotel customers generally
except for those high credit rating customers to whom an
average credit period of 30 days were granted.

For gaming operation, the Group normally allows credit
periods of up to 60 days to its credit approved customers,
except for certain credit worthy customers with long term
relationship and stable repayment pattern, where the credit
periods are extended to a longer period.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the trade receivable
balances in respect of other operations are debtors with
carrying amounts of HK$22,755,000 (2022: HK$41,242,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k

(a) AKEXEREEMEZABARDEED-
P A RTHTAGE A Z 31 N B AR ET
HEEABAZEEER-AEEBERT
EREEEFPRNEER HEERFZE
BN AL 2 FEER308 -

MBEREBTE ARE-RETEEEESE
HOEFPELEZ60B 2 EEH HEETAS
EHRERBEEREANEERTFEPK
O REZFEEHAEERE —BRREHH-

M202353A31H - Kb (% 2 B 5 UK
T8 4 # B35 BRE (822,755,00078 7T (20224 -
41,242,000/ 7T) 2 FEURBR TR - A& AR
[EE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

23.Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

(c) As at 31 March 2023, included in other receivables are
amount due from a related company of HK$45,520,000 (2022:
HK$38,236,000). This related company is indirectly controlled
by private discretionary trust which is founded by Dr. Albert
Yeung, a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company.
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(d) As at 31 March 2023, included in deposits and prepayments
are refundable stamp duties in respect of redevelopment
projects of HK$145,654,000 (2022: HK$268,932,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set
out in note 40(b).

24.Deposit in Designated Bank Account for

Development Properties

The amount of HK$9,885,000 (2022: HK$10,569,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,653,000 (2022:
RMBS8,571,000)), was deposited to a bank account
designated under t REi5 R EEE RS as deposit
for resettlement in relation to the development of the
investment properties in The PRC. Such bank deposit is
restricted for settlement in relation to the resettlement
work and carried interest at 1.0% (2022: 1.0%) per
annum. The deposit is expected to be released within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and classified as current assets.

25.Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 March 2023, pledged bank deposits comprise
(i) a deposit of HK$65,887,000 (2022: HKS$64,134,000)
(classified as current asset (2022: non-current asset))
and (ii) a deposit of HK$300,000 (2022: HK$354,000)
(classified as current asset), details of which are set out
in notes 42(a) and 42(b) respectively. The pledged bank
deposits carry fixed interest rates which ranged from
2.80% to 3.80% (2022: 0.63% to 1.20%) per annum.

23.

24,

25.

BE5 REMEBEWIE (&)

By (4)

(b) SBWEEFMIBE AR AR ET LA HELS
HERS A

() M20234%3A31H A EWKIEREEW
& A 7 2 % I845,520,000/% 7T (20224 -
38,236,000/ 7C) - A5 MER R HBGIE L
(BRREARB 2 EERR) KL ZFABE
ERREEH -FRREREER 22K
REREE-

(d) 72023%3A31H & RBENFREREERZ
T8 Bz A :RIEENTEHi145,654,000%8 7T (2022
4 268,932,000 7T) °

BE2023F3A3IBIEFE 2 EH M EHAME
WOkIR 2 BAE AT (4 R IR B M 5E40(b) ©

B3R U 17 U R 4R 1T IR
F2EH
AEBEERAIRAEREFEEERE
JE R T HR P 17 A9,885,000/% T (2022
%:10,569,000/8 L) (WHEENARK
8,653,0007T (20224 : A R#8,571,000
7)) EREMBETEREME L RE -
ZRTERERNBIEEBENBELIE
Z A RS WRF N E1.0% (20225 -
1.0%) &t B o At Z RN E K&
TEARNERLFERRBEE -

BIERITER, TR

R RITEHRRAS

720233 A31H - S IR RITF REHE()
7 765,887,000/ 7T (20224 : 64,134,000
BT (D BERREEE (20225 : 3ER
BE) ) MK (ii)fF 300,000/ 7T (2022 -
354,000 7T) (D EEARRBDEE)  HEF
15 99 Bl &5 M 5142(a) K242(b) - B IR IR 1T
T AR F2.80% % 3.80%H] & TE F A &
(20224 : 0.63%%1.20%)5t 2. °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

25.Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

(continued)

As at 31 March 2023, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which ranged from 1.20% to 4.30% (2022:
0.80% to 1.00%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits with an original maturity of
3 months or less and carry interests at the prevailing
market rate at 0.01% (2022: 0.01%) per annum or at
fixed interest rates which ranged from 2.00% to 3.55%
(2022: 0.08% to 1.00%) per annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currency other than
functional currency of the relevant group entities:

Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BT (DRFT])
uUSsD ES

RMB AR

Pound Sterling (“GBP”) HeE ([Hes])

25. BRI ER EHERTE
RORTERRES (&

R2023F3A310  REIMIB A=A L
2 R HASR AT 17 O B T F R RN T1.20%
Z£4.30% (20224 : 0.80%%1.00% ) 5 & #
%\ o

RITEHRLACERASERAEZRE N
REBARRIEAIN T RRITHIHF
A #0.01% (20224 : 0.01%) 3k (& & F 7
91 F2.00%%£3.55% (20224 : 0.08% %
1.00% ) &t B 2 SRITFH

ERMIRITER  RHARITEREIRITER
EREBRETIIAEEEEERZES
BMNEBEE 2SR

18,981
23,699 103
235,672 38,832
858 141

26.Trade and Other Payables

182

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set
out below:

26. B 5 N E B IR
RIS IR IRBAEE L 5N F0E 2 %
2B HA i R AT T

0 -90 days 0&90H 24,871 25,115
91 - 180 days 91%180H 330 81
Over 180 days 180H A E 15 26
25,216 25,222

Amount due to a shareholder of JE 7 — R Bk 2 A B IR SR R IB
an associate (Note) (H15E) 1,356 1,463
Construction payables and accruals B TIEIB R ERT B 299,302 357,854
Rental deposits received BERHERS 273,792 283,214
Other payables and accruals HiENRIBEBREAER 202,316 221,594
801,982 889,347

The amount due to a shareholder of an associate is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Note:

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

27.Contract Liabilities 2. 5B RE

Pre-sales proceeds received on
sales of properties

A3 37

ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂXZﬁ%

11,029

As at 1 April 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$303,396,000.

During the year, the amount of HK$10,491,000 (2022:
HK$296,066,000) which was included in contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was
recognised as revenue.

The Group on average receives 10% of the contract
value as deposits from customers when they sign the
sale and purchase agreement. However, depending on
market conditions, the Group may offer customers a
discount compared to the listed sales price, provided
that the customers agree to pay the balance of the
consideration early while construction is still ongoing.
The deposits and advance payment schemes result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
property construction period until the customer obtains
control of the completed property.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking
into consideration the credit characteristics of the
relevant group entities. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liabilities during the period
of construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customers.

The Directors considered that the balance of contract
liabilities in relation to sales of properties at the end of
the reporting period will be recognised as revenue to
profit or loss as follows:

M2021F4H1H &
BT

RAFE RENGFAGHNABRERZER
10,491,000/% T (20224 : 296,066,000/%
TC) FERR AN

#1818 /303,396,000

AEBERXFEREE R - — R
EPI0%E M BERRE AW RIED
BIEM - ANE PR B T TR ER X
MNREZES BHEEELER T A5E
AIRERE P EE TR EEE@&?EHM#EIJ
EEZARNBERBEY R TIZHRER
EERFFPRGCERMEZEHE-

AN REBRBBBN KA ESAEARE
MRE Y RBE R EEEREEY ERHE
RELE EFAREHEEEERNERR
Bo MNZIEA BRI NN EEMEN AL
BESRE HIBMRE BRI RIEN SR
TEPRBEAZWATE-

EHRBRHEENE AL
B AERREALDT

Current mE 10,491
Non-current IER B 538
11,029

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

27.Contract Liabilities (continued)

The changes in contract liabilities are due to i) changes
in the progress of sales of properties when the Group
satisfies the performance obligations under the
contracts, or ii) decrease in advance payments from
customers for unsatisfied performance obligation under
the contracts.

28.Amount Due to an Associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

29.Amount Due to a Related Company

As at 31 March 2023, the amount is unsecured and carry
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
+1% per annum (2022: HIBOR +1% per annum).

During the year, further advances from the related
company amounted to HKS$737,875,000 (2022:
HK$1,573,296,000) and the Group partially repaid the
principal of HK$1,035,074,000 (2022: HK$370,690,000)
to the related company. The principal amount
outstanding as at 31 March 2023 was HKS$1,404,128,000
(2022: HKS$1,701,327,000). It was agreed with the
related company that the Group will repay the amount
based on the sufficiency of its operating cash flows.
Therefore, the Group revises its estimates on the timing
and amount of repayment to the related company and
adjusts the carrying amounts in accordance with the
revised estimated cash flows with the related company
on regular basis. At the end of both reporting periods,
the total carrying amounts were classified as current
liabilities.

30.Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests

of Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the amounts
represent unsecured and interest-free shareholders’
loans due to non-controlling interests of Luck United
Holdings Limited (“Luck United”) and Able Elegant
Development Limited (“Able Elegant”). In accordance
with the contractual terms of the shareholders’
agreements, the amounts are to be repaid from surplus
fund, which represent cash available in Luck United
and its subsidiaries and Able Elegant after payment of
all operating expenses and payables including but not
limited to bank loans and third party loans which are
due for repayment together with the accrued interest.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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27.

28.

20.

30.

BHNEE (&)
ANBEEHHER)AEBEBTANET
BOEMEYEHELEEY  Ri)EFH
A HIE TR IE 7B 49 2 (E 10 98 3 00 5E R
DR

PR — B S R B FKE
EMREAMER 2B RERERMEE-

e —ERE 1 A 7R IE
R2023%3A310 - A BB ARER -
MARESRITAERE ((BERTRE
B 2.1) M11%2 4 7% (20226 : BB 4R 1T
EESTEVIEESIESLE S TR

RAFE REBEARZE—FSBERA
737,875,000% 7T (20224 : 1,573,296,000/%
JL)  AEE B EE 5 4 £1,035,074,000
7 7t (20224 : 370,690,000/ 7T) F R E A
Ao 2023F3A3IH M ABEZASEE
1,404,128,0007% 7T (20224 : 1,701,327,000
BIL) R HEBIEARRTE AEEBRE
KEREREFZTEEEEERE B K
SETHRERBEN R Z LB ETR
SRE BEHHEHEERFAELRFAE LK
MR EEAGTIFAERAE R ERSE
R BEEESEARBARE-

FENHE AR 2 EERER
18

720233 H31H Kk202263A31H " B
$ FA4E 1 Luck United Holdings Limited
(TLuck United |) REBZERAR AR ([F
Bl)EERER EEAREE KRR
ERX-REBERRGHZEDEGER ZE2
BEABHRESEER MAMRESIELuck
United R EM B RABIUAREBR A
RER X RN FIE (BEE RN E
BEZBROTERRE=FEXR(ERE
ME))BZAIEBARE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

30.Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests  30. BB AT 2 FEREZR

of Subsidiaries (continued) 15 (78 )

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the 720233 H31H 202243 H31H - Luck
management of Luck United and the management of United8BE N EEERBER RLuck
Able Elegant determined that Luck United and Able United R ERBEARRAAZBHRESBIE
Elegant had adequate available surplus fund for the BEERNHFERRREZZ2HREELS
repayment of all principal amounts outstanding to its R o A UL 52 IEA2023F3 A31H %2022
non-controlling shareholders. Accordingly, the amounts FIAZAI TR RRBEE-

are shown as current liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022.

31.Unsecured Notes 31. BMIKHERE

USD110,640,000 unsecured notes 110,640,000 TR [E F

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.5% FEB4.5%TE
per annum, payable semi-annually  ZB&¥F{E1
with maturity in 2023 at carrying 72023F FHi 2
amounts EEAER CREE (a) 867,963 864,265
HK$200,000,000 unsecured notes 200,000,000 JTi% & E
carry fixed coupon rate of 3.15% 2 83.15%;T B
per annum, payable semi-annually  ZA&¥FE1
with maturity in 2023 at carrying 72023F FHi 2
amounts BEFREBEEREEB (b) 199,358
HK$80,000,000 unsecured notes 80,000,000 JTi% [E E
carry fixed coupon rate of 4.88% FE 54.88%5T B
per annum, payable annually with AEBENEN
maturity in 2029 at carrying 720294 B Hi 2
amounts BEERERZEEE (c) 79,873
HK$40,000,000 unsecured notes 40,000,000/ JLiZ[E F
carry fixed coupon rate of 4.4% FED44%TE
per annum, payable semi-annually  ZB&¥F{E1
with maturity in 2024 at carrying 2024F B Hi 2
amounts BEERERZEERE (d) 39,787
HK$260,000,000 unsecured notes 260,000,000 JTiR & E
carry fixed coupon rate of 4.5% FEB4.5%TE
per annum, payable semi-annually  ZB&¥FE1
with maturity in 2024 at carrying 72024F B Hi 2
amounts BEEFEBECEEE (e) 259,575 259,153
1,247,314 1,442,436
Less: Amounts due within one year 5 : R —F R E|HFE
shown under current liabilities (RRBEEERET
5K ) (867,963) (199,358)
Amounts due after one year shown — R—F&E| HFIA
under non-current liabilities (RIERBBEIEBTIIR) 379,351 1,243,078
The proceeds from the issuance of unsecured notes are BIREMEBRZFAGERERBEREE
intended to use for general working capital purposes of Z—MREEER-
the Group.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEEBMARAT !
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31.Unsecured Notes (continued)

Notes:

o

(a)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

In September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes of
USD250,000,000. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Company redeemed the unsecured notes of USD139,360,000.
The unsecured notes (Stock code: 40367) are listed on the
Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 4.5% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 4.65% per annum. The
principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in
2023.

In March 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$200,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 3.15% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 3.5% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes was
redeemed in March 2023.

In October 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$80,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.88% per annum, payable annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.91% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2029.

In May 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$40,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.68%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2024.

In May 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$260,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.68%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2024.
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3L EEHRE (&

(a)

FA20204F9 A + 7% 24 & % 47250,000,0003 7T
EMFER - H 22022F3A31IB8EFEE K
A A& 01139,360,0003 JT 4 £ 3 10 245 - &
IR (B R 57 - 40367) RBEFT 1
RETEFEBAS%TE WESFFHE-
EIEAEE 2 BB F T X A24.65% - F K 17
ER A EAENR2023FEE -

$2202043 A + A 2 7] # 17200,000,0005% 7T
EEMRE - BEARBRREEFRELR3.15%
AR UASFFENR -ERANRBEZER
FHEB3.5% - \MERZ I 2 NS HMN2023
FIAEE-

20194104 - 78 2~ 7] % 7780,000,0005% 7T
EEMRE - BEARBRETEFREE4.88%
AR ABEFNE -BEMEBREZERF
MES491% - EEREBR 2 AT RAR
20294 (& -

2201945 A - /&~ 7] # 1740,000,0007% 7T
EEA RS BEARBRETE FR54.4%
HRCYASEENES - BEARBZER
FMER468% - BEMEFRZASFEARN
20245 B -

F20194F5 8 - A8 & 7 # 17260,000,0007% 7T
EEARE BEARBRETEFES4.5%
ARCYABEENES - BEARBRZER
FMERI68% BEREBRZASHAN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.Bank Borrowings

Bank loans

32.8R1TEE

The bank borrowings are repayable
as follows*:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year
but not exceeding two years

Within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding five years

More than five years

Carrying amounts of bank borrowings
that contain a repayment on
demand clause shown under
current liabilities

Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities

BITER 19,752,998 19,527,740
RITIEEZERB I T :
—FN 7,802,670 3,635,788
—F LA FERBBERT
3,685,261 5,072,736
MFEIA FBTBERSF
7,052,033 9,074,764
TENU 1,212,194 1,736,626
19,752,158 19,519,914
IRITIEEZREE
BEREREERENR
BB aEE TR
840 7,826
19,752,998 19,527,740
B R —EREIEARE
RERBHEEETIIR (7,803,510) (3,643,614)
RIERBEEBETIIRZ
FRIA 11,949,488 15,884,126

*

Carrying amounts based on scheduled repayment dates set

* REEERERBHEAESZFTEERE M-

out in the loan agreements.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s
certain bank borrowings are subject to various financial
covenants tests on certain financial ratios and asset
requirements on or before the end of the reporting
period. The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period.

The bank borrowings carry floating rate interests,
mainly ranging from HIBOR + 0.84% to HIBOR + 2.00%
per annum and at Sterling Overnight Index Average
(“SONIA”) + 1.53% per annum (2022: ranging from
HIBOR + 0.84% to HIBOR + 2.00% per annum and at
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) + 1.53% per
annum).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings
of HK$14,562,998,000 (2022: HKS$12,747,740,000) are
secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 42(a)).

The weighted average effective interest rate of bank
borrowings is at 4.38% (2022: 1.81%) per annum.

B E2023F3A31R L FE - AEEE TR
TEREBENRERRI A E THHLL
RREBEBREREBUWBEHEMH - A&
BREERS M ETEZFRE -

ZERITEERIPNERFE FREEN
FREBRITRZEIR B IN0.84%E & BIRITF
E 47 B In2.00%2 F F) &K - W B IR R ERR
FRFAME ([EEBERFFFEHNE])
M1.53%.2 F /& (20224 : N FH ERITH
ZEHF200.84% = & B IR1TREHF 2 012.00%
ZENERMBRITRAERE ([fREIRTT
R4 E]) IN11.53% 2 FF|E )5t B o

M2023FE3A310 K& ERITE
& 214,562,998,000/% 7T (20224 :
12,747,740,0008 7T ) A A EB 2 5 TEE
ER (RKiE42(a)) °

RITHEE 2 MEFIERFF X 34.38%
(20224 : 1.81%) °

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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32.8R1TEE (&)

32.Bank Borrowings (continued)

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

GBP

+
it
S

RITIEERE NI EEEEER 26
SRS EBEE SR

1,362,345

33.Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities payable:

ENHERE:

B.HEHEERE

Within one year —FRX 4,337
Within a period of more than oneyear  —F LA EETHBBEMRSF
but not more than two years 3,606
Within a period of more than two years MF LA EETHBERSF
but not more than five years 9,444
More than five years FHFEU 24,588
41,975
Less: Amount due for settlement with B BA méﬁﬁ% 2
one year shown under R—FREREEZ
current liabilities Cokii) (2,893) (4,337)
Amount shown under non-current RIERBEEERETNIRZ
liabilities I8 33,041 37,638

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 3.5% to 4.0%
(2022: from 3.5% to 4.0%) per annum.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HK$35,934,000 (2022:
HK$41,975,000) are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of HK$29,504,000 (2022: HK$36,258,000) as
at 31 March 2023. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Except for
the leasehold lands and related assets recognised in
Macau, other related leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 March 2023, the amounts are secured by rental
deposits with carrying values of HK$676,000 (2022:
HKS$1,061,000).

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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ERREEABZINEFHEEEESF
FIE A F3.5%%4.0% (20224 : 3.5% %
4.0%) o

HEENRHE IR

202343 A31H EHABEEEE
35,934,000/% 7T, (20224 : 41,975,000/ 7T )
B AE B 5 B 48 & £29,504,00078 7T (20224

36,258,000/ 7T) ~ HE HZEMREEAFFE 2
MEEE 2 ERETRIN jﬂﬁf%ﬂm&ﬂj@uﬁ °

BRPOEFIFERNMEE L3 RMABRE B ESN B
fEAEEEEETSRERENEM-

720233 A31H &3/ A LABRE{5676,000
77T (20224 : 1,061,000 70) 2 HE R &
YR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.Deferred Taxation
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years.

34 IR FEBIH
AEERBEFERRY T EREHE (]
) EERAWEBIT -

At 1 April 2021 R2021%4517 (283,852)
Exchange realignments GNE 572 _
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (note 11) (k)& A B3 (#fi711) (16,264)
Credit to equity TAER 126
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMBAR (HiE37) 460
At 31 March 2022 $2022F3H31H (299,530)
Exchange realignments SNEFHE -
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (note 11) (k)& A B3 (#fi711) (29,004)
Credit to equity AER 125
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HENBAR (HiE37) 8,580
At 31 March 2023 #2023%3831H (319,829)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset.

At 31 March 2023, the Group had tax losses of
HK$3,187,704,000 (2022: HK$2,886,158,000) available
for offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of HK$1,339,740,000
(2022: HKS1,146,177,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,847,964,000 (2022: HK$1,739,981,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses of the Group might be
carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HKS$36,364,000 (2022: HK$30,370,000) which will expire
in three years from the year of assessment.

Under The PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
The PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of The PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$138,591,000 (2022: HKS$145,212,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(4,191)  (1,850,940) 153,277  (1,985,706)
- (68,078) - (68,078)
- 48,858 33,695 66,289
i} _ , 126
- - - 460

(4,191)

(1,870,160)
120,925
58,217

186,972

29,326

(2,202)

(1,986,909)
120,925
58,539
125

6,378

(4,191) (1,691,018)

214,096

(1,800,942)

IERSMBMAKR Z2IME BETEL
MEEERABCEHERE-

72023F3A31H  AEEBEABARBERE
3,187,704,000/% 7T (20224 : 2,886,158,000
FETT) AT IR B R AR F o sz E B K
1,339,740,0007 st (20224 : 1,146,177,000
P TT) B RERIR IE TR IR & B o B AR 2K Fll
R 2 AT BRI - 8RR 21,847,964,0007%
7T (20224F : 1,739,981,000/% 7T ) It 4% e 57 A
FEERBEE - ALB 2 A ERHRBEEIEA
EEHAAE HEIRFERIFRNIE
X TE36,364,0007% 7T (20224 : 30,370,000/
TC) BRANo

BIEPBRPEMERE P BB RRAT
BEURAME IR 2% B BEMNTEINT - AR
REBREMITHIBOEREEZE 2R B
EHEEREEZEa g T & RER
ANEB I Kk BB AR 2 REEF
B 7 E R 1 2= $138,591,0005% 7T (20224F
145,212,0007%8 7o) R ér & B 5 R N 1E
BT TE R -
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35.Share Capital 35. R4

THE COMPANY AN

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ & M&E{EO0.018 T2 &Mk

Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 72021F4H1H »
and 31 March 2023 2022F3A318 &
2023F3H31H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR:
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 M2021F4 718
and 31 March 2023 202293 H31H &
2023F3H31H 3,677,545,667
36.Share Option Schemes 36. B IR FE 5T &l
Share option scheme of the Company AN Z B R &
The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share A EPA2013F8 A15H R4 —IH BB AR M At
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013. 2l ([FEaxsEstall) -
The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are REARRE T B8 E 2R T

summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of Share Option Scheme (a) BREFTEZEH
To enable the Group to attract, retain and BEREBERS - REBRUEE A B
motivate talented participants to strive for future ZBBENRKAIEBRZ RKRER K
development and expansion of the Group. ok e
(b) Eligibility (b) BEEK
Eligible participants include employees (whether EER2EELERE (BERE2B
full-time or part time, including Non-executive REBEES BEFATES)RZFH
Directors) and such other eligible participants. fh e BB HE -
(c) Total number of shares available for issue under (c) RIEBEREETTFRTZRGE
the Share Option Scheme &
(i) As at 8 August 2013 (i.e. the date of passing (i) mM201348A8H (RN BEIRME
the resolution for adoption of Share Option Mergst &l 2 R B HA) %2023
Scheme) and 23 June 2023 (i.e. the date of this F6A23B (AIAFE®RAH) :
report): 366,677,619 shares. 366,677,619[% °
(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it (i) 152023%F6A23HE % TRMH 2 A
represents as at 23 June 2023: 9.97%. 7L 9.97% °

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share option scheme of the Company (continued)
(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

under the Share Option Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholder
or independent non-executive directors or
their respective associates in any one year
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

(e) Period within which the option may be exercised

by the grantee under the scheme

At any time from the date of grant of the option
to such a date determined by the Board but in
any event not exceeding 10 years from the date of
grant.

(f) Vesting period of options granted under the

scheme
No vesting period unless otherwise determined by
the Board.

(g) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls
must or may be made: Within 28 days from the
date of grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Board and
will not be less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The scheme will expire on 14 August 2023.

No option has been granted since the adoption date of
the Share Option Scheme.

36. B AEST 8 (&)
RRRZBRETE (&)
() BRBHYBETSEERBESRE
A ERE R LR
() BIERADDBREIM  FREL
128 A BRI T3 BB 2 %17
Befp 2 1% :

(i) AMEM—F2AMEIERRIE
VIFATESFAREIZTBZHE
ARH 2 BhiE EHEE TR
7 20.1% X (& {8 #8 185,000,000/8
TR AR R RIRRBLAE -

() ZitBETREAATTRBREZ
HR
RELBREAMEEEESET L
B ABZ EAEREREER
T NMEHEER L A HEFT105F -

() ZiBETERHZIEREZFE

]
GROEEEERTTET SRYERES
E}qo

(g) () a5 EkIR M EE IRIE RS PTZE BT 1Y
(B : 1.00/E T :

(i) A7 R]RENS SR SGB A 3K 2 HB
BRI A BER28E A &

(i) FERREBRAN FHAE B ERE
EHR - TEA -

(h) BETEEZEE
AEERESEET BAEERT
P&maE: QR BREBERG ZKkH
B bR EBEEREBYAELER
Bz FHRmHE: R(OBRHEE-

(i) BEREEZE TR
Zat & 70202358 H14H B Hi -

BB AR 3R B B AR BB R KB A
e
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36.Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel
A share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel (“Emperor
E Hotel Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 15
August 2013. A summary of the Emperor E Hotel Share
Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option

Scheme

To enable the group of Emperor E Hotel to attract,
retain and motivate talented participants to strive
for future developments and expansion of the
group of Emperor E Hotel.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether
full time or part time employee, including non-
executive directors) and such other eligible
participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under

the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme

(i) Asat 8 August 2013 (i.e. the date of passing the
resolution for adoption of the Emperor E Hotel
Share Option Scheme) and 23 June 2023 (i.e.
the date of this report): 129,254,598 shares.

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares of Emperor
E Hotel that it represents as at 23 June 2023:
10.88%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Emperor E Hotel Share Option

Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors
or their respective associates in any one
year exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the
shares in issue and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k
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36. B HERTE (4F)

RERGEE B R ERT 8
RERAEEBRESS ([R2REAEE
BB HES 811 ) 7R2013F8 A15H £ i - 38
SREEEE AR S 2 T

(a) REBRETEEREEZE R

RERERLTFEERERERRS]  BE R
HEBEA B2 HEEURKEERE
BB RREFR IR -

(b) BHEHK
RERSEERERE (EmEB
EBES DENHTES) RREH
faERSEE-

(c) RIEHELETEIBKRENE T T
RITZKIDBE -
() 7201348A8R (BNiE B MR
SIRGEE 5 W B 5T Bl 2 RE R
A H) %202356 8238 (AN A4
HREH) : 129,254,598

(i) 152023F6H23A 2 & 1TZ K2R
LBER D 2 A D 10.88% e

(d) RERZEEEBRESEETEHE
EERSHEETERERZ LR

(i) BIFERBIREFERIAE T
BIFE(E {1218 A B fE ;R 1 15 tﬂ
E%éTTHXT 1% &

(i) AMEM—F2z2AMEIERRIE
VIFATESARSTIZB CME
ARHEZ BRiE SHEBEHITR
7 20.1% } {E B 1 485,000,000/8
TT(ABRERE)BKRIRE
B 5 B BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel (continued)

(e)

(")

(9)

(h)

Period within which the option may be exercised

by the grantee under the scheme

At any time from the date of grant of the option to
such a date determined by the board of directors of
Emperor E Hotel but in any event not exceeding 10
years from the date of grant.

Vesting period of options granted under the
scheme

No vesting period unless otherwise determined by
the board of directors of Emperor E Hotel.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HKS$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls
must or may be made: Within 28 days from the
date of grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of Emperor E Hotel and will not be less
than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Emperor E Hotel Share

Option Scheme
The scheme will expire on 14 August 2023.

No option has been granted since the adoption date of
the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme.

36 ,E\EHX*E;-I_EJ (/115)
RERYAEBRETSE (&)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Zil BB T RBEAATTRBREZ
HR
REHERERAESRSMREEE
EEeET AR BN EMRERE-
HERERBR T TSEBE L AR
FH10%F -

ZilE AT ERLHZEREZFB
bt
BRIFEREREBEEZTSRTEE &
B e HA

() FRRESREMIE IR TS
KB 1.00% 7T :

(i) w78 3k AT RE AN R Bk 8 AT 3R 2 B0
PR X B HRERT28H A I

(i) BN RIBAN KA E N ERE
EHR - T -

Eﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁzg?ﬁ
TEEIRRE “@E%% Bx
HE 1S 1EEEAT§‘J F(a) R H

iy < Wi & (b)E/\\\iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ H &
A AL = 5 A R 2 P ETE : K ()
BefnmEfE -

HERET TR ET B 28 TR
R
AT &8 702023F8 A14H I H -

B3R 2 R AR 5 B B RT B SR B HIASR
BRI h B R
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37.Disposal of Subsidiaries

194

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had
disposed of the following subsidiaries:

On 30 December 2021, Emperor Property Development
Limited (“EPDL”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest
in Earn Benefit Limited (“Earn Benefit”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which holds
a site located at Nos. 67-77 Nam On Street, Shau Kei
Wan, Hong Kong, and all loan due by Earn Benefit to
EPDL to an independent third party at a total adjusted
consideration of approximately HK$690,915,000. The
disposal was completed on 29 April 2022 with a gain of
HK$212,069,000.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Earn Benefit
was as follows:

Cash consideration received and inflow of
cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the disposal of a subsidiary

FHRLEMNBARZERNEENRE
NEBRERREEEBWRA

3NHLEME AT

BE2023F3A3A L FE AREE Y E
UFHEAR

M2021F 128308  HEYEBHRERE A
A([REVMEZER]ITIL—MWEEHE
A 48 45 38 B2 R {8 49690,915,0005% 7T [A] — £
WL E = HEH P Earn Benefit Limited
([Earn Benefit]) (BARAEIEEZEM
BRA HEMRBBGEEmRLHeT-T7
SREYH AR ) © 2 EP A% #E K Earn Benefit4 K
EEVEZEMNAAEER L EE1K2022
F4H29B8 5T - Wk A212,069,00078 7T °

BRI EEarn BenefitZ 4 RIE S EEBY
RAFEBZOWMT:

690,915

The net assets (liabilities) of Earn Benefit at the date of

Earn Benefith HEHH v &EE (B FE)F

disposal were as follows: (ERUNNE
Properties under development for sale FEHEZERTYE 475,931
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E b 8 GRIE - & R FER KB 2,937
Other payables and accrued charges HihENRIBEBREAER (22)

478,846

Gain or loss on disposal was calculated as follows:

Consideration received
Net assets disposed of

B RH(E
Pt E & EFE

HEKEEEAENT

690,915
(478,846)

212,069
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37.Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 3N EEWB AR (&

On 6 January 2023, Emperor Property Investment
Limited (“EPIL”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in
Famous Gain Investments Limited and its subsidiary
(“Famous Gain Group”), indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, which holds a property
located at No.4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong, and all loan due by Famous Gain Group to
EPIL to a company indirectly controlled by a private
discretionary trust which is founded by Dr. Albert Yeung
at a total adjusted consideration of approximately
HKS$1,141,221,000. The disposal was completed on 16
March 2023.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Famous Gain
Group was as follows:

R2023F186H HEMEKREBR QA
([REMEREDITL—MHEEmE A
48 43 S B4R (B 491,141,221,0005% 7T 1A — R
RBEITR I ZAARBELTRELESZ
A Al & E A Famous Gain Investments
Limited % H i B 2 & ([Famous Gain&
) (AARARMEZ2ENBRAR A
MR EBMALPFIEBRBIATNME) 22
=R AL 7 LA 2 Famous GainE B & /R E 21
¥RENMBEER - HEER2023F3416
H5EM e

Bt EFamous GainEE 2R & MIE S
EEMRAFBZOTWOT

Cash consideration received EWHRENKE 1,141,221
Bank balances and cash disposed of IR ERTEBRERS (465)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FHELEMBARIZHEERRE

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries EBYRNFER 1,140,756

The net assets (liabilities) of Famous Gain Group at the
date of disposal were as follows:

Famous GainEBRNHEBHZEE (AfF)
AEmT

Investment properties EYE 1,160,000
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E b B GRIAE - & & KT KB 3,096
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 465
Other payables and accrued charges HitERNRIBERESER (15,962)
Deferred taxation (note 34) RAERIE (H3£34) (6,378)

1,141,221

Gain or loss on disposal was calculated as follows:

EWAE
P EEERE

Consideration received
Net assets disposed of

hER S HBEAENT
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37.Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)

196

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had
disposed of the following subsidiaries:

On 21 April 2021, EPIL entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interests in
Jade Talent Holdings Limited and its subsidiary (“Jade
Talent Group”), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, which holds a property located at
82 Hung To Road, Kowloon, and all loan due by Jade
Talent Group to EPIL to an independent third party
at a total adjusted consideration of approximately
HKS$485,713,000. The disposal was completed on 21
April 2021.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Jade Talent
Group was as follows:

3NHEMB LR (&

BE202F3A310 L FE AREE HE
UTFHEAR

R2021F48218 HEWERET L —1H
BB Hham o AR AE AR (B 4485,713,000
BT —ZBIE=FHEERBEER
BERAFTREMBAR ([HEEE]) (&
AAREEZEL2ENBAR  HEURNER
BlE82FTH —E W) 2 2 AU KRB
EEEREEMERENMEER -HED
MR2021F4 8218586 °

EHLEREEEZHESNASEEYR
ANFRBZ T

Cash consideration received and inflow of
cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the disposal of subsidiaries

FHRLENBARZEREENE
AEBRERREEBWRA

485,713

The net assets (liabilities) of Jade Talent Group
included in assets classified as held for sale (liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale) at the
date of disposal were as follows:

AADBERRELEZEE (BN BERRF
FhEZEERB BB WEESERH
ERHZEE (RE)FENT:

Investment properties KREMEHE 508,000
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E#bEUFRIE « & & MIB RIE 1,142
Other payables and accrued charges HibENRIBREGTER (22,911)
Deferred taxation EIEF A (518)

485,713

Gain or loss on disposal was calculated as follows:

HERSERERAENT

Consideration received
Net assets disposed of

B RHI(E
Pt EEEFE

485,713
(485,713)
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37.Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) JN.HEMB AR (&
On 20 October 2021, EPIL entered into a sale and 20215105208 - REYEREFT L —1H
purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity B & ik DA AR 8 B AR E £9580,486,000
interests in Black Tie Holdings Limited and its IR — & E =5 HE H M Black Tie
subsidiary (“Black Tie Group”), indirect wholly-owned Holdings Limited &z H Kt & 2 7] ([ Black
subsidiaries of the Company, which holds a property TiekE|) (AXArHEZENB AR
located at 45-51 Kwok Shui Road, Kwai Chung, New FEMRF R BREIREAS-515 M —ED
Territories, and all loan due by Black Tie Group to ¥) 22 EAKBlack T B K E
EPIL to an independent third party at a total adjusted MERENMAER B E 212021512
consideration of approximately HK$580,486,000. The A208 5 -
disposal was completed on 20 December 2021.
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash L EBlack Tiek B RE B2 EE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Black Tie MRAFREZ DT

Group was as follows:

Cash consideration received BlIRERE 580,486
Bank balances and cash disposed of FIEERITEHR LIRS (4)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FHELEMBARIZEERRE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries EBYRNFER 580,482
The net assets (liabilities) of Black Tie Group at the date Black Tiess BIRN N EHEBZEE (BE)F
of disposal were as follows: BT

Investment properties wEME 585,000
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E b B FRIAE - &4 KT KB 512
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 4
Other payables and accrued charges HthENRAREAER (5,030)
580,486

Gain or loss on disposal was calculated as follows: HEWRFERTENT

Consideration received BURE 580,486
Net assets disposed of FTHEEETE (580,486)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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37.Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) JN.HEMB AR (&
On 28 December 2021, EPIL entered into a sale and 20215125280 - REYEREFT L —1H
purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity B & 1 DA 448 38 B L (B 49429,205,000
interests in Fortune Silver Limited and its subsidiaries B —REEBE TN 2 ARBET
(“Fortune Silver Group”), indirect wholly-owned MEES 2 AR EERBRAER AR R
subsidiaries of the Company engaged in the business HIMBAR ([TBREE]) (BRARRMBE
of property investment, and all loan due by Fortune TEMBAR ERERNMEREEB)Z
Silver Group to EPIL to a company indirectly controlled PEREARBREBEREEMERE
by a private discretionary trust which is founded by BPTR B HEEM2022F3ATH TR ©

Dr. Albert Yeung at a total adjusted consideration of
approximately HK$429,205,000. The disposal was
completed on 7 March 2022.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FHLERBREE R RREEEBYR
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Fortune Silver NFEZ DT -
Group was as follows:

Cash consideration received 2HReRE 429,205
Bank balances and cash disposed of FIEERITEHR LIRS (382)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FHELENMBARIZEERRE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries EBYRANFRE 428,823
The net assets (liabilities) of Fortune Silver Group at the BIREERNTEEAH2EE (BE)FAEN
date of disposal were as follows: N

Investment properties wEME 430,000
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E b B FRIAE - L& K FBN FHIE 350
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRRS 382
Other payables and accrued charges HithENRARETER (1,067)
Deferred taxation (note 34) EIERIB (M 5334) (460)
429,205

Gain or loss on disposal was calculated as follows: HERRKEEFENT

Consideration received BB 429,205
Net assets disposed of FITHEEEFE (429,205)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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38.Acquisition of Additional Interests in B.WEHB AR 2B ER

Subsidiaries

During the year, Emperor E Hotel repurchased 8,815,000
(2022: 12,270,000) shares of its own shares at cash
consideration of HK$4,411,000 (2022: HK$14,611,000)
and then cancelled the shares, resulting in a deemed
increase in 0.52% (2022: 0.73%) equity interests in
Emperor E Hotel by the Group. During the year ended
31 March 2022, Emperor E Hotel acquired 7,500
(2023: Nil) shares of its non wholly-owned subsidiary
at cash consideration of HKS$8,000 (2023: Nil). The
difference of HK$16,549,000 (2022: HKS$18,959,000)
between the consideration paid of HK$4,411,000 (2022:
HKS$14,619,000) and the decrease in the non-controlling
interests of HK$20,960,000 (2022: HKS$33,578,000) was
recognised directly in other reserves.

39.Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes amount due to an associate,
amount due to a related company, amounts due to
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured
notes, bank borrowings and lease liabilities in notes
28, 29, 30, 31, 32 and 33 respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

39.

RAFE RERELB/EUNBESNRE
4,411,000/ 7T (20224 : 14,611,000/ 7T )
B H B 58,815,000/ i) (20224 -
12,270,000 f& 17 ) - i sk sE AR 10 - B3
REBMMP KR SIREAE 2 IREREL M
0.52% (20224 : 0.73% ) ° & 202243 A
31 IEFE - HEREAE LR S K 58,000
T (2023F - ) WEHIEZ2 EH B A A
B7,5000% f% 9 (20234 : &) - 2 K (&
4,411,0005 7T (20224 : 14,619,000/% 7T)
A JF 70 B 4 2508 4020,960,0007% 7T (2022
4 : 33,578,000 7T ) 2 Z= 5616,549,0007% 7T
(20224 : 18,959,000/ 7T ) B R E Ab
HEARTER o

BEARRERER

REFEBREER UERAEHERN EEE
e BRI B EEELE RS RE
(LEBEMERESREERE NS ER O R
REE 7 BRI E L F I -

AEEERARBRBEESFE(BED
BIPAFTEE28 ~29 30 31 ~ 32 %33 HFE 2
e — B = A RIFUR BN — R E R A
R BB QR 2 IR R RR &
ERZER ROEBEAEERRE) Rk
ReSZBYHFENRARREE AEEER
(BREEHITHRALER)

EETHRFAEARE - ERZR 2 —8
D BEEREAKAREZRERZ AR
e RIEBEEFER AREREBIBE
BATHR R R BRI A R BT BB
RABEHVPEEREBELRARE-
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40. €M I A
@) eMITEZER

40.Financial Instruments
(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SEMEE
Amortised cost o E IR
Receivables related to EH—EHEREBEBZ
a development project J& U k18 169,628 183,097
Amount due from a joint venture JrE Uy — F’EJ/\ B ZFIE 1,310,861 1,004,812
Deposit in designated bank account FhERWET RAIET
for development properties RITERF 2R 9,885 10,569
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E Ath & W FRIE 254,463 346,998
Pledged bank deposits BHEMETER 66,187 64,488
Short-term bank deposits RHERITHER 56,789 314,339
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 2,311,133 1,252,888
4,178,946 3,177,191
Financial liabilities cHRAE
Amortised cost B AR
Trade and other payables B 5 N E AN I8 754,960 809,140
Amount due to an associate S — R E A T QL] 137,079 147,964
Amount due to a related company  FEff—[EEE R B FIB 1,404,128 1,701,327
Amounts due to non-controlling FERTFT B 2 TZ
interests of subsidiaries FE 128 A% 7 25 BB 39,523 39,523
Unsecured notes EEARER 1,247,314 1,442,436
Bank borrowings RITIEE 19,752,998 19,527,740
23,336,002 23,668,130

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEMEERERBXK
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed
in above table and lease liabilities. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective

notes. The risks associated with these financial

AEEZTIE2SMIANEREEE
BEMI -eRMIAZHEERH WEI
NEE-FRZSeRTAZAR &

EmGREE (5N R R A R R g )‘

instruments include market risk (foreign currency T*FHI—L NOmEE & Bk - anfa] R 8%
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity B BERER TN -EREHZS
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks J—L i&ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁbg FEORIA M B 5 2
are set out below. The management manages and RZFABITEE ZHE-

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MEEBRERRERBE (&)

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
movement in foreign currency exchange rate
which will affect the Group’s financial results and
its cash flows. Several subsidiaries of the Group
have foreign currency sales and purchases, but
the management considers the amount of foreign
currency sales and purchase is insignificant. The
management considers the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk in relation
to transactions denominated in MOP and USD.
Exposures on balances which are denominated
in MOP and USD in group entities with HKS as
functional currency are not considered significant
as MOP and USD are pegged to HKS.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the ended of the reporting
period are as follows:

% m

S a7

SINEE [\ B % R B AN AR B B S SR A
HRSRE ZINEEREE 7 E g e
ARBETHBRRBINEEE BE
BERRINEEE2CHBTIER-E
BEERRNABRMTRETEE
ZX 5% AEEY EEEGEEARINER
ol FORPI T MR TTEE TN - A
b RRABTRNEES 2 KREEE
MEVRFITT R R TTREE Z 8 2 B R
WAEKe

38,832 - -
141 1,202,614 1,362,345

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
in relation to the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items at the end of the
reporting period, which included pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings. The sensitivity to
foreign currency risks arising from the outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
has been determined based on the reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates
of RMB and GBP against the HKS. The following
table details the Group’s sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2022: 5%) for exchange
rate of RMB and GBP against HKS, while all other
variables are held constant. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss before taxation
where RMB strengthened and GBP weakened
against HKS. Where the RMB weakened and GBP
strengthened against HKS, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss before taxation
and the balances below would be negative.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZEREESRAR

AEBERNRERRRL I ZINEE
BEE¥ER (BREERRTER B
HISR1T 750 RITAE R IR & S RTTE
B)ASINEE R - $R H 182 INEE
BEERERMEL ZINERAR 2 8=~
BTRBEARE BEE N BT 2N
[EXZAEAEEHMET - TR
AEBEEARBEREL BT 2INE
PE = 5 7% A B2 & E)5% (20224 : 5%)
MABEME BRI TR 2 RRE -
TREBXRBMARB L BITIHER
REHBTRE ARHAIERED -
MARELBTREREE L BT
B RISBRBAEREXRRASMERZ
TE MIREHB/EH
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40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

RMB against HKS ARBHET
GBP against HKS BHEHBTT

40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MEEBRERRERBE (&)

%k ()
SR B (48 )

11,784
(60,088) (68,111)

(48,304) (66,169)

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. As at 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022, the Group does not have a
foreign exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arises. The management continuously
monitored the foreign exchange exposure and
would consider hedging other significant foreign
currency risk should the need arose.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate deposit in designated
bank account for development properties, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank
deposits included in bank balances, fixed coupon
rate unsecured notes and lease liabilities. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation primarily to its variable-rate bank
balances, amount due to a related company and
bank borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group’s advances from a related company
and bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate
risk has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for the above mentioned financial
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period and management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate and
assuming that it took place at the beginning
of each year and held constant throughout the
respective year.

AEERFERRIIMNEEEB2EEE
ElBEZERERENEREHES
720233 HA31H 202243 A318 -
7R SR B I 8 HME SRR < AT - AN
BEEESESIINER R MNERE
ZREMMEAINER S - BIREREE
£ O R B B B R i E b B K S
R (BE) -

FIF
Rk E A RS NN R
TEE 2 BEFEER DERRITE
3 EEIR TR 5T AR A BN
RIER BERENEMERZER

SENAE T BRI RRITHAER BN —
FREERRREMRITEERYRS
8 A EL o

AEBEZREREMNERE E2&H
RARERE —BEERBZBRK
RITEEMELEZBBRITEERS
BE

AEBRSREN KRR 2 BEE - 5
RELAEHBEERABERREHR
Z M RE R K E RS F Y AR
AIREE A 2 BIE A REE BN IR RT AL - A0
BRESFARSTEM T IUEE -
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40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MEEBERRERBE (&)

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-
free rates. Details of the impacts on the Group’s
risk management strategy arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress towards
implementation of alternative benchmark interest
rates are set out under “Disclosure of risks arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform” in this
note.

Except for bank balances and deposits using 5
basis points (2022: 5 basis points), if interest rates
had been 100 basis points (2022: 100 basis points)
higher and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on loss for the year is as
follows:

Decrease (increase) in loss for the year [ E 184 (#0)

TEmE (&)
) Fm b (&)
EIREAH T EMNREEETRAMN
HE - BREAETERRNE RN EE
R—LRITREFBR X (MRITAZE
HRELD) -FEREENRSHAREEER
EERBNTZERERELENENE
Mo R A R R [ M R EENFEE
B 2 TR ] o

BRERITAE B S AT SRUASIEE B (20224 -
SEZEE) AEAESIN - i M & _EFT1001E
E (20224 - 1001EE &) K A H A
BERIETE  AHAFEEEEE
FEWNT

- Bank balances - IRITHER 994 329
- Amount due to a related company - Bt —MEE QA (11,724) (14,206)
- Bank borrowings -RITEE (153,050) (143,296)

(163,780) (157,173)

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal
and opposite.

Credit risk management and impairment

assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties at the end of reporting period are
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZEREESRAR

R 2 8 3 O S B R A 2
RIS RIS %4 K A SRR 2

EEYE-
EARREERAETS

A BER ST REE AR
AEREMRSAEEBHY BEERZ
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40.Financial Instruments (continued)

'

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lifetime
ECL of HK$1,346,000 (2022: HK$921,000) for
certain trade receivables was recognised as the
management considered the amounts from
certain customers was credit-impaired. During the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
none of certain trade receivables was reversed
upon settlement from these customers of which
recognised as credit-impaired previously.

The management has also assessed all available
forward looking information, including but not
limited to the economic outlook and subsequent
settlement of these customers. As at 31 March
2023, impairment allowance with an aggregate
balance of HK$14,930,000 (2022: HK$14,340,000)
represents individually credit-impaired trade
receivables from contracts with customers and
lease receivables with an aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$27,240,000 (2022: HK$27,240,000)
as the management considered the outstanding
balances from these customers were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables
with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$43,759,000 (2022: HKS$52,773,000) was
insignificant and thus negligible to be provided
by the Group due to the low probability of default
of those debtors based on historical credit loss
experience. The management has also assessed all
available forward looking information, including
but not limited to the economic outlook and
subsequent settlement of these customers, and
concluded that the credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding trade receivables and lease
receivables is insignificant.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
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HZE2023F3A31IR0 L EE BHRE
BERAATEFPZRELREER
B HEIETESEKRKENZH
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EEENMAMA R BAEEE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach.

40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MEEBRERRERBE (&)

1= FEE B B R A (B AT A ()

TRIVRIREBEBC A E 5 BIK
EREANZHBHREEER 2 EH-

At 1 April 2021 7202154 H1H

14,340

New trade receivables originated FRELZIEE FEWFIR

during the year

921

Write-off !

At 31 March 2022 7202263 A31H

New trade receivables originated FRNELEZILE HRKKIE
during the year

Write-off 88

At 31 March 2023 7A20234F3A31H

Note: As at 31 March 2023, lifetime ECL for trade receivables
from individual customers on gross carrying
amount of HK$70,999,000 (2022: HK$80,013,000)
was HK$14,930,000 (2022: HKS$14,340,000) as the
management considered certain individual customers
were credit-impaired.

During the year, lifetime ECL of HKS$1,346,000
(2022: HK$921,000) was recognised due to amounts
originated which had been defaulted and transferred
to credit-impaired.

During the year, an amount of HK$756,000 (2022:
HK$921,000) of trade receivables from certain
credit-impaired customers were written off as the
management considered there was no realistic
prospect of recovery. During the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2023, none of lifetime ECL was
reversed upon settlement from certain customers.

For the deposit in designated bank account for
development properties, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances,
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus
negligible to be made since the management
considers the probability of default is negligible as
such deposits are placed in reputable banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies and have low credit risk.

BfeE: 2023438310 BN EEER AL
FTEEFEREEERE REALEA
70,999,000 7T (20224 : 80,013,000
B ZEREFE ZERRERERE
HA 78 H = & §5 814,930,000 7T (2022
4 :14,340,000/%8 7T) °

RAFEE BRIEHE WERD
BRITEBEREEEREZEHEK
HIERER 2 HTRHEEE1E1,346,000
787t (20224F : 921,000 7T) °

MARFE AREREERRAKATH
B mIE BAEE TEERENT
F 2 B S M FIET56,000/8 7T (2022
F:921,0008 L) THME B X
20224F }22023F3A31H IEFE - 4
BETEPEAERDEZHEME
EEEe

RRERVEFRNEERITEPZ
T3 EEMRITER BERITHER
FIRTTHERRT S - XA B A
BRERFREBIEE 2 ERTRS
ZRT ERRRE BEEERRED
B A 2B A UL R EREL T E
AREMTRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

40.Financial Instruments (continued)

6

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (continued)

For the other receivables, including chips on
hand, with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HKS$178,424,000 (2022: HKS$259,405,000), amount
due from a joint venture with an aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$1,310,861,000 (2022:
HK$1,004,812,000) and receivables related to a
development project with an aggregate gross
carrying amount of HKS$169,628,000 (2022:
HK$183,097,000), in non-trade nature, impairment
allowance was insignificant and thus not
provided since the management considers the
probability of default is minimal after assessing
the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed under the
respective contracts was HKS$1,165,000,000 (2022:
HK$932,000,000) as at 31 March 2023. Details of
the financial guarantee contracts are set out in
note 18. At the end of the reporting period, the
management assessed the financial position of that
joint venture and the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the joint venture to the bank, and
concluded that there has been no significant credit
risk arising from the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the impairment allowance was
insignificant and thus not provided for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of banking
facilities and ensures compliance with the financial
covenants of the Group’s bank borrowings.

The consideration of going concern assessment
prepared by the Directors are set out in note
3.1.1, as the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HKS$2,778,920,000 at
31 March 2023 (2022: net current assets of
HK$1,479,855,000).

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &R

40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MBEBERRERBE (&)

1= A5 I it &2 2 el 1B AT 1 (AR )

RFEEZHEE 2 EMERKIE (R
BEWN)RKREES £178,424,000
7 7T (20224 : 259,405,000/ 7T )
R -—HEE2LEERBERAKRAEE
& #£1,310,861,000/8 JT (20224 -
1,004,812,000/& v ) MA K B % &
HEAEBcENKKERKEE
5 #£169,628,000/% T (20224 -
183,097,000/ L) M = AN EREE
HEXZHF U BERRERER
RABHERGTHA B ER
WAEREWMmETLR

MU EEREHM S H2023F3 731
H A&ERBEBBEGNERZES
4 %8 /51,165,000,0005% 7T (20224 :
932,000,000/ 7T ) - IS ERE L 2+
BERHI 18 - NIREHAR B ERT
HEBREZHBRAARE LD E
B FRITZ2EFRZALEE IR
AV BERAHTEELEEREARA
SoEth REBBEITZHIBERAEY
ZREBBT TERB I ETIR-

REERPES AR AEBEEEIWHR
FASIREFENEEEERA/ T
UHASEEEMARTFERERE
MENTHE E 2K - B EEERTT
FEZEMR BRETAKERITEER
H A 75 55 o

MR AREEN2023F3A31IB M RE B
& i 3B KR 8) & A2,778,920,000/8 7T
(20224 : 7 &) & & )% #1,479,855,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities and the
earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings, with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is based on interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity table

At 31 March 2023 ®2023%3A431A
Trade and other payables B REMERKE
Amount due to an associate JEfT— B E AR FUE
Amount due to a related company fEff —RRiE A EFUA

Amounts due to non-controlling ~ ENITEARZ
interests of subsidiaries FARE R TE
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 EBHR1IfEE
Unsecured notes EEMER
Lease liabilities HEEE
Financial guarantee (Note) BMBER (M)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEEBMARAT

754,960
137,079
1,404,128

8,668,221

905,389

1,165,000 = =

13,078,005

40. ﬁﬁml (/ﬂﬁ)
m)MﬁﬂﬁMﬁmE&ﬁﬁfﬁ)

mEBETEE (&)
TREIAKE 2 FTESRBER
HERBZHRTIANIHAZFE 1
RIOBREANEERIGEABEZZFH
HremBERHERBZRRRA
TREMME - LHE WHRERE
AR HIRIT R BT A& F I E 8
B AR TR BT E AN R /]
Bl B3 fTA SR AG ZER B8
TRBEC WEER A HAMERE -

ZRPHEANERAGEERE A =X
REE BIRMRESBREREHARZ
R -

754,960
137,079
1,404,128

754,960
137,079
1,404,128

39,523 = =
11,928,351 1,265,296

322,328 87,808
3,705 18,746 27,681

39,523
21,861,868

39,523
19,752,998
1,315,525 1,247,314

50,132 35,934
1,165,000 -

12,269,425 1,380,785 26,728,215 23,371,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table (continued)

A

40. 2R T H (&)
(b) MBEBERRERBE (&)

mEBELEE (&)
mBEEX (&

At 31 March 2022 #202243A318
Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 809,140 - - 809,140 809,140
Amount due to an associate R —MEE R RRE - 147,964 - - 147,964 147,964
Amount due to a related company fEff—EHEAFFA 1.31% 1,701,327 - - 1,701,327 1,701,327
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ ERHERF 2
interests of subsidiaries FERERFEA - 39,523 - - 39,523 39,523
Variable-rate bank borrowings S HIEE 1.81% 3,996,773 14,850,726 1,768,174 20,615,673 19,527,740
Unsecured notes BEMARE 4.51% 262,370 1,215,280 91,712 1,569,362 1,442,436
Lease liabilities BERE 3.63% 5313 21,406 28,530 55,249 41,975
Financial guarantee (Note) MBER (M) - 932,000 - - 932,000 -
7,894,410 16,087,412 1,888,416 25,870,238 23,710,105
Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee is Wit FRBBERZSBEAMERRS

Emperor International Holdings Limited

the maximum amount the Group could be forced to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that such an amount will
not be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MEEBERRERBE (&)

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “less than 1 year or
repayable on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2023, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$840,000 (2022: HKS$7,826,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the Directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid within one year (2022: two years) after the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
As a result, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows of these bank loans amount to
HK$868,000 and Nil (2022: HK$7,109,000 and
HKS$854,000) under the time band of “less than 1
year” and “1 year to 5 years” respectively.

Disclosure of risks arising from the interest rate

benchmark reform

Several of the Group’s HIBOR bank loans, LIBOR
bank loan and amount due to a related company
may be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market
and managing the transition to new benchmark
interest rates, including announcements made by
the relevant IBOR regulators.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all
LIBOR settings will either cease to be provided by
any administrator or no longer be representative:

immediately after 31 December 2021, in the
case of all GBP, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese
yen settings, and the 1-week and 2-month US
dollar settings; and

immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of
the remaining US dollar settings.

mEETEE (&)

mBETFK (E)

i R B RERGEKORITEER L
AR EBER DR INATDRIF K
BEREE ] R HEEE A R2023F
3A31IR ZERTEENEKREE
/%840,000/% 7T (20224 : 7,826,0007%
TO) o RERASBE 2 MBHRR EE
MBE - RIT P RAIRETT 8 B B R AN
EROBBEEN EFRHEZFRT
fEERE N HmE A HR1IF (20224 : 2
F) NIREE K 3 Pl 0 5+ 81 E 3K B
HEE Bt ZFRTERZATHE
BENEBRSRERPRIF] K1
F 255 | 1) fE EB IS R 9 5l /868,000
7 7T & & (20224 - 7,109,000/ 7T &
854,000/ 7T ) °

FIEBENEEL R RE

AEENE TEBRITAERE R
FERTTRIEFFERITER  BBUERTTH
ERERTEFTUAREN—RBBER
FIFAAIBE X M R E BN B E - KE
[ IE 22 ) B OE T 35 I B IR 1R 37 & R
KM@K BREARERITRAEREEE
BT 2o

fi 2R 77 [F] F 77 2
RESRTAEERERIIA MK
R17T R X B R E KA B i E e R
ARBHTBEBERRML:

K FE2021F12A31B % - FrA R
8 BUT I DA BB M A JTERE A
N—BNMERETTRENER
&

EFE2023F6 H30H 12 * P B A &R
RILRIEMBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

40. €RAT A (#)
(b) MBEBERRERBE (&)

40.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Disclosure of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform (continued)

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index
Average (“HONIA”) has been identified as
an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to
discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has
been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and
HONIA will co-exist.

Progress towards implementation of alternative

benchmark interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for
transition, new contracts entered into by the Group
are linked to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates or interest rates which are not subject to
reform to the extent feasible. Otherwise, the Group
ensured the relevant contracts include detailed
fallback clauses clearly referencing the alternative
benchmark rate and the specific triggering event
on which the clause is activated.

The following table shows the total amounts
of outstanding contracts and the progress in
completing the transition to alternative benchmark
rates as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. The
amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their
carrying amounts.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
FITECRAR

FIEBENEEL @B RE
(#&)

BB RTT A E 72
BEATHBERFHEH (THONIA])E
BBR SEBRITRERFERBN I
WELIEBBRITEARFENE -F
AEBEHERTN - MEBRITREN
B HONIAR I 1F

BEREEFENERER

ERASEBEERREEN 7D &
SEFT A REEREE K EEF
RN ERTEHEAR N REHREF
REMY B[R AEBEHEARERANE
ERHANREBIER AES2EEREE
MR L BRZ G RBEEE -

T &5 RFR202343 H31H 202243
A3IEM A RETAEKNERENTKSB
BEBREENEZNER - THAEH
SRAREEIR -

Bank borrowing linked to GBP LIBOR 2033 1,202,614
BTEERESEHBBITRERSHN  2033F

1,362,345 Transitioned to SONIA in June 2022
72022F6 A BEZE R ERRIFREHIFIE

Bank borrowings linked to HIBOR 2022 - 2036 18,527,143 18,119,878 HIBOR will continue till maturity
RITBEREBERTAZFEED 2022F £2036%F EARTRAERESHEEZTH

Amount due to a related company Payable on demand 1,404,128
N —AEERRRER REREER

1,701,327 HIBOR will continue till maturity
BARTRAEREEBEEZIE

! Emperor International Holdings Limited EEEEREBMARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023

41.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from (used in) financing activities.

At 1 April 2021 202154718 24,981
Financing net cash flows ~ BERETEFE (527,920)
Others Hi -
Dividend declared BERKRE -
Currency realignments ~ E#3% -
New lease entered HAuEE -
Interest expenses FlEFX 524,502
At 31 March 2022 12022434318 PARX]
Financing net cash flows ~ BERSREFE (785,433)
Others Hiy

Dividend declared BERRE

Currency realignments  EHH%

New lease entered A HE

Interest expenses FlEFR 797,393
At 31 March 2023 #2023%3A31A 33,523

21,839,111
(2,268,609)
11,667
(54,429)

19,527,740
306,591

(81,333)

19,752,998

4,905,436 498,721
(3486,813) 1,202,606

1,442,436
(200,000)

1,701,327
(297,199)

2,509

2,369

1,247,314 1,404,128

41.

141,98

147,964

(10,885)

137,079

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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METHELEZABYHE

TRAYASEREEDHELCAEZS
BRASMIRSEY REIDHELZA
BENRERECKARKREREB/RA
SEGARERERTHIBR/KE (BR)
BERPEEZHRERE-

39970 -,

(5326)  (163800) (5,
- 163,800
5,861 -
1470 -

41,975 22,
(77,228 (1,

(5,878)
(2,344) .
o 77,28
857
1,324

35,934 22,

REFREEARAE

491,291
251,429)
11,667
163,800
(34,078)
5,861
535,416

922,528
059,147)
(2,344)
77,228
(89,709)
857
801,086

650,499
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

42.Pledge of Assets
(a) As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, certain
assets of the Group were pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
carrying values of these assets at the end of the

4. EEERM

(@) 7202343 H31H K%2022463H31H -
AEEETEEDERMTRITUES
AEBERRITEEZER ZFEE
RBERREEENT

reporting period were as follows:

Investment properties LEYE 32,259,861 35,540,255
Properties under development for sale #{EHE 2 ERERYE 3,912,853 3,209,597
Buildings, including relevant 5 (BHEEH
leasehold land in Hong Kong EEME L) 319,251 341,935
Hotel properties, including relevant BIEME (B EEH
leasehold land in Hong Kong EEMELH) 235,065 855,753
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 239,799 476,038
Bank deposits RITF 65,887 64,134
Others (Note) Etb (Hat) 24,095 28,558
37,056,811 40,516,270
Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other Met: EmERASEETHMEE (X2

assets of the Group including principally property,
plant and equipment (other than hotel properties),
inventories, trade and other receivables and pledged

bank deposits.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group also pledged a bank

deposit of HK$300,000 (2022: HK$354,000) to a
bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment

provided by a third party to the Group.

43.Capital Commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements, net

RIETEMEASNO I ZE ~ WER R
8B 5 R EAM R R B R
TEHR) 2 NEEEA -

R2023F3A31H - AE B IR ERTT
% 7#300,000/% 7T (20224 : 354,000/%
TO) T —RRIT ER—REZTTIRH
AEBEAMREER 2 EM-

43. EARELE

ERTAERNERE B

WR A TIIRIAEEL

of deposits paid, in respect of: Bl (HReENET2)

- investment properties -REWME 51,269 43,673

- property, plant and equipment -ME - HBRRE 840 3,421

- properties under development forsale - #H{ERE 2B ERYE 700,791 499,956
752,900 547,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

44, B ETHERIE

44 . 0Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessor
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are
as follows:

AEBESHBEA
FEW I E 2 RBERHEFIAMT

Within one year —F R 773,642 797,852
In the second year E_F 525,971 527,672
In the third year B=4F 300,491 354,396
In the fourth year FE P F 123,628 217,538
In the fifth year ERF 56,365 106,298
Over five years HFEM F 50,901 94,426

1,830,998 2,098,182

Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties
have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging from 1
to 15 years (2022: 1 to 15 years) and the rentals are pre-
determined at fixed amounts except for certain leases
of which contingent rentals are charged based on the
percentage of sales. The lease commitments presented
above is based on the existing committed monthly
minimum lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable from related
parties on leases are as follows:

AEBEZEENENEETMECERP
A - FHEAN F1E155F (20224 - 1E15%F)
N EMEEAAEERSBEERRE I
REER B L WBEAHENETHE
BRI LAEEAENREEAEZEA
REHeHEREE-

SRR ET 2 RRBEERAMT

Within one year —F R 83,364 100,514
In the second year E_4F 25,359 32,730
In the third year FE=F 12,098 10,103
In the fourth year FEPYF 3,461 4,150
In the fifth year FRHF 326 4,150
Over five years REFEAE - 390

124,608 152,037

45.Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year, additions of property, plant and
equipment of HK$1,041,000 (2022: HK$11,807,000) were
settled by utilising deposits paid in prior year.

During the year, interest income from a joint venture of
HK$22,051,000 (2022: HK$19,044,000) is settled through
the current account with the joint venture.

45.

TEFBERS

REFE NE BERJBIFEA
1,041,000/ st (20224 : 11,807,000/
i) HEREREFENTSAE -

RARFE 22,051,000/ 7T (20224 -
19,044,000/8 7 ) [A) — il & & b E Y E 2 F
BRATEBEECRZRBER, &M -

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

46.Related Party Transactions 46.FAERR G
(a) Other than disclosed in notes 8, 9, 17, 18, 23, (a) BxMf7£8-9-17-18:23:26-28"

26, 28, 29, 30, 37 and 44, the Group also had the
following significant transactions with related
parties:

29 - 30 3T RA4N PRI EE H SN AL E
MEEAETETIIERRS:

Financial services expenses to related [AIRIER A S RRG &

companies
Interest expenses to related companies A B3:E A 7 3 (7 &

Purchases of furniture from a related [/ — &1 @84 A 5] ELEE X 1FL

company
Purchases of merchandising goods FEENRIRBE R
from related companies
Rental income from related companies [7] @& 2 FIUWEL 2 HH &

Secretarial fee to a related company M —EEEAAZHFWE

fR15 &
Share of administrative expenses BN A RITR A
by related companies

1,240 1,460
49,115 47,238

1,536 129

659 165
110,628 119,848

1,758 1,065

95,363 89,412

Note: Related companies are companies (1) controlled
by relevant private discretionary trusts of which
Dr. Albert Yeung is the founder and settlor and Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander is one of the eligible
beneficiaries; or (2) controlled by a Director.

(b) The key management personnel of the Company (b)
are Directors. Details of the remunerations are set
out in note 10.

! Emperor International Holdings Limited EEEEREBMARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

47.Financial Information of the Company AT KRB 2 BER
The financial information of the Company as at 31 AN R FA2023F3 A31H K202243A31H
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows: ZEBERIT

Non-current asset EMBEE

Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2 IRE 1,713,712 1,519,120
Current assets MEBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B R B3R I8 8,388,348 7,774,184
Other receivables H b U RIA 622 624
Taxation receivable JiE Y B TE 28 15
Bank balances and cash R ERE 474 399
8,389,472 7,775,222
Current liabilities VEIR=E

Other payables HoAh & 1+ 3R 10,039 11,084
Unsecured notes - due within one year EHEE - —FREH 867,963 199,358
878,002 210,442
Net current assets REBEEFE 7,511,470 7,564,780
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREEE 9,225,182 9,083,900

Non-current liability JEMEBAE
Unsecured notes - due after one year EERTEE - —F% 358 379,351 1,243,078
Net assets EETE 8,845,831 7,840,822

Capital and reserves BARKH#E
Share capital Ji% 7 36,775 36,775
Reserves (Note) (A7) 8,809,056 7,804,047
Total equity = BE 8,845,831 7,840,822

Note: et

At 1 April 2021 7202194 A1H 4,563,248 109,474 3,268,152 7,940,874
Loss and total comprehensive  FEBEREZEARAL

expense for the year - - (758) (758)
2021 final dividend paid BK2021F R EAAR B - - (44,131) (44,131)
2022 interim dividend paid B k20224 F BAAR B - - (55,163) (55,163)
2022 special dividend paid BIR20225F 45 5% B - - (36,775) (36,775)
At 31 March 2022 7202293 A31H 109,474 3,131,325 7,804,047
Profit and total comprehensive  4F & & | & & [ 48 UL 25

income for the year 1,082,237 1,082,237
2022 final dividend paid B k2022 RN 8 (58,841) (58,841)

2023 interim dividend paid B K2023F F Bi% B2 - (18,387) (18,387)

At 31 March 2023 202363 A31H 4,563,248 109,474 4,136,334 8,809,056

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries 48. B D B FE1E
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (a) A&7 M202343A31H 202243 A
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, 3IBZ EEMBARGFBEHNT:

are as follows:

Directl%_held

%35

Emperor Corporate Management Limited BVI usD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding

RECEERERAT KERAHS e REER

Emperor Hotel Group Limited BVI usD1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding

REBESEERAR KERAHBS e REER

EPDL BVI usD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding

REVMERR KERAHS e REER

EPIL \ BVI usD1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding

REWMERE RERAHS e REER

Indirectly held

MERE

Able Elegant* Hong Kong 134,285 56.24 55.83 Provision of catering services

EE B REERRB

Actmore Estate Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment

REEXHARAT B NERS

All Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development

(3 XN B NEER

All Max Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment

HRABRE B NERS

Asia Palace Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development and

BsERAF BB investment

NEERRRE

Assets Pro Holdings Limited* BVI/Macau usbl 57.30 56.89 Hotel entertainment
RERLHSE/ 2N 1= BEERE

Billion Ideal Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development

ERARAR D ESS

Century Chain Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
5} HESS

Century Creations Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment

HLEARARLA D MERT

Champ Billion Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment

EXERRF D MERT

EIL Property Management Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Investment holding

HENZERBRRA B REER

Emperor Ampersand Limited Partnership UK GBP100 100.00 100.00 Prqperg Investment
B 10058 NERS

Emperor (Beijing) Real Estate The PRC RMB1,511,380,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment

Development Company Limited? H AE#1,511,380,0007T MER?
RE (AR EREREERAF
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Bk RERR

REREEEERERARF

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR ARM A

For the year ended 31 March 2023~ #Z2023%3431H i1 F/Z

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 48. MY B A EETE (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (@) A2 AK2023F3A31H &2022F3H
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, BIHZEEMBARFRENT: (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Indirectly held (continued)

Bk (4)
EmperorE Hotel Bermuda/Hong Kong 118,849 71.63 7111 Investment holding
REREAE ARE/EE (2022:119,731) REER
Emperor Financial Management Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Provision of treasury services to
HERMBERERD ¥ roup companies
MRER AR BRS
Emperor Hotel Mana ement Limited* Hong Kong 2 57.30 56.89  Provision of serviced apartment
REBEEEERRAA BB RUBBEALE
Emperor Hotel Management Services (HK) Hong Kong 1 71.63 - Provision of mana%ement
Limited? i B services for hotel and serviced
REBEEERY (FE)ERAF apartment
RUBERRBARBEERY
Emperor Hotel Mana& ement Services (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 71.63 56.89 Provision of management
Limited? (formerly known as Emperor R 25,0002 7T services for hotels
Entertainment Hotel Management Limited) REBEEERE
REBEERRE (RF) BRA
(ﬁuﬁi;&%ﬁ%@% I%‘FE al)
Emperor Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000 100.00 100.00 Provision of treasury services to
HEWEFRA ¥ roup companies
MEBRARESERS
Emperor Investment Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Provision of management
(Management) Limited &5 services
REEERB
Emperor Project Management Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Provision of project
(Hong Kong) Limited BA management services
RETRELH(FR)ERAT RUBEEEERY
Emperor Property Agency Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Provision of property agency
HEMEREBRAR B services
RENDERERY
Emperor (Sha E<ghal) Co., Ltd.? The PRC RMB1,807,598,058 100.00 100.00 Property development
RRapR H AR %1,807,598,0587C R¥
Emperor Treasury Management Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Provision of treasury services to
HRERKERFGRARA B %roup companies
RARESBRY
Em}feror Way Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Provision of treasury services to
ERBEBRRF Bk goup companies
RARRHBRYE
Emperor (Xiamen) Real Estate The PRC USD5,000,000 100.00 100.00 Property development and
Investments Limited? H 5,000,000 7¢ investment
R (EM)HERRERAF NEERRRE
Fai lek Limited Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BHABRRA il 25,0002FI T NER
Famous Awards Limited BVI/UK usD1 100.00 100.00 Property investment
EBRUEE/AH e MERS
Forever Earn Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
KETERRT B NER?

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 48. Y B A BFE1E (&)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (@) A2 AH2023F3H31H KX202243 A
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, BIBZEEMBARGFREET: (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Indirectly held (continued)

BERE (&)
Gold Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BRRABRAR B NER?
Grand Emperor Entertainment & Macau MOP500,000 57.30 56.89 Provision of hotel and catering
Hotel (Macau) Limited* R 500,000 7T services
REREEE (RF)FRAA REUBE RE SRS
Hagpy Rain Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment
ERERAA D NERS
Headwise Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BEREERAA B MERS
Hill Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
BEERAF D NEEER
Inn Hotel Macau Limited® Macau MOP100,000 71.63 71.11 Provision of hotel and catering
RFEHEEERA RS il 100,000 7T services
REEERE KRS
| Soi Limited Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
RHEERAF i1l 25,0002F9 T NERS
I Veng Limited Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
RABRAE B 25,000:2F9 T NERE
Luck United* BVI UsD10,000 57.30 56.89 Investment holding
KERAHS 10,000% 7T REER
Mori Investments Limited* Hong Kong 2 57.30 56.89 Property investment
7 NERS
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments Limited* Hong Kong 1 57.30 56.89 Provision of serviced apartments
D RUBHEALE
Motive Drive Limited* Hong Kong 100 57.30 56.89 Property investment
BZRERAR! B NERS
National Goal Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BEERAF D NERS
Palace Express Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 - Property investment
BEERAF B NERS
Parkmost Limited* Hong Kong 100 57.30 56.89 Property investment
BNKBRAR D NERS
Pioneer Earn Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
D NERR
Planwing Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BREARRA B NERS
Precision Faith Limited? Macau MOP100,000 71.63 71.11 Gaming operation and provision
AEERARS il 100,000:213 ¢ of gaming related marketing
and promotion services
BYEBREHEVEBEERE
iR
Quick Gain Investments Limited® BVI/Macau usbl 71.63 7111 Investment holding
RERLHE /2N 1= REAER
Rich Gallant Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property development
EHREBRAA D NEER
Richorse Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
X NERS

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 48. MYB A B=E1E (&)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (@) A2 AR2023F3H31H 20223 A
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, BIHZXEZEMBRARGFBET: (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Indirectly hsld (continued)

BERE (&
Right Achieve Limited* BVI usb1 57.30 56.89 Investment holding
HKERAHS 1%L REER
Shineon Investments Limited BVI/UK usbl 100.00 100.00 Property investment
ERRUHE/GH 1%L NERS
Sure Strong Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
BEAERRAA Bk NEER
The Davis Investment Limited* Hong Kong 10,000 57.30 100.00 Property investment
80 (2022:1) MER
The Emperor Hotel Limited* Hong Kong 1 57.30 56.89 Provision of hotel and catering
RERREEARAA &R services
REEERE KRS
The Unit Serviced Apartments Limited Hong Kong 2 57.30 56.89  Provision of serviced apartment
B RERBALE
Thyme Company Limited Hong Kong 5,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
REARDA B NERE
Tin Hou? Macau MOP25,000 71.63 71.11 Provision of agency services for
r53 BP9 25,0002 7 %amip operation
RUBYEBZHNRE
Treasure Dragon Investments Limited? BVI/Macau usbl 71.63 7L1L Investment holding
VEREBRAF KRRIHE/RM 1%L REER
Up Wealthy Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
D NEER
Upton Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property development
HEEBRAR D NERR
Very Sound Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
D NERS
Wealthy Gate Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment
MEREBRAR D NERS
Notes: et -
1 All amounts are in Hong Kong dollars except stated Vo BREEFBEEIN BRIBHUABTE
otherwise. BRI
2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise. The company’s 2 RHNERE NRENEHEMER -

English name is for identification purpose only.

3 Those companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Emperor 3 ZERFARBRERDEZ2ENE
E Hotel which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Al HIRG B AAT e

4 These companies are non wholly-owned subsidiaries of ¢ REARDESRENEZIEREN
Emperor E Hotel and are regarded as non wholly-owned BRR YHRAEEEEZZAEHT
subsidiaries of the Company because the Group has control BREEBR TG A 25 R
over the financial and operating policies of these companies. AIRERAARIZIEREMB AR -

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023

B F2023F3H31H IFF/E

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

220

‘

(a)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
are as follows: (continued)

All subsidiaries, except for those companies
incorporated outside Hong Kong, carry on their
businesses in Hong Kong unless stated otherwise.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, none of
the subsidiaries of the Company issued any debt
securities.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

Bermuda/Macau

AE /R

Emperor E Hotel*
HEREEE*

Note: Included in accumulated non-controlling interests, an
amount of HK$817,511,000 (2022: HK$847,316,000) is
mainly contributed from the non-controlling interests
of the Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries.

*  Representing Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £k

28.37% 28.89% (59,603) IPRORIEN 1,921,126

48. M B R RIFTE (&
(a) 752 A#2023%3 318 202243 A

BIHZ X EMBRARIFBNT: (&)

BRAEEBAINEMAIL 2 ARIIN P
MBARYEREREEK (SAT
BAERRSN) ©

7202353 H31H }&202243A431H -
ARAMERABRERITEAERE
%0

RESFZER ERINBERTERE
AEBEESIEEZARBMBRR -
EERRINBEMHBRARZFHES
STRIEBNITTRK.

(b) MEEAFEZERERZHFZ2EMBR

A2 B

TREIANEEHEA B A E B ES
ZIEREMBRARIZFHE:

2,001,689

et HEIREEE REH B D BRI RAE
2 FBHE817,511,00058 7T (2022
4 : 847,316,0005% 7T ) 5t A R T IE4E
g 18 2 <

o ORKREZREEE T EKE QA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ # 220234331 H I F/Z

48.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 48. B AR FFIE (&

(b) Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that have (b) BEERFERERZIIEZENBR
material non-controlling interests: (continued) AlZFHE: (&)
Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries REREEEREMNBAR

Current assets MEEE 566,763 1,129,889
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,270,952 3,900,534
Current liabilities mENEE 253,213 309,151
Non-current liabilities ERBAR 75,179 79,541
Equity attributable to the Company RN FEAL = 2,588,197 2,640,042
Non-controlling interests of the BEREREZ

Emperor E Hotel FEVE R 1,103,615 1,154,373
Non-controlling interests of the HEREBEENMB QR

Emperor E Hotel’s subsidiaries ZIEERR 817,511 847,316
Revenue WA 291,119 415,894
Costs, expenses, other gains and AN B H s &

losses & B (419,116) (1,060,139)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEE1E k2 E A

for the year (127,997) (644,245)

Loss and total comprehensive expense fE{h 518 & 2 2 FH X :
attributable to:

Owners of the Company KAREA A (68,394) (373,932)
Non-controlling interests of the REREHE 2
Emperor E Hotel FE5 AR 2 (29,798) (154,385)
Non-controlling interests of the HEREBEMBE QA
Emperor E Hotel’s subsidiaries 2 IR R A (29,805) (115,928)
(127,997) (644,245)
Net cash outflow from operating KEFRH RS MEFE
activities (47,684) (161,183)
Net cash outflow from investing KRETHZRE ML FHE
activities (237,366) (913,235)
Net cash outflow from financing BMEEH RS M FE

activities (5,717) (115,537)
Net cash outflow R FEE (290,767) (1,189,955)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEERERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#k




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBRE

RESULTS e

Revenue WA 1,210,682 2,329,324 1,317,082 2,365,382 4,352,386
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBiAT (B598) &7 (2,299,228) (831,145)  (1,074,972)  (3,670,483) 3,493,234
Taxation credit (charge) REES () 97,642 91,503 204,686 127,121 (165,472)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (FR) &M (2,201,586) (739,642) (870,286)  (3,543,362) 3,327,762
(Loss) profit for the year BIEEE (BR)&RH:

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ARAEARA (2,141,983) (469,329) (767,448)  (3,644,359) 3,136,289

Non-controlling interests FERER (59,603) (270,313) (102,838) 100,997 191,473

(2,201,586) (739,642) (870,286)  (3,543,362) 3,327,762

Assets and Liabilities EENREE

Total assets BERE 51,128,055 54,705,505 60,249,122 60,296,815 64,244,204
Total liabilities BELE PERETER]  (25,938,002)  (30,846,341)  (30,574,611)  (29,886,364)

25,808,322 28,767,503 29,402,781 29,722,204 34,357,840

Equity attributable to: JEIE R -
Owners of the Company N/NGIE 2D RIEYA LI 26,765,814 27,069,470 27,200,235 31,835,074
Non-controlling interests kg 1,921,126 2,001,689 2,333,311 2,521,969 2,522,766

25,808,322 28,767,503 29,402,781 29,722,204 34,357,840

! Emperor International Holdings Limited EEFREBERAR
= 222 ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &R




SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y RBE

Investment Properties

Particulars of the Group's major investment properties and
properties under development as at 31 March 2023, are as
follows:

REWRE

AEEN023FIAILE 2 FERANERERE
R 2 BT

Units 1 to 4 on 12th Floor, Wing Yip Commercial Building,
65-71 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
NERKSYMEES-TIR R EFERELI2EIZAE

Carpark Nos. 1-11, 20, 23, 23A, 24 and 24A on Ground Floor,
Kwong Sang Hong Building, Blocks C and D,

188 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BAEHETEISREETAECKDE

#T1-11 20 23~ 23A 240 24A5 B {1

Unit 601-604, 606, 705, 801, 802, 806, 901, 902, 1001,
1102-1104, 1204, 1206, 1207, 1505, 1506, 1605, 1607,
1701-1707, 1801-1803, 1806, 1807, 1901, 1905-1907,
2001-2007, 2101-2102

Emperor Group Centre,

288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEFHEFBBFEEEE L

601%604 - 606 - 705 - 801 - 802 - 806 - 901 - 902 - 1001 -
110221104 - 1204 - 1206 ~ 1207 - 1505 - 1506 ~ 1605 - 1607
170121707 - 1801%1803 ~ 1806 ~ 1807 » 1901 ~ 1905%1907
2001%2007%2101%2102%

Shops on Basement One and Two, G/F - 4/F,

Some Commercial Units on 22/F - 29/F, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
ABBETEHEFEWSFREEERL

F-ERE_BHE - HTE4E2HBUK
NEVEZETFEAEN

Ground Floor and 1st Floor, 523 Lockhart Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB MBER7ESFM T R1E

Shops 1-3 & 5 on Ground Floor, the whole of 1st, 2nd and
3rd Floors, the External Walls of Ground Floor to 3rd Floor,
the Flat Roof on 5th Floor and Parapet Walls enclosing the
Flat Roof on 5th Floor and Lift No. 1 and No. 5,

8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BRMBLEZESRM TIZIRRORE 12 28R
JBRE M TEMBZIME SETA REETAZEER
IR RSHER

Emperor International Holdings Limited

= o
> =R
bt 3

Carparks
Efy

r O
=]
bt 3

"

Commercial/
Carparks
EEYE 2

Commercial

[GES

Shops/
Commercial

VRS

1,078(6)
(B%)

67,000(G)
()

151,600(G)
()

1,850(G)
(%)

26,952(G)
(%)

16

REFREEARAE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y RBE

Investment Properties (continued)

REWME (&

1. Shop 1-4 on Lower Ground Floor, Yee Fung Building, Shops 3,364(G) - 100 Medium
1A Wong Nai Chung Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong L (%) w8
BRBESMERBEIRAREREREL T1Z454H

8. Shops 7-11 & Entrance on Ground Floor, the whole of 1st and Commercial 21,720(G) - 100 Long
2nd Floor, Wei Kei Building, 275 Chatham Road North, [GES (%) &5
Hung Hom, Kowloon
NEABRREIL2SHFREHT
TENFHERAD IERUERE

9. Portion B on Ground Floor, 63-69 Avenida do Infante D. Commercial 1,600(G) - 100 Short
Henrique and Shop C2 on Ground Floor, (GRS (2%) 5
No. 5 Rua Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo, Macau
BPIREFAB63-695BEM T &

BRETHSRITC2RE

10. Shops 1-6 on Ground Floor, 1st and 2nd Floor, 1st and 2nd Commercial 5,549(G) - 100 Medium
Advertising Walls, 525 Shanghai Street, Mongkok, Kowloon [GES (%) ol
R A L5255 TIZ65 M LER2E
E-REZIMNBREME

11. Unit C on 6th Floor, CNT Tower, Wanchai, Hong Kong Office 940(G) - 100 Long
BREFILGRU6ECE HYNES (2%) =5

12. Basement, Ground Floor, 1st to 4th Floor of Block A, Commercial 15,788(G) - 100 Long
Centro Comercial Hoi Meng, No. 201-209 Avenida De Almeida [GES (B£) =3
Ribeiro 1-3 Patio Das Esquinas, Macau
RPN #8201-2095 RABES1-3R AT ER DAEME -

T R1Z4E

13. Flat A& C on 12th Floor and Flat B on 17th Floor, Residential 1,780(G) - 100 Long
Ying Fai Court, 1 Ying Fai Terrace, Hong Kong fFE (%) i
BEREBEINAEGIEARCERITERE

14, Shop A, D2 & E2 on Ground Floor, Harilela Mansion, Shops 3,061(G) - 100 Medium
81 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon Gl (%) b
NEXDERIESLREFAEML TA D2RE25 4

15. 54-56 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Commercial/ 4,224(G) - 100 Long
BRI EEE R 154-56% Residential (B%) 54

B/ x

16. Ground Floor, 20 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Shops 1,125(G) - 100 Long
ERMBERERE05 T B (2%) =5

17. 22-24 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Shops 7,868(G) - 100 Long
BB IS ER22-24% B (2%) =5

18. Fitfort, 560 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong Shops/Carparks 134,411(G) 353 100 Long
BB AR 285605 [ (2%) =5

A

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Y =BE

Investment Properties (continued)

19.
20.
21
22.
23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Shop C & D on Ground Floor and Units A and B on 1st Floor,
Mercantile House, Kowloon
NEAMAEN TCRDRHRUEARBE

Ground Floor, 76 Percival Street, Hong Kong
ERREEHTORET

Shop A & B on Ground Floor, Office A & B on 1st Floor to 3rd
Floor, Tak Fat Building, 50 - 52 Russell Street, Hong Kong
BEBERES0-52RBH AR TARBR S 11223
MAEARBE

Ground Floor, 67 Wellington Street, Hong Kong
EERBEHCTRIT

Flat B on Ground Floor, Hon Kwong Mansion,
25-29 Hankow Road & 4 Ichang Street, Kowloon
NEEE N 825-29% R H B 450 E X NEM TBE

Shop C on Ground Floor, Daily House,
35, 36 & 37 Haiphong Road, Kowloon
NEBHE3S 36 K3THEATTH T CRE

Shops 30 & 33A on Ground Floor and Mezz Floor,
Tsimshatsui Mansion, 83-97 Nathan Road,

36-50 Lock Road, Kowloon

BT FES3-9TH R &Ei836-50K ERAE

T R EE30R33A%E

60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEFETITE6R

The Pulse, 28 Beach Road, Repulse Bay, Hong Kong
BB 2K2)5 %8285 The Pulse

Emperor Commercial Centre, 39-41 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
ABFIREHEFIAIFAEFERL

181-183 Oxford Street, London, UK
HE R 2 14181-183%

Emperor Nam Van Centre, 71-85 Avenida do Infante D.
Herique, 514-540 Avenida da Praia Grande, Macau
BPIRE T ABHKT1-85% )2 KB #514-540%
EERERLDL

Emperor International Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &R

Shops
[BE

Shops
[

Shops/Office
mE/BRE

Shops
[BE

Shops
[BE

Shops
L

Shops
Bk

Shops/Office/
Carparks
Ve P4
EXn}

Commercial/
Shops/Carparks
wE/HE/
Efy

Commercial/
Office
HE/WAR

Commercial/
Office
BE/BAE

Commercial

[GES

REWME (&

3,710(G)
(%)

600(G)
(B£)

6,700(G)
(B£)

855(G)
(32%)

800(G)
(32%)

750(G)
(BE)

1,717(G)

(B%)

110,532(6)
(B%)

167,200(G)
(%)

39,000(G)
(%)

20,000(G)
(%)

29,600(G)
(B%)

- 100 Medium
w

- 100 Long
=4

- 100 Long
=4

- 100 Long
=8

- 100 Medium
o

- 100 Medium
w

- 100 Medium
o 8

30 100 Long
=3

97 100 Long
=4

- 100 Long
=8

- 100 Freehold
KA

- 100 Short
ek

REFREEARAE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y RBE

Investment Properties (continued) REWE (&)

31. Emperor Group Centre, Ding 12 Jianguomen Avenue, Commercial/ 1,062,000(G) - 100 Medium
Chaoyang District, Beijing, The PRC Office  (incl. basement) ol
PR FAGEREPMINAGT IR REREH L BE/WAE (2%)
(BEHE)
32. Commercial/Car Park Block, Multi-storey Car Parks A, B Commercial/ 93,300(G) 979 100 Medium
and C, Open Car Parks and Associated Areas 5-19 and Carparks (B%) ol
6-12 Sui Wo Road, Sha Tin, New Territories [GEYEAN

HADHRAKS-19R6-125 7% /BEEHAE
%EEBEGA BRCE BAFESLERL

33. Ampersand Building, 111-125 Oxford Street, London, UK Commercial/ 112,500(G) - 100 Freehold
RERIF2E111-1255 Ampersand A B Office (%) KA
[EEVE VN
34, Shop Nos.1-9 and 11 on Ground Floor, Shop No.1 and 2 on Commercial 12,700(G) - 100 Long
Lower Ground Floor, Fairview Height, No.1 Seymour Road, [EES (B%) =3
Hong Kong
ERREEIRBEZN TIZIE RIISH I TEELR2RSE
35. Emperor Hollywood Centre, No.151 Hollywood Road, Commercial/ 41,000(G) - 100 Long
Hong Kong Office (%) =
ERNEEEISIREERTERL BE/MAE
36. 25-27 Oxford Street, London, UK Commercial/ 19,300(G) - 100 Freehold
£ B B RH25-2T5 Office (B£) KA
[SEVE YN
37. No.81 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong Commercial 126,600(G) - 100 Long
BB ESLY BE (%) R H
Remark: (G) - gross floor area B (G) —EmELmE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#k

A




SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y RBE

Investment Properties Under Development

HRPREWE

1. Emperor Star City, a site located at Yuyuan Commercial complex 246,173 1,300,000
Jiedao 548 Jiefang 11/1 Qiu Huangpu District, BEGABE  (incl basement)
Shanghai, The PRC (2%HE)

RERERURTE LERBERREEMSE
S11/1E 7308

Note: Under the joint venture agreement, the Group would provide
the land, whereas joint venture partner would bear the full
construction cost and the saleable floor area would be split

between the parties in equal shares.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Foundation 2025 - Note Medium
completed Wi i

WEIRETM

Mt BEEERE AEEBERH L aE8BHS

EEREEERA MAESEEEBESRET

BHFH

REFREEARAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 &R

227 —

‘



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y RBE

Property Under Development - For Sale BELECBRRPYE

1. Various Lots, D210, Sai Kung, New Territories Residential 58,100 26,000  Site 2025 - 100 Medium
NARELENNETSEE E bk 8

2. Central 8,8-10A Mosque Street, Residential 4293 34,000  Completed 2021 - 100 Long
Mid-levels, Hong Kong [tz BRI 3
BB EREH8-10A% 1L BI%

3. Seaside Castle, No. 9 Ching Lai Road, Residential 22,000 29,000  Completed 2021 18 100 Medium
Tai Lam, Tuen Mun, New Territories =z BRI i
MAAPAEEBRIGES

4. No. 15 Shouson, Residential 116,896 87,200  Completed 2021 32 50 Medium
No. 15 Shouson Hill Road West, Hong Kong frE BRI ik
EHSEILEAREENIH

5. Nos.20-26 Old Bailey Street & No. 11 Residential 3,299 29,700 Superstructure 2023 - 100 Long
Chancery Lane, Mid-levels, Hong Kong ffE work in progress K8
BRLLRSHHNEH REEELR TEREHRIY

6. No.1Wang Tak Street, Residential 5816 58,100  Foundation work 2024 14 100 Medium
Happy Valley, Hong Kong frE in progress ik
EHRSHEEHIR WETRNEET

7. Nos. 24-30 Bonham Road, Residential 13,067 105,400  Foundation work 2024 28 100 Long
Mid-levels West, Hong Kong ffE in progress RH
BHALILRAE24-305 WETRNEET

8. Nos. 72-80 Old Main Street Aberdeen, Residential/ 5,985 50,300  Foundation work 2024 - 100 Long
Aberdeen, Hong Kong Commercial in progress =8
BRBATEBITEAGT-00% ftx/E% WETRNEET

9. No. 127 Caine Road, Mid-levels, Hong Kong Residential 3,017 24,700 Demolition work in 2025 - 100 Long
EEFILIRBITR [ progress 3]

RHRIRNEEST

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEEEEBERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F#k
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